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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
O-Bank

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of O-Bank (the “Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
(collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks,
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Publicly Held Bills Finance
Companies, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified
Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.



The descriptions of the key audit matters of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Allowance for Credit Losses of Loans

The Bank is engaged principally in providing loans to customers. The Bank’s management
performed loans impairment assessment in accordance with the requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standard 9, “Financial Instruments”. In addition, the allowance for credit
losses of loans was calculated and classified in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the
Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Non-performing/Non-accrual
Loans” (referred to as “Banking Institutions Regulations Governing the Procedures for Bad Debt™).

For details about the accounting policy on the allowance for credit losses, refer to Note 4 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements; for details about the critical accounting judgments,
estimations, and assumptions of loan impairment, refer to Note 5 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements; and for details about the allowance for credit losses, refer to Note 14 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Bank shall assess the classification of credit-granting assets and recognize allowance for credit
losses of loans in accordance with the “Banking Institutions Regulations Governing the Procedures
for Bad Debt”. As the assessment and recognition of loss allowance involve subjective judgments,
critical estimations and assumptions of the management, we have included the assessment of
allowance for credit losses of loans as a key audit matter.

The main audit procedures we performed in response to certain aspects of the key audit matters
described above are as follows:

e \We obtained an understanding and performed testing on the internal controls in respect of the
Bank’s loan impairment assessment.

e \We examined that the classifications of loans were in accordance with the “Banking
Institutions Regulations Governing the Procedures for Bad Debt”. We also recalculated the
amount of the allowance for credit losses on loans and checked whether the Bank meets the
requirement of the regulation or not.

Assessment of Reserve for Losses on Guarantee Contracts

The reserves set aside for the guarantee liabilities of China Bills Finance Corporation are in
accordance with both the International Financial Reporting Standard 9, “Financial Instruments”,
whereby the expected losses on guarantee obligations generated by financial guarantee contracts
are assessed, and the “Regulations Governing the Procedures for Bills Finance Companies to
Evaluate Assets, Set Aside Loss Reserves, and Handle Non-performing Credit, Non-accrual Loans,
and Bad Debt” (referred to as the “Bills Finance Companies Regulations for Evaluating Bad Debt”),
whereby the reserves for guarantee liabilities are classified and made.

For details about the accounting policy on the reserve for guarantee liabilities, refer to Note 4 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements; for details about the critical accounting judgments,
estimations and assumptions of the reserve for guarantee liabilities, refer to Note 5 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements; and for details about the reserve for guarantee
liabilities, refer to Note 14 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.



China Bills Finance Corporation assesses reserve for guarantee contracts involves subjective
judgments, critical estimations and assumptions of the management. The classification of
credit-granting assets and recognition of the reserve for guarantee contracts in accordance with the
“Bills Finance Companies Regulations for Evaluating Bad Debt” influence the amounts of the
reserve for guarantee contracts. Thus, we consider the assessment of reserve losses on guarantee
contracts as a key audit matter.

The main audit procedures we performed in response to certain aspects of the key audit matter
described above are as follows:

e \We understood the internal controls about the estimated impairment of reserve for losses on
guarantee contracts and we tested the effectiveness of the operation of the controls.

® \We reviewed the assessment schedule of reserve for losses on credit-granting assets, which the
management of China Bills Finance Corporation used to assess the reserve. We checked the
completeness of amount of credit-granting assets in the schedule and rationality of
classifications. We recalculated the amounts of reserve for losses on guarantee contracts in the
schedule and checked whether the reserve meets the requirements of the “Bills Finance
Companies Regulations for Evaluating Bad Debt” or not.

Other Matter

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of the Bank as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Public Banks, Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Publicly Held Bills
Finance Companies, and IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2022, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.



The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Kuan-Hao
Lee and Wang-Sheng Lin.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 14, 2023

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated
financial position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English
version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions,
the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements shall
prevail.



O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Note 6)

DUE FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND CALL LOANS TO BANKS (Note 7)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Notes 8 and 44)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Notes 9,

44 and 48)

INVESTMENTS IN DEBT INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST (Notes 10, 44 and 48)

BILLS AND BONDS PURCHASED UNDER RESELL AGREEMENTS (Note 11)
RECEIVABLES, NET (Notes 12 and 14)

CURRENT TAX ASSETS

DISCOUNTS AND LOANS, NET (Notes 13, 14, 42 and 43)

INVESTMENT ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD, NET (Note 17)
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Notes 18 and 44)

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Notes 19 and 45)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, NET (Note 20)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET (Note 21)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Note 40)

OTHER ASSETS (Notes 20 and 22)

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Deposits From the Central Bank and other banks (Note 23)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 8)
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements (Note 24)
Payables (Note 25)
Current tax liabilities
Deposits and remittances (Notes 26 and 43)
Bank debentures payable (Note 27)
Other financial liabilities (Note 28)
Provisions (Notes 14, 29 and 30)
Lease liabilities (Note 20)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 40)
Other liabilities (Note 31)

Total liabilities

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE BANK
Capital
Common stock
Preferred stock
Total capital
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other equity
Treasury stock

Total equity attributable to owners of the Bank
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total equity (Note 32)

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2022 2021

Amount % Amount %
$ 6,414,978 1 $ 11,779,386 2
17,785,790 3 12,981,310 2
144,850,687 25 151,899,447 27
155,223,551 27 191,156,680 33
25,665,306 5 - -
3,951,999 1 5,364,108 1
3,691,557 1 20,076,514 4
299,379 - 324,529 -
204,312,972 35 172,727,589 30
7,241,771 1 880,879 -
785,669 - 875,733 -
2,405,135 1 2,545,050 1
420,124 - 332,938 -
1,809,664 - 1,946,051 -
1,125,574 - 900,743 -
1.358.976 - 1.289.712 -
$ 577,343,132 100 $ 575,080.669 100
$ 23,427,644 4 $ 27,876,301 5
1,008,165 - 441,337 -
180,156,757 31 187,952,616 33
3,272,901 1 2,467,406 -
112,306 - 238,572 -
293,164,986 51 259,379,425 45
13,600,000 3 15,000,000 3
5,156,808 1 20,580,832 4
1,872,637 - 2,076,334 -
432,826 - 350,370 -
628,178 - 830,510 -
500,360 2,719,579 -
523,333,568 91 519,913,282 90
27,339,923 5 27,330,063 5
2,990,140 - 3,000,000 1
30,330,063 5 30,330,063 6
13,652 - 6,734 -
4,341,816 1 3,729,690 1
634,610 - 797,783 -
5,469,437 1 2,040,419 -
10,445,863 2 6,567,892 1
(3,050,502) 1) (485,479) -
(16,837) - (38,304) -
37,722,239 6 36,380,906 7
16,287,325 3 18,786,481 3
54,009,564 9 55,167,387 10
$ 577,343,132 100 $ 575.080.669 100



O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

Percentage
Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease)
Amount % Amount % %
INTEREST REVENUE (Notes 33
and 43) $ 9,347,757 77 $ 6,830,219 73 37
INTEREST EXPENSE (Notes 33
and 43) (4,766,262) (39) (2,170,292) (23) 120
NET INTEREST 4,581,495 38 4,659,927 50 2
NET REVENUE OTHER THAN
INTEREST REVENUE
Service fee income, net (Notes 34
and 43) 2,349,341 19 2,458,570 26 (@)

Gains on financial assets or liabilities

measured at fair value through profit

or loss (Note 36) 3,899,414 32 851,498 9 358
Realized gains on financial assets at

fair value through other

comprehensive income (Note 37) 153,972 1 410,622 5 (63)
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net (2,402,766) (20) 619,970 7 (488)
Reversal of impairment loss on assets 7,909 - 3,486 - 127
Share of profit of associates accounted

for using equity method (Notes 17

and 42) 3,334,489 28 94,846 1 3,416
Other net revenue other than interest

(Note 43) 196,965 2 215,893 2 9)

Total net revenue other than
interest revenue 7,539,324 62 4,654,885 50 62
NET REVENUE 12,120,819 100 9,314,812 100 30

BAD DEBTS EXPENSE,
COMMITMENT AND GUARANTEE
LIABILITY PROVISION (Note 14) (608,103) (5 (553,924) (6) 10
(Continued)




O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

Percentage
Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease)
Amount % Amount % %
OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee benefits expenses (Notes 37
and 42) $ 2,986,679 25 $ 2,745,513 30 9
Depreciation and amortization
expenses (Note 38) 623,209 5 637,957 7 2
Other general and administrative
expenses (Notes 39 and 42) 1,285,602 10 1,138,450 12 13
Total operating expenses 4,895,490 40 4,521,920 49 8
PROFIT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX 6,617,226 55 4,238,968 45 56
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 40) 808,871 7 1,034,348 11 (22)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS 5,808,355 48 3,204,620 34 81
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (Note 15) - - (4,697) - 100
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5,808,355 48 3,199,923 34 82
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)
Components of other comprehensive
income (loss) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss:
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of
defined benefit plans (Note 30) 55,366 - (3,166) - 1,849
Revaluation gains (losses) on
investments in equity instruments
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (929,852) (8) 814,893 9 (214)

(Continued)



O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

Share of other comprehensive loss
of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures accounted for using

equity method

Income tax related to components of
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or

loss (Note 40)

Components of other
comprehensive income (loss)
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss, net of tax

Components of other comprehensive
income (loss) that will be
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation

of financial statements of foreign

operations

Losses from investments in debt
instruments measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Income tax related to components of
other comprehensive income that
will be reclassified to profit or

loss (Note 40)

Components of other
comprehensive loss that will be
reclassified to profit or loss, net

of tax

Other comprehensive loss for the
year, net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Owners of the Bank

Non-controlling interests

Percentage
Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease)
Amount % Amount % %
$ (19,864) - $ - - -
(6,693) - 148 - (4,622)
(901,043) (8) 811,875 9 (211)
1,284,555 11 (296,477) (3) 533
(5,918,474) (49) (1,459,302) (16) 306
352,545 3 166,687 2 112
(4,281,374) (35) (1,589,092) (17) 169
(5,182,417) (43) (777,217) (8) 567
$ 625,938 5 $ 2422706 6 (74)
$ 5,034,471 42 $ 1,840,842 20 173
773,884 6 1,359,081 14 (43)
$ 5808355 8 $ 3199923 34 82

- 10 -

(Continued)



O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

Percentage
Increase
2022 2021 (Decrease)
Amount % Amount % %
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Bank $ 2,259,593 19 $ 1,497,197 16 51
Non-controlling interests (1,633,655) (14) 925,509 10 (277)
$ 625,938 5 $ 2422706 _26 (74)
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 41)
From continuing and discontinued
operations
Basic $1.80 $0.63
Diluted $1.62 $0.57
From continuing operations
Basic $1.80 $0.63
Diluted $1.62 $0.57
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)

- 11 -
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O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit from continuing operations before tax

Loss from discontinued operations before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit losses/recognition of provisions
Share-based payment arrangements
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss

Interest expense
Interest revenue
Dividend income
Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity method
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment
Loss (gain) on disposal of investments

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from the Central Bank and call loans to banks
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in debt instruments at amortized cost
Bills and bonds purchased under resell agreements
Receivables
Discounts and loans
Deposits from the Central Bank and other banks
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Payables
Deposits and remittances
Provisions

Cash generated from (used in) operations

Interest received

Dividends received

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Net cash flows generated from (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries (Note 42)
Acquisition of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Increase in refundable deposits
Acquisition of intangible assets
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2022 2021

$ 6617226 $ 4,238,968
- (4,697)

343,952 359,168
279,257 281,967
600,194 550,438
8,423 -
(3,899,414) (862,473)
4,766,262 2,170,292
(9,347,757) (6,830,219)
(462,266) (250,765)
(3,334,489) (94,846)
4,710 (231)
308,294 (159,857)
526,228 724,820
10,254,007 11,007,217
29,676,220 (18,548,806)
(25,661,361) -
1,412,109 (631,226)
(520,532) (5,349,722)
(32,198,962) 10,517,050
(4,448,657) (603,454)
566,828 (348,961)
(7,795,859) 6,786,790
(35,274) (169,006)
33,785,561 (8,340,247)
4,016 (18,494)
1,448,716 (5,576,294)
8,775,223 6,951,157
497,786 261,363
(4,118,272) (2,354,341)
(795.671) (808.793)
5,807,782 (1,526,908)
(2,540,264) -
(128,890) (97,062)
59,600 3,102
(99,334) (197,383)
(50,212) (35,324)

(Continued)



O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets
Decrease in other financial assets
Increase in other assets

Net cash flows (used in) generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term borrowings
Increase in commercial papers
Decrease in commercial papers
Proceeds from issuing bank debentures
Repayments of bank debentures
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Repayments of the principal portion of lease liabilities
Increase in other financial liabilities
Decrease in other financial liabilities
Increase in other liabilities
Decrease in other liabilities
Dividends paid to owners of the Bank
Transfer of treasury stock to employees
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash flows used in financing activities

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
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2022 2021
$ 34,276 -
90,905 536,523
(206.,762) (42,131)
(2.840.681) 167.725
1,234,630 546,107
- 436,540
(2,976,269) -
1,100,000 1,500,000
(2,500,000) (2,900,000)
6,113,689 6,700,165
(5,010,824) (4,627,940)
(138,845) (178,417)
568,543 -

- (533,398)

- 470,024

(432,016) -
(946,645) (672,954)
18,912 -
(865.780) (836,921)
(3.834.605) (96.794)
894,464 (251,471)
26,960 (1,707,448)
15,198,196 16,905,644
$ 15225156 $ 15198.196

(Continued)



O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Reconciliation of the amounts in the consolidated statements of cash flows with the equivalent items reported in
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

December 31

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents reported in the consolidated balance sheets $ 6,414,978 $ 11,779,386
Due from the Central Bank and call loans to banks qualifying for cash

and cash equivalents under the definition of IAS 7 8,195,724 2,865,016
Other items qualifying for cash and cash equivalents under the definition

of IAS 7 614,454 553,794
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 15,225,156 $ 15,198,196
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Industrial Bank of Taiwan started its preparation for incorporation on March 2, 1998, was authorized for
incorporation by the Ministry of Finance on July 27, 1999, and began its business operations on September
2,1999.

To be in coordination with the government’s financial liberation policy and to increase the operating
efficiency, on August 14, 2015, the Industrial Bank of Taiwan’s board of directors approved of the
application for a change of registration to a commercial bank and for a change of name to “O-Bank Co.,
Ltd.” (“O-Bank™ or the “Bank™). The Financial Supervisory Commission (the “FSC”) accepted the
application on December 15, 2016 and required the Bank to submit its proposed adjustment plan to comply
with the Banking Act of the Republic of China. On January 1, 2017, the Banking Bureau approved and
issued the operating license for the Bank to operate a commercial banking business. The Bank’s name was
changed from “Industrial Bank of Taiwan™ to “O-Bank Co., Ltd.” on January 1, 2017.

The Bank’s operations include the following: (a) accepting various deposits; (b) issuing bank debentures; (c)
providing loans, discounts, and acceptance business; (d) providing domestic and foreign exchange and
guarantee business; (e) issuing letters of credit at home and abroad; (f) making receipts and payments by
agents; (g) investing in and underwriting offering of securities; (h) dealing in bonds; (i) factoring; (j)
providing financial advisory services to financing and non-financing business; (k) wealth management
business; (I) providing personal insurance and property insurance agent business; (m) dealing with debit
card business; (n) providing foreign exchange services for client’s imports or exports, overseas remittances,
foreign currency deposits, and foreign currency loans and guarantees; (0) overseeing trust business under
the Trust Business Law and regulations; and (p) dealing in derivative financial instruments and
participating in other operations authorized by the central authorities.

As of December 31, 2022, the Bank has eight main department-level units - Financial Business Department,
Financial Market Department, Risk Control Department, Operation Management Department, Science and
Technology Financial Department, Legal Affairs and Legal Compliance Department, Strategic
Development Department, Audit Department. It also has Operating Segment, Neihu branch, Taoyuan
branch, Hsinchu branch, Taichung branch and Kaohsiung branch. In addition, it has an Offshore Banking
Unit, Hong Kong branch, and Tianjin representative office.

The Bank’s stocks were listed on the Emerging Stock Market of the Taipei Exchange (“TPEx”) starting in
August 2004. The TWSE approved the Bank’s application for listing on November 28, 2016 and transferred
the listing from the TPEXx to the TWSE on May 5, 2017.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in the Bank’s functional currency, the New Taiwan
dollar.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) had 1,374 and 1,545
employees, respectively.
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2. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorized for issue on
March 14, 2023.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

a.

Initial application of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards (IAS), Interpretations of IFRS (IFRIC), and Interpretations of IAS (SIC) (collectively the
“IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

Initial application of the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC did not have a material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies.

The IFRSs endorsed by the FSC for application starting from 2023

Effective Date

New IFRSs Announced by IASB
Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies™ January 1, 2023 (Note 1)
Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates™ January 1, 2023 (Note 2)
Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and January 1, 2023 (Note 3)

Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction™

Note 1: The amendments will be applied prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2023.

Note 2:  The amendments will be applicable to changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

Note 3: Except for deferred taxes that were recognized on January 1, 2022 for temporary differences
associated with leases and decommissioning obligations, the amendments were applied
prospectively to transactions that occur on or after January 1, 2022.

The Group assessed the application of the above standards would not have any material impact on the
Group’s financial position and financial performance. As of the date the consolidated financial
statements were authorized for issue, the Group is continuously assessing the possible impact that the
application of other standards and interpretations will have on the Group’s financial position and
financial performance and will disclose the relevant impact when the assessment is completed.

New IFRSs in issued but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC

Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets  To be determined by IASB
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture™
Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases Liability in a Sale and Leaseback™  January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023
(Continued)
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Effective Date
New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)

Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 17 - January 1, 2023
Comparative Information”

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or January 1, 2024
Non-current”
Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants” January 1, 2024

(Concluded)

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New IFRSs are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: A seller-lessee shall apply the Amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to sale and leaseback
transactions entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16.

As of the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue, the Group is
continuously assessing the possible impact that the application of other standards and interpretations
will have on the Group’s financial position and financial performance and will disclose the relevant
impact when the assessment is completed.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Public Banks, the Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Publicly Held Bills Finance Companies, and IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by
the FSC.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the net defined benefit liabilities
(assets) recognized at the fair value of the assets. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities
Since the operating cycle in the banking industry could not be clearly identified, accounts included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group were not classified as current or noncurrent. Nevertheless,

accounts were properly categorized according to the nature of each account and sequenced by their liquidity.
Refer to Note 48 for the maturity analysis of liabilities.
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Basis of Consolidation

Principles for preparing consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Bank and the entities
controlled by the Bank. Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. When necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by the Bank. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full upon
consolidation. The total comprehensive income of subsidiaries shall be attributed to the owners of the Bank
and to the non-controlling interests, even if the balance becomes negative or loss is incurred.

Refer to Note 16, Table 3 and Table 4 for the list of main business activities and ownership percentages of
subsidiaries.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the
Group’s functional currency (i.c. foreign currencies) are recognized at the amount in original currency.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Exchange differences on monetary items arising from settlement or
translation are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation of non-monetary items are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising from the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income; in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the functional currencies of the Bank
(including subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and branches in other countries that use currencies which
are different from the currency of the Bank) are translated into the presentation currency, the New Taiwan
dollar, as follows: Assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period; and income and expense items are translated at the exchange rates for the period. The
resulting currency translation differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence refers to the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but does not control or joint control such policies.

Under the equity method, investments in an associate are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter

to recognize the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. The
Group also recognizes the changes in the Bank’s share of the equity of associates and joint ventures.
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Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of an associate at the date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortized. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group subscribes for additional new shares of an associate at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment differs from the amount of
the Group’s proportionate interest in the associate. The Group records such a difference as an adjustment to
investments with the corresponding amount charged or credited to capital surplus - changes in capital
surplus from investments in associates accounted for using the equity method. If the Group’s ownership
interest is reduced due to its additional subscription of the new shares of the associate, the proportionate
amount of the gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate is reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required had the investee directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. When the adjustment should be debited to capital surplus, but the
capital surplus recognized from investments accounted for using the equity method is insufficient, the
shortage is debited to retained earnings.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any carrying amount of the investment accounted for using the equity method and long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further loss, if any. Additional losses and liabilities are recognized
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal obligations, or constructive obligations, or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

The entire carrying amount of an investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognized forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognized to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date on which its investment ceases to be an
associate. Any retained investment is measured at fair value at that date, and the fair value is regarded as the
investment’s fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the associate attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. The Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required had that associate directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, the Bank continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

When the Group transacts with its associate, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognized in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
that are not related to the Bank.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

a.

Measurement categories

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: Financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets
at amortized cost and investments in debt instruments and equity instruments at FVTOCI.

1)

2)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when such a financial asset is mandatorily classified or
designated as at FVTPL. Financial assets mandatorily classified as at FVTPL include investments in
equity instruments which are not designated as at FVTOCI and debt instruments that do not meet
the amortized cost criteria or the investment in debt instruments at FVTOCI criteria.

Financial assets are designated as FVTPL in the original recognition. If it can eliminate or
significantly reduce the measurement or recognition inconsistency.

Financial assets at F\VTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss does
not incorporate any dividends or interest earned on such a financial asset. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in Note 47.

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost, including cash and cash
equivalents, and trade receivables are measured at amortized cost, which equals the gross carrying
amount determined by the effective interest method less any impairment loss. Exchange differences
are recognized in profit or loss.

Interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
such a financial asset, except for:

a) Purchased or originated credit impaired financial asset, for which interest revenue is calculated
by applying the credit adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial
assets; and

b) Financial assets that are not initially credit impaired or not credit impaired when purchased but

subsequently become credit impaired, for which the interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of such financial assets.
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b.

3)

4)

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more of the following events have occurred:
a) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
b) Breach of contract, such as a default;

c) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or undergo a financial
reorganization; or

d) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
Investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

a) The debt instrument is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both the
collecting of contractual cash flows and the selling of such financial assets; and

b) The contractual terms of the debt instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in the
carrying amounts of these debt instruments relating to changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method and impairment losses or reversals
are recognized in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of these debt instruments are
recognized in other comprehensive income and will be reclassified to profit or loss when the
investment is disposed of.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election to designate investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation as at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is a contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a
business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in other equity. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments; instead, it will be transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost
(including discounts and loans and receivables), investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, lease receivables.

The Group’s policy is to always recognize lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) on trade receivables
and lease receivables. For all other financial instruments, the Group will recognize lifetime ECL when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
will measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECLSs.
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Expected credit losses reflect the weighted average of credit losses calculated by using the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights. Lifetime ECLS represent the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECLs represent the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected to result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

For internal credit risk management purposes, the Group determines that the following situations
indicate that a financial asset is in default (without taking into account any collateral held by the group):

1) Internal or external information show that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors.

2) When a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
corroborative information to support a more lagged default criterion.

The Group recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is
recognized in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying amount of such a financial
asset.

Under the “Regulations Governing the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal
with Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans™ issued by the FSC, the Bank should classify credit assets as
sound credit assets or unsound credit assets, with the unsound assets further categorized as noteworthy,
substandard, having highly doubtful collectability and uncollectable, on the basis of the customers’
financial position, a valuation of the respective collateral and the length of time in which the principal
repayments or interest payments have become overdue.

The Bank made minimum provisions of 1%, 2%, 10%, 50% and 100% for credit assets deemed to be
uncollectable, to have highly doubtful collectability, to be substandard, to be noteworthy and to have
sound credit (excluding assets that represent claims against an ROC government agency), respectively.

Furthermore, the Bank should make at least 1.5% provisions each for sound credit assets in Mainland
China (pertaining to short-term advance for trade finance) and loans for house purchases, renovations
and constructions, respectively.

In addition to valuating impairment loss of receivables and recognizing allowance or bad debts under
IFRS 9, China Bills Finance Corporation (CBF) will evaluate impairment loss, under the “Regulations
Governing the Procedures for Bills Finance Companies to Evaluate Assets, Set Aside Loss Reserves,
and Handle Non-Performing Credit, Non-Accrual Loans, and Bad Debt” issued by the authorities and
the CBF’s provision procedures, and recognize the higher of allowance of and debts between the above
regulations expect.

The Group shall determine the unrecoverable claims and write them off after reporting them to the
Board for approval.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.
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On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.
On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument at FVTOCI, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss which had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss. However,
on derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument at FVTOCI, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit
or loss, and the cumulative gain or loss which had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
transferred directly to retained earnings, without recycling through profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

The repurchase of the Bank’s own equity instruments is recognized in and deducted directly from equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the Bank’s

own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

a. Subsequent measurement

Except for the following situation, all financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method:

1) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when such financial liabilities are either held for
trading or designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition when doing so results
in more relevant information and if:

a) Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

b) The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and has performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

c) The contract contains one or more embedded derivatives so that the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) can be designated as at F\VTPL.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability and is included in the other gains and losses line item. For a financial liability
designated as at FVTPL, the amount of changes in fair value attributable to changes in the credit
risk of the liability is presented in other comprehensive income and will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. The gain or loss accumulated in other comprehensive income will be
transferred to retained earnings when the financial liability is derecognized. If this accounting
treatment related to credit risk would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch, all changes in the
fair value of the liability are presented in profit or loss. The fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 47.

2) Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are subsequently measured at the higher of:
a) The amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and

b) The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognized in accordance with IFRS 15.

Besides subsequently measuring financial guarantee contracts at the higher of the abovementioned
amounts as IFRS assessment result, assessment is also performed under the “Regulations Governing
the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with
Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans™ and “Regulation Governing the Procedures for Bills Finance
Companies to Evaluate Assets, Set Aside Loss Reserves, and Handle Non-performing Credit,
Non-accrual Loans, and Bad Debt” as regulatory assessment result. The higher adequacy provision
between above IFRS and regulatory assessment results is recognized.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance reflecting expected credit losses; and the
amount initially recognized less the cumulative amortization.
b. Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, are cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date on which the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument; in which event, the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedging relationship. When the fair value of a derivative financial instrument is positive, the derivative
is recognized as a financial asset; when the fair value of a derivative financial instrument is negative, the
derivative is recognized as a financial liability.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial asset hosts that are within the scope of
IFRS 9 are not separated; instead, the classification is determined in accordance with the entire hybrid
contract. Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets that is within
the scope of IFRS 9 (e.g. financial liabilities) are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative; their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts;
and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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Modification of financial instruments

For the changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows of financial assets or financial liabilities
resulting from the interest rate benchmark reform, the Group elects to apply the practical expedient in
which the changes are accounted for by updating the effective interest rate at the time the basis is changed,
provided the changes are necessary as a direct consequence of the reform and the new basis is economically
equivalent to the previous basis. When multiple changes are made to a financial asset or a financial liability,
the Group first applies the practical expedient to those changes required by interest rate benchmark reform,
and then applies the requirements of modification of financial instruments to the other changes that cannot
apply the practical expedient.

Non-performing Loans

Under the Regulations Governing the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with
Non-performing/Non-accrual Loans issued by the FSC, loans and other credits (including accrued interests)
that remain unpaid as they fall due are transferred to non-performing loans, if the transfer is approved by
the Board.

Under the “Regulation Governing the Procedures for Bills Finance Companies to Evaluate Assets, Set
Aside Loss Reserves, and Handle Non-performing Credit, Non-accrual Loans, and Bad Debt” issued by the
FSC, receivables and the balances of guaranteed and endorsed credits that are unpaid within six months
after maturity are transferred to non-accrual loans.

Non-performing loans transferred from loans are recognized as discounts and loans, and those transferred
from other credits are recognized as other financial assets.

Repurchase and Resale Transactions

Bills and bonds purchased under agreements to resell and bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements
are generally treated as collateralized financing transactions. Interest earned on reverse repurchase
agreements and interest incurred on repurchase agreements are recognized as interest revenue or interest
expenses over the term of each agreement.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Except of freehold land without depreciated, depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in the estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

On derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.
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Intangible Assets
a. Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss.
Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life, residual value, and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in the estimates accounted for on a prospective basis. The residual value
of an intangible asset with a finite useful life shall be assumed to be zero unless the Group expects to
dispose of the intangible asset before the end of its economic life.

b. Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, which is
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of a business is measured at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment loss.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
or groups of cash-generating units (referred to as “cash-generating units™) that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired, by comparing its carrying amount,
including the attributed goodwill, with its recoverable amount. However, if the goodwill allocated to a
cash-generating unit was acquired in a business combination during the current annual period, that unit
shall be tested for impairment before the end of the current annual period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then pro rata to the other assets of the unit based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss is recognized directly in profit or loss.
Any impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

If goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and the Group disposes of an operation within that
unit, the goodwill associated with the operation which is disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal and is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of Property and Equipment, Right-of-use Assets and Intangible Assets Other than
Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets, excluding goodwill, to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication that the assets may be impaired.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount, with the resulting
impairment loss recognized in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the corresponding asset or
cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent of
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit
or loss.

Provisions
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the discounted cash flows of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties

surrounding the obligation.

Onerous contracts

Onerous contracts are those in which the Group’s unavoidable costs of meeting the contractual obligations
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract. The present obligations arising
under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provision.

Revenue Recognition

Interest revenue on loans is recorded by the accrual method. No interest revenue is recognized in the
accompanying financial statements on loans and other credits extended by the Group that are classified as
non-performing loans. The interest revenue on those loans and credits is recognized upon collection.
Revenue from brokering is recognized when the earnings process has been completed.

Dividend income from investments is recognized on the sharcholders’ right to receive payment. The
premise is that the economic benefits related to the transaction. They are likely to flow into the Group and
the amount of income can be reliably measured it.

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.

The Group as lessee

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases at the commencement date of a
lease, except for short-term leases and low-value asset leases accounted for applying a recognition
exemption where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial measurement of lease
liabilities adjusted for lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs needed to restore the underlying assets, and less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are
presented on a separate line in the consolidated balance sheets.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement dates to the
earlier of the end of the useful lives of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease terms.
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Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, which comprise fixed
payments, in-substance fixed payments, variable lease payments which depend on an index or a rate,
residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and payments of penalties for terminating a lease if the lease term reflects such
termination, less any lease incentives receivable. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in a lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognized over the lease terms. When there is a change in a lease term, a change in the
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase an underlying asset, or a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a
rate used to determine those payments, the Group remeasures the lease liabilities with a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use-assets. However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced
to zero, any remaining amount of the remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss. Lease liabilities are
presented on a separate line in the consolidated balance sheets.

Employee Benefits
a. Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related services.

b. Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as expenses when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit costs (including service cost, net interest and remeasurement) under defined benefit
retirement benefit plans are determined using the projected unit credit method. Service cost (including
current service cost) and net interest on the net defined benefit liabilities (assets) are recognized as
employee benefits expense in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which it occurs. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Net defined benefit liabilities (assets) represent the actual deficit (surplus) in the Group’s defined
benefit plans. The net defined benefit assets shall not exceed the present value with the refund
withdrawal from the plan or the reduction of future withdrawals.

c. Staff preferential deposit
The Bank provides preferential deposit account for employees, which are used to pay fixed preferential
deposits for current employees. The effect of the difference between the interest rate of these
preferential deposits and the market interest rate is treated as employee benefits.

Share-based Payment Arrangements

The fair value at the grant date of the share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the

vesting period, based on the Group’s best estimates of the number of shares or options that are expected to

ultimately vest, with a corresponding increase in capital surplus. The payment is recognized as an expense
in full at the grant date if vested immediately.
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
a. Current tax

Income tax payable (recoverable) is based on taxable profit (loss) for the year determined according to
the applicable tax laws of each tax jurisdiction.

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional tax of unappropriated earnings is provided for as
income tax in the year the shareholders approve to retain earnings.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the current year’s tax provision.
b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused loss
carryforwards to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and recognized to the to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Bank
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
c. Current and deferred tax

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity; in which case, the current and deferred
taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Where

current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash and cash equivalent items in the consolidated balance sheet include cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short-term and highly liquid investments that can be converted into fixed amount of cash at
any time. They have little risk of change in value. For the consolidated statements of cash flows, the cash
and cash equivalents account refer to the accounts in the consolidated balance sheets titled cash and cash
equivalents, due from the Central Bank and call loans to banks, and call loans to securities firms that meet
the definition of cash and cash equivalents in IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™ endorsed and issued into
effect by the FSC.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments,
estimations, and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Group considers the economic implications of the COVID-19 when making its critical accounting
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect
only that period or in the period of the revisions and future periods if the revisions affect both current and
future periods.

Estimated Impairment of Loans and Financial Guarantee Contract

The impairment of loans and financial guarantee contracts is based on assumptions about the risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and in selecting the inputs
of the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the actual future cash inflows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2022 2021
Cash on hand and petty cash $ 137,007 $ 83,873
Checking for clearing 198,196 75,133
Due from banks 6,079,775 11,620,380

$ 6414978 $ 11,779,386

The cash and cash equivalents of the consolidated cash flows and the related adjustments of the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, refer to the consolidated statements of cash
flows.
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7. DUE FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND CALL LOANS TO BANKS

Reserves for deposits - Type A
Reserves for deposits - Type B
Due from Central Bank - Financial
Call loans to banks

Others

December 31

2022 2021
$ 1,325,922 $ 2,921,318
5,907,742 5,166,200
2,003,091 2,001,086
8,502,951 2,865,016
46,084 27,690
$ 17,785,790 $ 12,981,310

Under a directive issued by the Central Bank, deposit reserves are determined monthly at prescribed rates
on average balances of customers” deposits. Type B deposit reserves are subject to withdrawal restrictions.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

December 31

2022 2021
Financial assets mandatorily classified as at FVTPL
Hybrid financial assets
Convertible bonds - domestic (include assets swap contracts) $ 8,493,617 $ 11,103,311
Structured debt - 557,116
8,493,617 11,660,427
Derivative financial assets
Currency swap contracts 764,815 211,885
Forward contracts 163,969 40,823
Interest rate swap contracts 18,252 5,528
Currency option contracts - call 19,851 4,630
Future exchange margins 24,710 -
Promised purchase contracts 26,010 -
1,017,607 262,866
Non-derivative financial assets
Commercial paper contracts 98,472,477 95,940,011
Negotiable certificates of deposit 35,244,589 42,434,758
Stocks and beneficiary certificates 1,622,397 1,601,385
135,339,463 139,976,154
$ 144,850,687 $ 151,899,447
Held-for-trading financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Currency swap contracts $ 622,379 $ 273,190
Forward contracts 133,419 62,885
Interest rate swap contracts 18,375 9,311
Currency option contracts - put 14,486 4,289
Promised purchase contracts - 40,404
788,659 390,079
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December 31

2022 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
When-issued government bonds $ - $ 49,567
Commercial paper contracts 219,506 1,691
219,506 51,258

$ 1008165 $ 441,337
(Concluded)

The Group engages in derivative transactions, including forward contracts, currency swap contracts and
currency option contracts, mainly for accommodating customers’ needs and managing the exposure
positions. As for the engagement in interest rate swap contracts and cross-currency swap contracts, its
purpose is to hedge risk of cash flow and risk of market value caused by the change of interest rates or
exchange rates. The Group strategy is to hedge most of the market risk exposures using hedging
instruments with market value changes that have a high negative correlation with the changes in the market
of the exposures being hedged.

The contract amounts (or notional amounts) of outstanding derivative transactions as of December 31, 2022
and 2021 were as follows:

December 31

2022 2021

Interest rate swap contracts $ 11,244,419 $ 14,010,914
Currency swap contracts 114,694,781 99,978,371
Forward contracts 30,015,167 10,506,426
Currency option contracts

Buy 912,929 388,971

Sell 728,593 307,351
Promised purchase contracts 15,000,000 12,900,000

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, financial assets at fair value through profit and loss under agreement to
repurchase were in the face amount of $86,836,200 thousand and $78,572,100 thousand, respectively.

Refer to Note 44 for information relating to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged as
security.

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

December 31

2022 2021

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI $ 1,968,197 $ 7,600,894
Investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI

Government bonds 20,281,761 21,349,542

Bank debentures 26,254,996 34,596,305

Corporate bonds 76,558,979 86,613,703

Overseas government bonds 2,091,497 2,721,421

Mortgage backed securities 2,565,229 2,467,423

(Continued)
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December 31

2022 2021
Commercial paper contracts $ 6,249,812 $ 6,384,497
Negotiable certificates of deposit 19,253,080 29,422,895

$ 155,223551  $ 191,156,680
(Concluded)

a. Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

These investments in listed, unlisted and emerging stocks are not held for trading. Instead, they are held
for medium- to long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the management elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognizing short-term fluctuations
in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of
holding these investments for long-term purposes.

The Group disposed stock classified as at FVTOCI for invested management purpose for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The fair value of stocks classified as at FVTOCI which had to be
disposed of were $6,740,837 thousand and $2,118,890 thousand and the accumulated gain or loss
related to the sold assets of $241,014 thousand loss and $202,172 thousand gain, respectively, were
transferred from other equity-unrealized valuation gain or loss on financial assets at FVTOCI to
retained earnings.

Dividends income from FVTOCI of $462,266 thousand and $250,765 thousand were recognized in
profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The dividends related to investments
held at the end of 2022 and 2021 were $137,406 thousand and $216,430 thousand, respectively.

b. Investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI

1) Refer to Note 44 for information relating to investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI pledged as
security.

2) Refer to Note 48 for information relating to the credit risk management and impairment assessment
of investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI.

3) Investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI under agreement to repurchase were in the face amount
of $87,026,300 thousand and $99,219,428 thousand as of on December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

10. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT INSTRUMENTS AS AT AMORTIZED COST

December 31,

2022

Government bonds $ 8,453,740
Bank debentures 2,561,252
Corporate bonds 4,739,723
Overseas government bonds 913,609
Negotiable certificates of deposit 9,000,000
25,668,324

Less: Allowance for impairment loss (3,018)
$ 25,665,306
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11.

12.

Refer to Note 44 for information relating to investments in debt instruments at amortized cost pledged as
security.

Refer to Note 48 for information relating to the credit risk management and impairment assessment of
investments in debt instruments at amortized cost.

Investments in debt instruments at amortized cost under agreement to repurchase was in the face amount of
$1,753,479 thousand, as of December 31, 2022.

BILLS AND BONDS PURCHASED UNDER RESELL AGREEMENTS

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, bonds and bills in the amounts of $3,951,998 thousand and $5,364,108
thousand respectively, had been purchased under resell agreements would subsequently be sold for
$3,954,765 thousand and $5,365,201 thousand before February 2023 and February 2022, respectively. As
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, bonds and bills purchased under resell agreements were sold under
repurchase agreements in the face amount of $3,144,400 thousand and $5,330,000 thousand, respectively.

RECEIVABLES, NET
December 31
2022 2021
Lease payment receivable $ - $ 17,072,141
Factored receivable 1,477,269 1,568,952
Interest receivable 1,555,067 980,147
Accounts receivable 226,068 1,557,850
Investment settlements receivable 196,270 88,899
Acceptances receivable 121,272 84,266
Settlement accounts receivable - trusteeship - 60,580
Others 162,162 145,595
3,738,108 21,558,430
Less: Unrealized interest revenue - 976,710
Allowance for credit losses 46,551 505,206
Receivables, net $ 3.691557 $ 20,076,514

The changes in gross carrying amount on receivables (less unrealized interest revenue) for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Lifetime ECLs

(Credit-
impaired
Financial
12-month ECLs  Lifetime ECLs Assets) Total
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 20,194,073 $ 135,829 $ 251,818 $ 20,581,720
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs 19,595 (19,547) (48) -
To lifetime ECLs (451,121) 451,121 - -
To credit-impaired financial assets (321) (191,626) 191,947 -
New financial assets purchased or
originated 19,391,228 666,774 1,492 20,059,494

(Continued)
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13.

Derecognition of financial assets
Write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2022

Balance at January 1, 2021
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
To lifetime ECLs
To credit-impaired financial assets
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2021

Lifetime ECLs

(Credit-
impaired
Financial
12-month ECLs  Lifetime ECLs Assets) Total
$(18,704,708) $ (102,245) $ (50,679) $(18,857,632)
- (3,133) (126,414) (129,547)
(17,424 ,825) (260,285) (230,817) (17,915,927)

$ 3023921 $ 676,888 $ 37,299 $ 3,738,108

$ 15,070,846 $ 86,938 $ 226,280 $ 15,384,064

6,718 (6,717) 1) -
(243,747) 243,747 - -
(318) (170,766) 171,084 -
23,168,363 35,373 2,017 23,205,753
(17,755,198) (49,206) (95,119) (17,899,523)
- - (51,147) (51,147)

(52,591) (3.540) (1.296) (57.427)

$ 20,194,073 $ 135,829 $ 251818 $ 20,581,720
(Concluded)

Rental equipment is held as collateral for the lease payment receivable. The Group is not allowed to sell or
re-pledge the collateral if the lessee has no arrears.

The Group provides an appropriate allowance for doubtful debts for the assessment of receivables. Refer to
Note 14 for the details and changes in the allowance for doubtful debts of receivables.

Refer to Note 48 for the impairment loss analysis of receivables.

DISCOUNTS AND LOANS, NET

Short-term
Medium-term
Long-term

Export bill negotiated
Guaranteed overdraft
Overdue loans

Less: Allowance for credit losses

December 31

2022 2021
$ 70438914 $ 61,988,195
111,528,492 87,064,663
24,756,153 25,363,949
- 91,416
105,522 138,453
668,187 649,859
207,497,268 175,296,535
3,184,296 2,568,946

$ 204312972  $ 172,727,589
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The changes in gross carrying amount on discounts and loans for the years ended December 31, 2022 and

2021 were as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2022
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
To lifetime ECLs
To credit-impaired financial assets
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2022

Balance at January 1, 2021
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
To lifetime ECLs
To credit-impaired financial assets
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2021

Lifetime ECLs

(Credit-

impaired

Financial

12-month ECLs  Lifetime ECLs Assets) Total

$ 161,284,858 $ 12,775,541 $ 1,236,136 $ 175,296,535
478,268 (433,204) (45,064) -
(2,580,395) 2,580,395 - -
(62,692) (78,158) 140,850 -
122,894,215 12,039,761 431,430 135,365,406
(95,939,686) (9,364,707) (250,401) (105,554,794)
- - (107,784) (107,784)
2,567,724 (81,420) 11,601 2,497,905
$ 188,642,292 $ 17438208 $ 1416.768 $ 207,497,268
$ 167,034,025 $ 17,442,689 $ 1,696,982 $ 186,173,696
2,178,996 (2,175,684) (3,312) -
(1,837,260) 1,837,260 - -
(124,116) (10,627) 134,743 -
88,801,008 8,335,568 386,480 97,523,056
(93,977,152) (12,281,830) (620,015) (106,878,997)
- - (350,610) (350,610)
(790,643) (371,835) (8,132) (1,170,610)
$ 161,284,858 $ 12775541 $ 1.236.136 $ 175,296,535

The balance of the overdue loans of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 no longer include the
calculation of interest. The unrecognized interest revenue on the above loans amounted to $13,843 thousand
and $21,641 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group wrote off credits only upon completing the required legal

procedures.

Refer to Note 44 for information relating to discounts and loan assets pledged as security.

The Group provides an appropriate allowance for doubtful debts based on the assessment of discounts and
loans. Refer to Note 14 for the details and changes in the allowance for doubtful debts of discounts and

loans.

Refer to Note 48 for the impairment loss analysis of discounts and loans.
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14. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS

The change in allowance for credit loss and provisions for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

were as follows:

Allowance for Receivables

Balance at January 1, 2022
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
To lifetime ECLs
To credit-impaired financial
assets
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Change in model or risk parameters
Difference between IFRS 9 and
local requirements
Write-offs
Withdrawal after write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2022

Allowance for Discounts and
Loans

Balance at January 1, 2022
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
To lifetime ECLs
To credit-impaired financial
assets
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Change in model or risk parameters
Difference between IFRS 9 and
local requirements
Write-offs
Withdrawal after write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2022

Reserve for Losses on Guarantees
Contracts and Financing
Commitments

Balance at January 1, 2022
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Change in model or risk parameters
Difference between IFRS 9 and
local requirements
Withdrawal after write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2022

Lifetime ECLs
(Credit-impaired

Accumulated
Amount under

Difference
Between IFRS 9
and Local

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Financial Assets) IFRS 9 Requirements Total
$ 270,996 $ 28,036 $ 190,494 $ 489,526 $ 15,680 $ 505,206
976 (976) - - - -
(9,536) 9,536 - - - -
(197) (62,509) 62,706 - - -
246,606 1,034 495 248,135 - 248,135
(244,700) (23,763) (31,494) (299,957) - (299,957)
269 112,806 90,933 204,008 - 204,008
- - - - 1,377 1,377
- (3,133) (126,414) (129,547) - (129,547)
- - 5,762 5,762 - 5,762
(261,192) (59.926) (167.423) (488,541) 108 (488,433)
$ 3.222 $ 1,105 $ 25,059 $ 29,386 $ 17,165 $ 46,551
Difference
Lifetime ECLs Accumulated Between IFRS 9
(Credit-impaired Amount under and Local
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Financial Assets) IFRS 9 Requirements Total
$ 382,077 $ 108,320 $ 238,363 $ 728,760 $ 1,840,186 $ 2,568,946
13,687 (13,660) 27) - - -
(20,826) 20,826 - - - R
(35,235) (1,342) 36,577 - - -
288,894 23,191 105,279 417,364 - 417,364
(217,132) (46,515) (70,763) (334,410) - (334,410)
44,343 (4,022) 77,494 117,815 - 117,815
- - - - 412,809 412,809
- - (107,784) (107,784) - (107,784)
- - 18,468 18,468 - 18,468
11,243 3,751 374 15,368 75.720 91,088
$ 467,051 $ 90,549 $ 207981 $ 855581 $ 2328715 $ 3184206
Difference
Lifetime ECLs Accumulated Between IFRS 9
(Credit-impaired Amount under and Local
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Financial Assets) IFRS 9 Requirements Total
$ 121,611 $ 15,461 $ - $ 137,072 $ 1,705,435 $ 1,842,507
2,414 (2,414) - - - R
(360) 360 - - - -
70,116 3,914 - 74,030 - 74,030
(77,003) (7,946) - (84,949) - (84,949)
(14,414) (881) - (15,295) - (15,295)
- - - - (132,825) (132,825)
- - - - 22,783 22,783
1,395 34 - 1,429 339 1,768
$ 103759 $ 8,528 $ - $ 112287 $ 1595732 $ 1,708,019
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15.

Allowance for Receivables

Balance at January 1, 2021
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
To lifetime ECLs
To credit-impaired financial
assets
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Change in model or risk parameters
Difference between IFRS 9 and
local requirements
Write-offs
Withdrawal after write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2021

Allowance for Discounts and
Loans

Balance at January 1, 2021
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
To lifetime ECLs
To credit-impaired financial
assets
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Change in model or risk parameters
Difference between IFRS 9 and
local requirements
Write-offs
Withdrawal after write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2021

Reserve for Losses on Guarantees
Contracts and Financing
Commitments

Balance at January 1, 2021
Transfers
To 12-month ECLs
New financial assets purchased or
originated
Derecognition of financial assets
Change in model or risk parameters
Difference between IFRS 9 and
local requirements
Withdrawal after write-offs
Exchange rate or other changes

Balance at December 31, 2021

Lifetime ECLs
(Credit-impaired

Accumulated
Amount under

Difference
Between IFRS 9
and Local

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Financial Assets) IFRS 9 Requirements Total
$ 220,734 $ 25,785 $ 175,691 $ 422,210 $ 8,995 $ 431,205
15 (15) - - - R
(7,240) 7,240 - - - R
(181) (63,234) 63,415 - - R
60,806 18,739 270 79,815 - 79,815
(2,540) (70) (79,571) (82,181) - (82,181)
203 39,698 53,523 93,424 - 93,424
_ - - - 6,734 6,734
- - (51,147) (51,147) - (51,147)
- - 29,681 29,681 - 29,681
(801) (107) (1,368) (2,276) (49) (2,325)
$ 270,996 $ 28.036 $ 190494 489,526 $ 15,680 $ 505,206
Difference
Lifetime ECLs Accumulated Between IFRS 9
(Credit-impaired Amount under and Local
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Financial Assets) IFRS 9 Requirements Total
$ 530,975 $ 194,967 $ 352,887 $ 1,078,829 $ 1,383,894 $ 2,462,723
60,664 (60,662) ) - - -
(11,553) 11,553 - - - -
(61,599) (5,281) 66,880 - - -
164,073 22,718 67,406 254,197 - 254,197
(273,884) (53,561) (218,053) (545,498) - (545,498)
(22,162) 301 303,470 281,609 - 281,609
- - - - 476,026 476,026
- - (350,610) (350,610) - (350,610)
- - 16,424 16,424 - 16,424
(4.437) (1.715) (39) (6.191) (19.734) (25.925)
$ 382,077 $ 108.320 $ 238.363 $ 728760 $ 1.840.186 $ 2568.946
Difference
Lifetime ECLs Accumulated Between IFRS 9
(Credit-impaired Amount under and Local
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Financial Assets) IFRS 9 Requirements Total
$ 131,948 $ 21,026 $ - $ 152,974 $ 1,686,303 $ 1,839,277
2,833 (2,833) - - - R
94,994 5,976 - 100,970 - 100,970
(100,365) (5,770) - (106,135) - (106,135)
(7,431) (2,799) - (10,230) - (10,230)
- - - - 5,193 5,193
- - - - 13,936 13,936
(368) (139) - (507) 3 (504)
$ 121611 $ 15,461 $ - $ 137,072 $ 1705435 $ 1842507

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Chun Teng New Century Co., Ltd. (the formly known as IBTS) decided to transfer the operating rights and
property of brokerage of securities to SinoPac Securities Corp. Ltd., which was approved by the
stockholders in the temporary stockholders” meeting on May 25, 2016. The total price of the transfer was
$390,000 thousand, and the business transfer date was set as on September 26, 2016.

The subsidiary ended the securities business on September 23, 2016, which was dissolved and liquidated on
November 11, 2016. The dissolution had been approved by the board of directors’ in their meeting on

October 17, 2016.
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From September 30, 2016, the self-operating and new financial assets business of the operating department
of the subsidiary has ended and conformed to the discontinued operations definition of IFRS 5. Hence, the
operating department mentioned above has been regarded as discontinued operations in the consolidated
financial report.

On March 29, 2022, the liquidators of the subsidiary resolved to distribute the remaining property
amounting to $159,544 thousand for the third time, and the Bank has received the liquidation proceeds in
proportion to its shareholding ratio and transferred the remaining balance of the book value balance of the
subsidiary to receivables.

The details and cash flows information of discontinued operations are exhibited below:

For the Year
Ended
December 31,
2021
Interest revenue $ 167
Interest expenses -
Net interest 167
Net revenue other than interest
Gain on financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss 10,975
Foreign exchange gain, net -
Other net revenue (loss) other than interest 141
Total net revenue other than interest 11,116
Net revenue 11,283
Operating expenses
Employee benefits expenses 7,951
Depreciation and amortization expense 3,178
Others general and administrative expenses 5,121
Total operating expenses 16,250
Income tax expense -
Loss from discontinued operations before elimination (4,967)
Elimination of transactions with related parties 270
Loss from discontinued operations $ (4,697)
Loss from discontinued operations attributable to:
Owners of the Bank $ (4,685)
Non-controlling interests (12)
$ (4,697)
Net cash flows used in operating activities $ (274)
Net cash flows generated from investing activities 55
Net cash flows used in financing activities (2,790)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 5,983
Net cash inflow (outflow) $ 2974
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16. SUBSIDIARIES

a. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Percentage of

Ownership (%) Audited
December 31 by
Investor Investee Main Business 2022 2021 Remark CPA
The Bank China Bills Finance Co. Bonds underwriting, dealing 28.37 28.37 Founded in 1978 Yes
(CBF) and brokerage of securities
IBT Holding Corp. (IBTH)  Holding company 100.00 100.00 Founded in 2006 in California Yes
IBT Leasing Leasing - 100.00 Founded in 2011 (Please refer to Yes
Note 17)
IBTM Investment consulting 100.00 100.00 Founded in 2000 Yes
Chun Teng New Century Investment (former securities 99.75 99.75 Founded in 1961 (Note 1) Yes
Co., Ltd. (formerly firm)
known as IBTS)
IBT VII Venture Capital Venture capital 100.00 100.00 Founded in 2014 (Note 2) Yes
Co., Ltd.
IBT Leasing IBT International Leasing Leasing - 100.00 Founded in 2011 in mainland Yes
Corp. China (Note 3)
Chun Teng New IBTS Holding B.V.I. Holding company 100.00 100.00 Founded in 2003 in the British Yes
Century Co., Ltd. Limited (IBTSH) Virgin Islands
(formerly known
as IBTS)
IBTSH IBTS Financial (HK) Investment 100.00 100.00 Founded in 2003 in Hong Kong Yes
Limited
IBTS Asia (HK) Limited Securities and investment 100.00 100.00 Founded in 2004 in Hong Kong Yes
IBTH EverTrust Bank Banking 91.78 91.78 Founded in 1994 in California Yes

Note 1: Dissolved on November 11, 2016.

Note 2: The Bank’s board of directors resolved on July 21, 2022 to reduce the capital by shares of its
subsidiary, IBT LEASING CO., LTD. ("IBT Leasing™), and as a subsidiary of IBT Leasing,
all of the shares of IBT VII Venture Capital Co., Ltd. will be offset and returned to the Bank,
calculated on the basis of the total number of shares issued after IBT Leasing’s
profit-to-capital increase base date. The capital reduction ratio is 20.98%, and the capital
reduction amount is $710,614 thousand. After the capital reduction, IBT Leasing's paid-in
capital is 2,677,290 thousand yuan. The record date for the capital reduction was October 19,
2022.

Note 3: All shares are held commonly with IBT VII Venture Capital Co., Ltd. before April 2022; and
after the consolidation on December 1, 2022 (please refer to Note 17), all shares are held by
Jih Sun IBT International Leasing Co.

Proportion of Ownership and
Voting Rights Held by
Non-controlling Interests

December 31

Name of Subsidiary Principal Place of Business 2022 2021
CBF Taipei 71.63% 71.63%
The summarized financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations:

December 31

2022 2021
BE
Equity attributable to:
Owners of CBF $ 6,234,894 $ 7,250,266
Non-controlling interests of CBF 15,743,106 18,306,919

$ 21,978,000 $ 25,557,185
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For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Net revenue $ 1,645,023 $ 2,847,301
Net profit from continuing operations $ 1,040,282 $ 1,857,666
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year (3.412,299) (582,975)
Total comprehensive income for the year $ (2,372,017) $ 1,274,691

Profit attributable to:
Owners of CBF $ 295,115 $ 526,998

Non-controlling interests of CBF 745,167 1,330,668
$ 1,040,282 $ 1,857,666

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of CBF $ (672,913) $ 361,615

Non-controlling interests of CBF (1,699,104) 913,076
$ (2,372,017) $ 1,274,691

Net cash inflow (outflow) from:
Operating activities $ 3,322,693 $ (1,536,468)

Investing activities (6,678) 41,743

Financing activities (3,313,055) 1,784,603

Net cash inflow $ 2,960 $ 289,878
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of

CBF $ 865,780 $ 836,921

17. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD, NET
Investments in Associates
December 31
2022 2021

Associates - Jih Sun IBT International Leasing Co. $ 6,230,729 $ -

Associates - Beijing Sunshine Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. 1,011,042 880,879

$ 7241771 $ 880,879

The Bank was jointly invested in Beijing Sunshine Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. with China Everbright
Bank and China CYT Holdings Co. The Bank’s investment amounted to RMB200,000 thousand with the
shareholding ratio of 20%, and Beijing Sunshine Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. has begun operation since
August 17, 2020.
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On July 21, 2022, the Bank’s board of directors resolved to merge IBT Leasing with Jih Sun International
Leasing & Finance Co., Ltd. (referred to as “Jih Sun Leasing™). In this merger, Jih Sun Leasing is the
surviving company and is renamed Jih Sun IBT International Leasing Co., Ltd. The share exchange ratio is
one IBT Leasing ordinary share for 0.5834 Jih Sun Leasing shares, with Jih Sun Leasing anticipating
issuing 156,193 thousand shares to the Bank. Merged conversion amounted to NT$6,198,618 thousand. The
record date of the merger is December 1, 2022. After the merger, the Bank will hold 44.48% shares of the
surviving company and has no control over it. Refer to Note 42 for information relating to disposal of IBT
Leasing.

Refer to Table 3 “Name, locations and other information of investees on which the Bank exercises
significant influence” and Table 4 “Information on Investments in Mainland China” for the nature of
activities, principal place of business and country of incorporation of the associate.

The financial information of the Bank’s affiliates is as follows:

Jih Sun IBT International Leasing Co.

December 31,
2022

Total assets $ 76,183,569
Total liabilities $ 66,645,612

For the Year
Ended
December 31,
2022

Net profit for the year $ 609,305
Total other comprehensive income for the year $ 630,781

Beijing Sunshine Consumer Finance Co., Ltd.

December 31

2022 2021
Total assets $ 55,118,326 $ 51554378
Total liabilities $ 50,049,146 $ 47,149.983
For the Year Ended December 31
2022 2021
Net profit for the year $ 598,891 $ 474,228
Total other comprehensive income for the year $ 598,891 $ 474,228
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18.

19.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Time deposits with original maturities more than 3 months
Pledged time deposits

Compensation account for payment

Call loans to securities corporation limited

Repurchase agreement margins

Others

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Carrying amounts of each class of

Land

Buildings

Machinery and computer equipment

Transportation equipment

Office and other equipment

Lease improvement

Construction in progress and prepayments for equipment

December 31

2022

$ 76,807

614,454
94,408

$ 785,669

2021

$ 9414
232,100
36,310
553,794
19,885
24,230

$ 875,733

December 31

$

29,930

$ 2,405,135

2022

781,970
1,193,110
252,007
25,146
37,471
85,501

The movements of property and equipment for the years ended December 31,

summarized as follows:

2021

$ 781,970
1,239,222
304,007
24,886
49,632
125,143
20,190

$ 2,545,050

2022 and 2021 are

Construction

in Progress
Machinery and Office and and
Computer Transportation Other Lease Prepayments
Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvement for Equipment Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 781,970 $ 1,906,173 $ 856,234 $ 76,998 $ 283,582 $ 407,191 $ 20,190 $ 4,332,338
Additions - 283 36,297 16,765 10,590 20,579 44,376 128,890
Disposals and scrapped - (84,016) (26,487) (18,318) (70,211) (7,445) (206,477)
Reclassification (6,112) 50 3,283 11,910 (27,191) (18,060)
Effect of foreign currency exchange

differences 1,707 840 5,385 15,242 23,174
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 781970 $ 1,906,456 $ 804110 $ 68,166 $ 284522 $ 384711 $ 29,930 $ 4,250,865
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ - $ 666,951 $ 552,227 $ 52,112 $ 233,950 $ 282,048 $ - $ 1,787,288
Disposals and scrapped - - (66,189) (18,998) (12,970) (44,010) - (142,167)
Depreciation expense 46,395 71,009 9,394 21,860 50,286 198,944
Other - (6,367) - (415) - (6,782)
Effect of foreign currency exchange

differences 1,423 512 4,626 10,886 17,447
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ - $ 713.346 $ 552103 $  43.020 $ 247,051 $ 299210 $ - $ 1.854.730
Carrying amounts
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 781970 $ 1193110 $ 252,007 $ 25,146 $ 37,471 $ 85,501 $ 29,930 $ 2405135

(Continued)
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Construction

in Progress
Machinery and Office and and
Computer Transportation Other Lease Prepayments
Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvement for Equipment Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 781,970 $ 1,905,429 $ 842,003 $ 80,683 $ 282,030 $ 393,822 $ 21,209 $ 4,307,146
Additions - 744 35,674 5,860 7,684 16,365 30,735 97,062
Disposals and scrapped - - (32,332) (9,305) (5,151) (827) - (47,615)
Reclassification - - 11,823 60 584 2,289 (31,608) (16,852)
Effect of foreign currency exchange

differences - - (934) (300) (1.565) (4.458) (146) (7.403)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 781,970 $ 1,906,173 $ 856,234 $ 76,998 $ 283582 $ 407,191 $ 20,190 $ 4,332,338
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ - $ 620,571 $ 515993 $ 49,109 $ 216,796 $ 232,110 $ - $ 1,634,579
Disposals and scrapped - - (31,790) (7,162) (4,966) (826) - (44,744)
Depreciation expense - 46,380 69,177 10,302 22,928 53,627 - 202,414
Reclassification - - (429) - 429 - - -
Effect of foreign currency exchange

differences - - (724) (137) (1.237) (2.863) - (4,961)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ - $ 666,951 $ 552,227 $ 52,112 $ 233950 $ 282,048 $ - $ 1,787,288
Carrying amounts
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 781970 $ 1239222 $ 304,007 $ 24,886 $ 49,632 $ 25,143 $ 20,190 $ 2,545,050

(Concluded)

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:
Buildings 5-55 years
Machinery and computer equipment 3-25 years
Transportation equipment 3-5 years
Office and other equipment 3-15 years
Lease improvement 5-8 years

20. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
a. Right-of-use assets

December 31

2022 2021
Carrying amounts
Buildings $ 416,289 $ 314,304
Machinery 588 -
Transportation equipment 1,457 16,967
Office equipment 1,790 1,667

$ 420124  $ 332938
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For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021

Additions to right-of-use assets $ 234,118 $ 66,793
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets

Buildings $ 131,665 $ 144,909

Machinery 294 -

Transportation equipment 11,998 10,667

Office equipment 1,051 1,178

$ 145,008 $ 156.754

Except for the aforementioned addition and recognized depreciation, the Group did not have significant
sublease or impairment of right-of-use assets during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Lease liabilities

December 31

2022 2021
Carrying amounts $ 432,826 $ 350,370

Range of discount rate for lease liabilities was as follows:

December 31

2022 2021
Buildings 0.67%-5.13% 0.44%-5.70%
Machinery 1.36% -
Transportation equipment 2.05%-2.17% 2.04%-6.00%
Office equipment 0.63%-4.42% 0.65%-2.76%

Material lease-in activities

Due to the rental of buildings, the Group had entered into various leasehold contracts with others,
respectively. These contracts are gradually expiring before the end of March 2033. As of December 31,
2022 and 2021, refundable deposits paid under operating lease amounted to $24,849 thousand and
$35,026 thousand, respectively.

Other lease information

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 29,616 $ 20,037
Expenses relating to low-value asset leases $ 6,643 $ 2654
Total cash outflow for leases $ (175,104) $ (201,108)
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21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31

2022 2021
Carrying amounts of each class of
Computer software $ 643,769 $ 894,295
Goodwill 1,165,895 1,051,756

$ 1,809,664 $ 1,946,051

The changes in of intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are summarized as
follows:

Computer
Software Goodwill Others Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 2,427,072 $ 1,051,756 $ 6,760 $ 3,485,588
Additions 50,212 - - 50,212
Disposals (85,748) - - (85,748)
Reclassification 11,207 - - 11,207
Effect of foreign currency

exchange differences 7,532 114,139 740 122,411
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 2410275 $ 1165895 $ 7.500 $ 3,583,670
Accumulated amortization and

impairment
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 1,532,777 $ - $ 6,760 $ 1,539,537
Amortization 279,257 - - 279,257
Disposals (51,472) - - (51,472)
Reclassification - - - -
Effect of foreign currency

exchange differences 5,944 - 740 6,684
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 1766506 $ - $ 7.500 $ 1,774,006
Carrying amounts
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 643,769 $ 1,165,895 $ - $ 1.809.664

(Continued)
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Computer

Software Goodwill Others Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 2,376,821 $ 1,082,563 $ 6,960 $ 3,466,344
Additions 35,324 - - 35,324
Disposals (221) - - (221)
Reclassification 17,501 - - 17,501
Effect of foreign currency

exchange differences (2,353) (30,807) (200) (33,360)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 2427072 $ 1051756 $ 6.760 $ 3,485,588
Accumulated amortization and

impairment
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 1,252,140 $ - $ 6,960 $ 1,259,100
Amortization 281,967 - - 281,967
Disposals (221) - - (221)
Reclassification 649 - - 649
Effect of foreign currency

exchange differences (1,758) - (200) (1,958)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 1532777 $ - $ 6.760 $ 1539537
Carrying amounts
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 894295 $ 1,051,756 $ - $ 1,946,051

(Concluded)

The goodwill was recognized from IBT Holding Corp.’s purchase of 100% of the stocks of Ever Trust
Bank on March 30, 2007. The investment cost exceeded the fair value of net identifiable assets.

When the Group executes the goodwill impairment test, Ever Trust Bank was used as a cash-generating unit,
and the recoverable amount is assessed by the value in use of the cash-generating unit. The key assumptions
base the expected future cash flows on the actual profit conditions of the cash-generating units. On the
assumption of sustainable operations, the Group discounts the net cash flows from those of the operations
of the cash-generating units in the next five years in order to calculate the value in use. Under the
estimation of the Group, there is no occurrence of impairment.

The computer software and other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis of 3 and 15 years,
respectively.
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22. OTHER ASSETS

23.

24,

December 31

2022
Refundable deposits $ 759,006
Life insurance cash surrender value 339,879
Prepayments 72,679
Others 187,412
$ 1358976

DEPOSITS FROM THE CENTRAL BANK AND OTHER BANKS

2021

$ 659,672
319,399
109,618
201,023

$ 1,289,712

December 31

2022 2021
Call loans from banks $ 15,355,374 $ 25,107,334
Deposits from Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. 5,000,000 -
Call loans from the Central Bank 3,072,270 2,768,967
$ 23427644 $ 27.876.301

BILLS AND BONDS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

December 31

2022 2021

Bills $ 85,784,753 $ 78,017,892
Government bonds 15,869,712 21,680,879
Corporate bonds 59,111,195 66,112,201
Bank debentures 18,841,944 21,607,056
Beneficiary securities 549,153 534,588

$ 180,156,757 $ 187,952,616
Date of agreements to repurchase Before Before

December 2023 August 2022
Amount of agreements to repurchase $ 180,489,847 $ 188,018,898
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25.

26.

27.

PAYABLES

Investment settlements payable

Settlement accounts payable - trusteeship

Acceptances
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accrued expenses
Collections payable
Factored payables
Checks for clearing
Others

DEPOSITS AND REMITTANCES

Deposits
Checking
Demand
Time
Savings deposits
Export remittances

BANK DEBENTURES PAYABLE

Subordinate bonds forth issued in 2014; fixed 2.20% interest rate;
maturity: May 5, 2022; interest paid annually and repayment of

the principal at maturity

Subordinate bonds first issued in 2015; fixed 1.85% interest rate;
maturity: December 29, 2022; interest paid annually and
repayment of the principal at maturity

Subordinate bonds A first issued in 2016; fixed 1.70% interest rate;
maturity: June 29, 2023; interest paid annually and repayment of

the principal at maturity

Subordinate bonds B first issued in 2016; fixed 1.80% interest rate;
maturity: June 29, 2024; interest paid annually and repayment of

the principal at maturity

Subordinate bonds first issued in 2017; fixed 1.97% interest rate;
maturity: September 5, 2027; interest paid annually and repayment

of the principal at maturity
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December 31

2022
$ 153,613

121,272
48,380
993,372
1,347,725
109,902
179,931
198,196
120,510

$ 3272901

2021

$ 150,764
60,579
84,266

132,720
353,405
1,296,025
81,188
114,189
75,133
119,137

$ 2,467,406

December 31

2022 2021
$ 5717211 $ 7,578,807
43,666,389 69,422,918
226,765,043 163,221,744
16,996,792 19,016,234
19,551 139,722
$ 293,164,986  $ 259,379,425

December 31

2022

1,500,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2021

$ 1,500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

2,000,000
(Continued)



28.

Subordinate bonds type A second issued in 2017; fixed 4.00%
interest rate; no maturity, interest paid annually

Subordinate bonds type B second issued in 2017; fixed 1.82%
interest rate; maturity: December 27, 2027; interest paid annually
and repayment of the principal at maturity

Subordinate bonds type A first issued in 2018; fixed 4.00% interest
rate; no maturity, interest paid annually

Subordinate bonds type B first issued in 2018; fixed 1.75% interest
rate; maturity: June 29, 2028; interest paid annually and repayment
of the principal at maturity

Subordinate bonds first issued in 2019; fixed 1.50% interest rate;
maturity: June 6, 2026; interest paid annually and repayment of
the principal at maturity

Subordinate bonds first issued in 2021; fixed 0.90% interest rate;
maturity: June 25, 2028; interest paid annually and repayment of
the principal at maturity

Bonds second issued in 2021; fixed 0.65% interest rate; maturity:
December 22, 2024; interest paid annually and repay the principal
at maturity

Subordinate bonds first issued in 2022; fixed 2.30% interest rate;
maturity: September 27, 2029; interest paid annually and
repayment of the principal at maturity

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Bank borrowings

Commercial papers payable

Principal of structured products

Funds obtained from the government - intended for specific types of
loans

Repurchase agreement margins

a. Bank borrowings

Short-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings
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December 31

2022 2021
$ 750,000 $ 750,000
1,000,000 1,000,000
700,000 700,000
1,050,000 1,050,000
2,500,000 2,500,000
1,000,000 1,000,000
500,000 500,000
1,100,000 -
$ 13,600,000 $ 15,000,000

(Concluded)

December 31

2022 2021
$ 52,000 $ 12,569,012
2,221,655 5,697,210
962,184 44,900
1,908,040 2,269,710
12,929 -
$ 5,156,808 $ 20,580,832

December 31

2022 2021
$ 52,000 $ 5,517,631
- 7,051,381
52,000 $ 12,569,012

(Continued)



December 31

2022 2021
Interest rate interval
New Taiwan dollars 2.14% 1.00%-1.30%
U.S. dollars - 1.51%-1.80%
Renminbi - 4,05%-4.85%

(Concluded)
b. Commercial papers payable

December 31

2022 2021
Commercial papers payable $ 2,223,000 $ 5,700,000
Less: Unamortized discount (1,345) (2,790)

$ 2,221,655 $ 5,697,210

Interest rate interval 1.50%-2.09% 0.30%-1.14%
c. Funds obtained from the government - intended for specific types of loans

December 31

2022 2021
Funds obtained from the government - intended for specific types
of loans $ 1,908,040 $ 2,269,710

The Lending Fund is a development fund established by the Executive Yuan to promote the
development of the financial market economy. The Bank applied for the quota and appointed
Export-Import Bank of the Republic of China, China Trust Commercial Bank, and Taiwan Enterprise
Bank to act as the managing bank wherein the loan quota is available for use.

29. PROVISIONS

December 31

2022 2021
Provisions for employee benefits $ 164,618 $ 233,827
Provisions for losses on guarantees contracts 1,615,298 1,750,786
Provisions for losses on financing commitments 92,721 91,721

$ 1872637 $ 2,076,334

Refer to Note 14 for the details and changes in the provision for losses on guarantees contracts and
financing commitments.
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Contribution Plan

The pension system under the “Labor Pensions Ordinance™ applicable to the Bank and its subsidiaries is the
required retirement plan stipulated by the government, except that of Ever Trust Bank which is not more
than 10% of the annual salary of the respective employees. A pension of 6% of an employee’s monthly
salary is paid to the Labor Insurance Bureau under each individual’s account.

The amount to be paid in accordance with the percentage specified in the proposed plan for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 was recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in
the total amounts of $76,175 thousand and $69,573 thousand, respectively.

Defined Benefit Plan

The defined benefit plans adopted by the Group in accordance with the Labor Standards Law is operated by
the government of the ROC. Pension benefits are calculated on the basis of the length of service and
average monthly salaries of the 6 months before retirement. The Bank contribution amounts equal to 2% of
total monthly salaries and wages to a pension fund administered by the pension fund monitoring committee.
Pension contributions are deposited in the Bank of Taiwan in the committee’s name. Before the end of each
year, the Bank assesses the balance in the pension fund. If the amount of the balance in the pension fund is
inadequate to pay retirement benefits for employees who conform to retirement requirements in the next
year, the Bank is required to fund the difference in one appropriation that should be made before the end of
March of the next year. The pension fund is managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor; the
Bank has no right to influence the investment policy and strategy.

The amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets in respect of the Group’s defined benefit plans
were as follows:

December 31

2022 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation $ 477,559 $ 541,439
Fair value of plan assets (312,941) (307,612)
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 164,618 $ 233,827
Movement in net defined benefit liabilities were as follows:

Present Value

of the Defined Net Defined

Benefit Fair Value of Benefit

Obligation the Plan Assets Liabilities

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 566,114 $ (303,379) $ 262,735
Service cost
Current service cost 7,567 - 7,567
Net interest expense (income) 2,086 (1,517) 569
Recognized in profit or loss 9,653 (1,517) 8,136

(Continued)
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Present Value

of the Defined Net Defined
Benefit Fair Value of Benefit
Obligation the Plan Assets Liabilities
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) $ - $ (3,754 $ (3,754)
Changes in demographic assumptions 9,799 - 9,799
Changes in financial assumptions (2,570) - (2,570)
Experience adjustments (458) - (458)
Other - 149 149
Recognized in other comprehensive income 6,771 (3.605) 3,166
Employer contributions - (18,569) (18,569)
Benefits paid (19,458) 19,458 -
Business paid (5,127) - (5,127)
Other (16,514) - (16,514)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 541439 $ (307,612) $ 233,827
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 541,439 $ (307,612) $ 233,827
Service cost
Current service cost 8,088 - 8,088
Net interest expense (income) 2,309 (1.777) 532
Recognized in profit or loss 10,397 (1,777) 8,620
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - (22,976) (22,976)
Changes in financial assumptions (28,680) - (28,680)
Experience adjustments (3,710) - (3,710)
Recognized in other comprehensive income (32,390) (22,976) (55,366)
Employer contributions - (12,824) (12,824)
Benefits paid (32,248) 32,248 -
Other (9,639) - (9,639)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 477559 $ (312,941) $ 164,618

Through the defined benefit plans under the Labor Standards Law, the Group is exposed to the following

risks:

a. Investment risk: The plan assets are invested in domestic and foreign equity and debt securities, bank
deposits, etc. The investment is conducted at the discretion of the Bureau or under the mandated
management. However, in accordance with relevant regulations, the return generated by plan assets
should not be below the interest rate for a 2-year time deposit with local banks.

b. Interest risk: A decrease in the government bond interest rate will increase the present value of the
defined benefit obligation; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plans” debt investments.

c. Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the future

salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.
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31.

The actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out by qualified
actuaries. The significant assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

December 31

2022 2021

Discount rate(s) 1.38% 0.50%-0.63%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 2.50% 2.50%

If possible reasonable changes in each of the significant actuarial assumptions will occur and all other
assumptions will remain constant, the present value of the defined benefit obligation would increase
(decrease) as follows:

December 31

2022 2021
Discount rate(s)
0.25% increase $ (7.165) $ (8.916)
0.25% decrease $ 7,385 $ 9,207
Expected rate(s) of salary increase
0.25% increase $ 7167 $ 84877
0.25% decrease $ (6,991) $ (8,643)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual changes in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation
of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

December 31

2022 2021
Expected contributions to the plans for the next year $ 13,051 $ 18,929
Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 7.9-8.5 years 8.7-9.0 years

OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31

2022 2021

Guarantee deposits received $ 179,781 $ 2,242,552
Advance revenue 53,746 59,158
Payable for custody 27,482 33,048
Receipts in suspense and pending settlement 116,753 266,004
Deferred revenue 114,343 109,030
Others 8.255 9,787

$ 500,360 $ 2719579
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32. EQUITY

a. Capital stock

December 31

2022 2021
Number of stock authorized (in thousands) 3,500,000 3,500,000
Amount of capital stock authorized $ 35,000,000 $ 35,000,000
Number of stocks issued and fully paid (in thousands)
Common stock 2,733,992 2,733,006
Preferred stock 299,014 300,000
Amount of stocks issued $ 30,330,063 $ 30,330,063

Fully paid common stock, which have a par value of $10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to
dividends.

On June 27, 2018, the Bank’s board of directors resolved to issue 300,000 thousand Series A preferred
stock, with a par value of $10. The subscription date was November 29, 2018, and finished the
registration on December 21, 2018. The rights and obligations of Series A preferred stockholders are as
follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

The interest rate of Series A preferred stock shall be based on the 5-year Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
rate on the pricing date and the interest shall be calculated on the issue price per share; the interest
rate is initially set at 0.94375% plus 3.30625% (total 4.25%) per annum. The interest Rate Swap
issued price per share. Interest rate per annum will be reset on the day after the 5.5-year anniversary
of the issue date and the day after each subsequent period of 5.5 years thereafter. Dividends for the
Series A preferred stock shall be declared once every year in cash. After the stockholders™ approval
of the Bank’s financial statements at its annual stockholders™ meeting, the board of directors may
set a record date for the distribution of dividends declared from the previous year. Dividend
distribution for the years of issuance and redemption shall be calculated pursuant to actual issued
days of the given year.

The Bank has sole discretion on dividend issuance of Series A preferred stock including, but not
limited to, its discretion to not declare dividends when no profit is recorded, or insufficient profit is
recorded for preferred stock dividends, or preferred stock dividend declaration would render the
Bank of International Settlement (BIS) ratio below the level required by the law or relevant
authorities, or due other necessary consideration. The Series A preferred stockholders shall not have
any objection towards the Bank’s cancellation of preferred stock dividend declaration. Undeclared
or under declared dividends are not cumulative and are not paid in subsequent years with profit.

Unless the authorities take over the Bank, order the Bank to suspend, terminate or liquidate its
business in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Capital Adequacy and Capital
Category of Banks”, Series A preferred stockholders shall have the same priority as the common
stockholders in the event of liquidation, both second to tier 2 capital instrument holder, depositor,
and common creditor, but will be capped at the value of issuance.

Series A preferred stockholders have no voting rights at the annual stockholders’ meeting and
cannot elect directors. However, the preferred stockholders should have voting rights at the
preferred stockholders’ meeting and also at the stockholders” meeting when it involves the rights
and obligations of the preferred stockholders, and the aforesaid stockholders are eligible for director
candidacy. Series A preferred stockholders have voting rights at Series A stockholders’ meeting.
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5) The preferred stock issued by the Bank shall not be converted within one year from the date of
issuance. Starting from the day after the expiration of one year, stockholders of convertible
preferred stock may apply for the conversion of part or all of the preferred stock held, from
preferred stock to common stock during the conversion period (conversion ratio 1:1). After the
convertible preferred stocks are converted into common stock, their rights and obligations are the
same as the common stock. The issuance of annual dividends for the convertible preferred stock is
based on the ratio of the actual number of issued days in the current year to the number of days
within the whole year. However, stockholders who converted their preferred stock into common
stock before the date of distribution of dividends (interests) in each year shall not participate in the
distribution in that year but may participate in the distribution of common stock surplus and
additional paid in capital.

6) After five and a half years from the issue date, the Bank may, subject to the competent authority’s
approval, redeem a portion or all of the outstanding shares of preferred stock any time at the issue
price. The rights and obligations associated with any remaining outstanding shares of preferred
stock shall continue as specified in the agreement. If the Bank’s board of directors approves the
distribution of dividends in the year the Bank redeems the outstanding shares of preferred stock - A,
the dividends payable shall be calculated at the ratio of the number of days outstanding from
beginning of year to the redemption date to total days in a fiscal year.

7) When the Bank issues new shares for cash, Series A preferred stockholders have the same
subscription rights as the common stockholders.

As of December 31, 2022, 986 thousand of preferred Series A shares has been converted into common
stock.

Capital surplus

December 31

2022 2021
May be used to offset a deficit, distributed as dividends, or
transferred to capital stock (Note)
Treasury share transactions $ 9,061 $ 3193
Must be used to offset a deficit
Exercised disgorgement 10 -
Unclaimed dividends 1,957 1,341
1,967 1,341
May not be used for any purpose
Share of changes in capital surplus of subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures 2,624 2,200
$ 13,652 $ 6734

Note: Such capital surplus may be used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the Bank has no deficit,
such capital surplus may be distributed as cash dividends or transferred to capital stock (limited
to a certain percentage of the Bank’s capital surplus and once a year).
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C.

Special reserves

December 31

2022 2021
Trading loss and default loss reserve $ 133,955 $ 133,955
Employee transfer or placement expenditure related to financial
technology development 15,176 15,902
Other equity deductions special reserves 485,479 -
According to the Bank’s policy - 647,926

$ 634,610 $ 797,783

The Bank reclassified reserve for trading loss and default losses as of December 31, 2010 to a special
reserve account, which is part of equity, in accordance with Order No. 10010000440 issued by the FSC.

In addition, according to Rule No. 10510001510 issued by the FSC on May 25, 2016, a public bank
shall appropriate to special reserve an amount in the range of 0.5% to 1% of net profit after tax from
2016 to 2018; from 2017, the same amount of employee transfer or placement expenditure arising from
financial technology development shall be reversed from the balance of the special reserve. The above
order was repealed by the FSC Rule No. 10802714560 on May 15, 2019, which stipulates that in 2019,
a public bank shall no longer continue to provide a special reserve for the purpose of protecting the
interests of domestic bank practitioners in the development of financial technology. The Bank is
allowed to reverse the special reserve appropriated in 2016 to 2018 at the amounts of the following
expenses.

1) Expenses for staff transfer or placement, including the related expenses for assisting employees to
transfer between departments or groups, and the payment of retirement and severance benefits to
employees that are superior to labor-related laws and regulations.

2) Expenses for financial technology or banking business development, i.e., expenditure for education
and training to enhance or develop employee functions.

Under related regulations, the Bank should appropriate or reverse to a special reserve according to the
net debit balance of other equity. Any special reserve appropriated may be reversed to the extent that
the net debit balance reverses and thereafter distributed.

Retained earnings and dividends policy

1) The Bank’s dividend policy approved by the stockholders” meeting of the Bank on June 17, 2022 is
as follows:

Under the dividends policy as set forth in the amended Articles, where the Bank made profit in a
fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilized for paying taxes, offsetting losses of previous years,
setting aside as legal reserve 30% of the remaining profit until the accumulated legal reserve equals
the Bank’s paid-in capital, setting aside or reversing a special reserve in accordance with the laws
and regulations, and then any remaining profit together with any undistributed retained earnings
shall be used by the board of directors as the basis for proposing a distribution plan, which should
be resolved in the stockholders” meeting for distribution of dividends and bonus to stockholders.

In the event of a shortfall in “other previously accumulated net deductions from sharcholders’
equity” when the Bank sets aside a portion of distributable earnings for special reserve, it shall first
set aside an equal amount of special reserve from undistributed earnings from the previous period.
If any shortfall remains, the Bank shall make an allocation from the undistributed earnings of the
current period that also take account of net profit plus other items of the current period.
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2)

In principle, common stock dividends shall not be less than 20% of the available for distribution
retained earnings minus the amount for preferred stock dividends. Cash dividend shall not be less
than 20% of the total dividend for the current year. When the amount of legal reserve has not
reached the Bank’s total capital, the amount of cash dividends cannot exceed 15% of the Bank’s
paid-in capital.

The Bank shall consider its future capital budget plan, financial needs for various businesses, and
financial structure in the adoption of a stable and balanced dividend policy. The board of directors
may, according to the actual needs, propose adjustments to the dividend distribution, and submit the
proposal for approval in the stockholders’ meeting.

The dividend policy before June 17, 2022 is as follows:

Under the dividends policy as set forth in the amended Articles, where the Bank made profit in a
fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilized for paying taxes, offsetting losses of previous years,
setting aside as legal reserve 30% of the remaining profit until the accumulated legal reserve equals
the Bank’s paid-in capital, setting aside or reversing a special reserve in accordance with the laws
and regulations, and then any remaining profit together with any undistributed retained earnings
shall be used by the board of directors as the basis for proposing a distribution plan, which should
be resolved in the stockholders” meeting for distribution of dividends and bonus to stockholders.

In principle, common stock dividends shall not be less than 20% of the available for distribution
retained earnings minus the amount for preferred stock dividends. Cash dividend shall not be less
than 20% of the total dividend for the current year. When the amount of legal reserve has not
reached the Bank’s total capital, the amount of cash dividends cannot exceed 15% of the Bank’s
paid-in capital.

The Bank shall consider its future capital budget plan, financial needs for various businesses, and
financial structure in the adoption of a stable and balanced dividend policy. The board of directors
may, according to the actual needs, propose adjustments to the dividend distribution, and submit the
proposal for approval in the stockholders™ meeting. For the policies on distribution of compensation
of employees and remuneration of directors, please refer to Note 37.

Appropriation of earnings to legal reserve shall be made until the legal reserve equals the Bank’s
paid-in capital. Legal reserve may be used to offset deficit. If the Bank has no deficit and the legal
reserve has exceeded 25% of the Bank’s paid-in capital, the excess may be transferred to capital or
distributed in cash. In addition, the Banking Law limits the appropriation of cash dividends to 15%
of the Bank’s paid-in capital.

The appropriations of earnings for 2021 and 2020 have been proposed by the Bank’s board of
directors and approved in the stockholders” meetings on June 17, 2022 and July 20, 2021,
respectively. The appropriations and dividends per share were as follows:

2021 2020
Appropriation  Appropriation
of Earnings of Earnings
Legal reserve $ 612,126 $ 31,879
Special reserve appropriated (reversed) (163,173) (598,570)
Cash dividends - common stock 819,145 545,454
Preferred stock dividends 127,500 127,500
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e. Other equity items

1) Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations

For the Year Ended December 31

Balance at January 1

Exchange differences arising on translating the financial
statements of foreign operations

Income tax related to gains or losses arising on translating the
financial statements of foreign operations

Balance at December 31

2) Unrealized valuation gains (losses) on financial assets at FVOCI

2022 2021
$ (946,067) $ (697,554)
1,235,070 (280,110)
(123.116) 31,597
$ 165,887 $  (946,067)

For the Year Ended December 31

Balance at January 1
Recognized during the period
Unrealized loss - debt instruments
Unrealized gain (loss) - equity instruments
Tax effects
Loss allowance of debt instruments
Other comprehensive income recognized in the period
Cumulative unrealized gain (loss) of equity instruments
transferred to retained earnings due to disposal

Balance at December 31

f.  Non-controlling interests

2022 2021

$ 460,588 $ 755,208
(3,234,967) (801,597)
(878,191) 660,949
199,694 45,834
(4,527) 2,276
(3.917,991) (92,538)
241,014 (202.172)
$(3.216,389) $ 460,588

For the Year Ended December 31

Balance at January 1
Attribute to non-controlling interests
Shares of profit for the year
Capital surplus
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign entities
Unrealized valuation gains and losses on FVTOCI
Debt instruments
Equity instruments
Tax effects
Actuarial profit and loss of defined benefit plans
Capital reduction of subsidiaries for cash received by
non-controlling interest
Cash dividends distributed by subsidiary

Balance at December 31
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2022 2021

$ 18,786,481  $ 18,696,870
773,884 1,359,081
1,072 1,023

53,324 (13,738)
(2,678,980) (659,981)
(73,189) 153,944
272,127 86,627
19,179 (424)

(793) -
(865,780) (836,921)

$ 16287325 $ 18786481



g. Treasury stock
Unit: In Thousands of Shares

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Number of shares at January 1 5,737 5,737
Increase during the year (3,215) -
Number of shares at December 31 2,522 5,737

On March 19, 2020, the Bank’s board of directors proposed to acquire treasury stocks transfer to
employees. The acquiring period is from March 20, 2020 to May 19, 2020. As of May 19, 2020, the
Bank had acquired 5,737 thousand shares of treasury stocks for $38,304 thousand. The Bank had
transferred 3,215 thousand shares to employees at the price of $5.9 per share in February 2022. As a
result, treasury shares decreased by $21,467 thousand.

Under the Securities and Exchange Act, the Bank shall neither pledge treasury shares nor exercise
stockholders’ rights on these shares, such as the rights to receive dividends or to vote.
33. NET INTEREST

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Interest revenue
Discounts and loans $ 5,657,787 $ 3,906,226
Investments in securities 2,098,279 1,647,880
Installment sales and leases 1,175,802 1,123,081
Due from the Central Bank and call loans to banks 231,985 42,766
Others 183,904 110,266

9,347,757 6,830,219
Interest expense

Deposits 2,553,367 1,022,516
Deposits from the Central Bank and other banks 311,396 56,628
Bank debentures 272,574 303,664
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements 1,167,635 429,084
Others 461,290 358,400

4,766,262 2,170,292

$ 4581495 $ 4,659,927
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34.

35.

36.

SERVICE FEE INCOME, NET

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Service fee income
Guarantee business $ 991,594 $ 1,137,545
Loan business 375,866 264,743
Underwrite business 465,949 515,301
Trust business 56,042 52,295
Lease business 351,496 332,113
Credit examining business 119,155 113,041
Import and export business 20,749 14,518
Factoring business 20,023 21,962
Insurance agent business 30,535 39,420
Others 75,995 99,704
2,507,404 2,590,642
Service charge
Others 158,063 132,072

$ 2349341 $ 2,458,570

GAINS (LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL ASSETS OR LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Realized gains or losses

Bills $ (63,007) $ 130,350
Stocks and beneficiary certificates (41,202) 398,192
Bonds 64,236 85,834
Derivatives 2,898,072 (753,856)
2,858,099 (139.480)

Gains (losses) on valuation
Bills (276,140) (21,488)
Stocks and beneficiary certificates 36,567 13,500
Bonds (85,480) 27,628
Derivatives 283,375 342,550
(41,678) 362,190
Interest revenue 1,082,993 628,788

$ 3899414 $ 851,498

REALIZED GAINS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Realized income - debt instruments $ (308,294) $ 159,857
Dividend revenue 462,266 250,765

$ 153,972 $ 410,622
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37. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and wages $ 2,452,751 $ 2,246,789

Labor insurance and national health insurance 152,772 154,255

Others 296,651 266,385
Post-employment benefits

Pension expenses 84,478 77,395

Pension benefits 27 689

$ 2,986,679 $ 2,745513
The Bank accrued compensation of employees and remuneration of directors at the rates of 1%-2.5% and
no higher than 2.5%, respectively, of net profit before income tax, compensation of employees, and
remuneration of directors.

The amounts and accrual rates of employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Accrual rate

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Compensation of employees 1.00% 1.25%
Remuneration of directors 1.25% 2.50%
Amount

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Compensation of employees $ 53,625 $ 26,170
Remuneration of directors $ 67031 $ 52,339

If there is a change in the amounts after the annual consolidated financial statements were authorized for
issue, the differences are recorded as a change in the accounting estimate by next year.

The compensation of employees and remuneration of directors for 2021 and 2020, which were approved by
the Bank’s board of director on March 16, 2022 and March 22, 2021, respectively, were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2021 2020
Cash Stock Cash Stock
Compensation of employees $ 26,170 $ - $ 16,056 $ -
Remuneration of directors 52,339 - 32,111 -

There are no differences between the 2021 and 2020 actual amounts of compensation of employees and
remuneration of directors paid and the 2021 and 2020 amount recognized in the annual consolidated
financial statements.
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The Board had been proposed compensation of employees and remuneration of directors for the year ended
December 31, 2022 on March 14, 2023, were as follows:

For the Year
Ended
December 31,
2022

Compensation of employees - cash $ 53,625

Remuneration of directors $ 67,031

Information for the employee’ compensation and remuneration of directors proposed by the Board is
available at the Market Observation Post System website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Property and equipment $ 198,944 $ 201,932
Right-of-use assets 145,008 154,058
Intangible assets 279,257 281,967

$ 623,209 $ 637,957

. OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Taxation $ 270,595 $ 223,347
Rental fees 21,339 14,248
Management fees 40,975 40,146
Computer operating and consulting fees 342,033 304,538
Entertainment fees 36,475 34,934
Professional services fees 122,582 107,322
Advertisement fees 57,613 55,143
Postage fees 78,053 79,359
Others 315,937 279,413

$ 1,285,602 $ 1,138,450
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40. INCOME TAXES RELATING TO CONTINUING OPERATIONS

a.

Income tax recognized in profit or loss

The major components of tax expense were as follows:

Current tax
In respect of the current year
Income tax on unappropriated earnings
Adjustment of prior years

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year

Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 932,622 $ 857,233
13,385 681
(21,896) (17,524)
924,111 840,390
(115,240) 193,958
$ 808871 $ 1,034,348

A reconciliation of accounting profit and income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2022

and 2021 were as follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations

Income tax expense calculated at the statutory rate

Realized gain on investment in equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income

Nondeductible expenses and tax-exempt income in determining
taxable income

Tax credits for Foreign Income Source Tax Act

Unrecognized unused loss carryforwards

Unrecognized deductible temporary differences

Additional income tax under the Alternative Minimum Tax Act

Income tax on unappropriated earnings

Overseas income taxes

Adjustments for prior years’ tax

Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss

Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax

Translation of foreign operations

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Unrealized gains or losses on financial assets at FVTOCI

Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
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For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 6617226  $ 4,238,968
$ 1753826  $ 1,332,227
(33,044) 61,816
(910,041) (408,277)
(163,968) -
(82,977) (14,275)
89,600 (57,066)

18 32,671

13,385 681
163,968 104,095
(21.896) (17.524)

$ 808871  $ 1034348

For the Year Ended December 31

2022

$ (119,277)
(6,693)
471,822

$ 345,852

2021

$ 34,227
148
132,460

$ 166,835



C.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Deferred tax assets

Temporary differences

FVTPL financial instruments

Property and equipment

Exchange differences on
translating the financial
statements of foreign
operations

Defined benefit plans

Allowance for bad debts

Provisions

Impairment of assets

Other

Unused loss carryforwards

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences
Share of profit of associates and

joint ventures accounted for
using equity method
Exchange differences on
translating the financial
statements of foreign
operations
Other

Recognized
in Other
Recognized Compre-

Opening in Profit or hensive Closing
Balance Loss Income Other Balance
$ 59700 $ 17926 $ - $ 13005 $ 90,631

14,238 (3,609) - 770 11,399
141,621 - (95,898) (39,162) 6,561
40,656 (6,800) (6,693) 3,171 30,334
472,771 98,945 - (119,704) 452,012
51,068 35,370 - - 86,438
460 (497) - 37 -
23,530 (5,549) 428,800 1,418 448,199
96,699 (96.699) - - -

$ 900743 $ 39.087 $ 326,209 $ (140.465) $1.125574
$ 787574 $ (79918) $ - $ (102,765) $ 604,891
- - 23,379 - 23,379

42,936 (6) (43,022) - (92)

$ 830510 $ (79924) $ (19.643) $ (102,765) $ 628,178

- 66 -



For the year ended December 31, 2021

Recognized
in Other
Recognized Compre-
Opening in Profit or hensive Closing
Balance Loss Income Other Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences
FVTPL financial instruments $ 79383 $ (19547) $ - $ (136) $ 59,700
Property and equipment 11,544 3,043 - (349) 14,238
Exchange differences on
translating the financial
statements of foreign
operations 107,396 - 34,226 - 141,622
Defined benefit plans 47,991 (6,522) 148 (961) 40,656
Allowance for bad debts 479,203 (2,747) - (2,983) 473,473
Provisions 58,468 (7,400) - - 51,068
Impairment of assets 5,286 (4,804) - (22) 460
Other 18,043 (6,686) 12,998 (825) 23,530
Unused loss carryforwards 88,573 7,423 - - 95,996

$ 895887 $ (37.240) $ 47372 $ (5.276) $ 900,743

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences
Share of profit of associates and
joint ventures accounted for

using equity method $ 618,067 $ 169,507 $ - $ - $ 787,574
Other 175,188 (12,789) (119.463) - 42,936
$ 793255 $ 156,718 $ (119,463) - $ 830,510

Assessment of the income tax returns

The income tax returns of the Bank through 2019 have been assessed by the tax authorities. The income
tax returns of the Bank’s subsidiaries IBTM and IBT VII Venture Capital Co., Ltd. through 2020 have
been assessed. Except for 2018, the income tax returns of CBF through 2019 have been assessed by the
tax authorities.
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41. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Unit: NT$ Per Share

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021

Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations $ 180 $ 0.63
From discontinued operations - -

Total basic earnings per share $ 180 $ 0.63
Diluted earnings per share

From continuing operations $ 162 $ 057

From discontinued operations - -

Total diluted earnings per share $ 162 $ 057
Earnings used in calculating earnings per share and weighted average number of common stocks are as
follows:

Net Profit for the Year
For the Year Ended December 31
2022 2021
Profit for the period attributable to owners of the Bank $ 5,034,471 $ 1,840,842
Less: Declared preferred stock dividend 127,500 127,500
Earnings used in the computation of basic earnings per share 4,906,971 1,713,342
Less: Loss for the period from discontinued operations used in the

computation of basic earnings per share from discontinued

operations - (4,685)
Earnings used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per

share from continuing operations $ 4906971 $ 1,718,027

Stock (In Thousand Shares)

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Weighted average number of common stocks in computation of basic
earnings per share 2,730,822 2,727,269
Effect of potentially dilutive common stocks:
Compensation of employees 6,982 3,782
Convertible preferred stock 299,265 300,000
306,247 303,782
Weighted average number of common stocks in the computation of
diluted earnings per share 3,037,069 3,031,051
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If the Bank offered to settle compensation paid to employees in cash or stocks, then the Bank will assume
the entire amount of the compensation will be settled in stocks and the dilutive effect of the resulting
potential stocks will be included in the weighted average number of stocks outstanding used in the
computation of diluted earnings per share. Such dilutive effect of the potential stocks will be included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share until the number of stocks to be distributed to employees is
resolved in the following year.

. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
On July 21, 2022, the Bank’s board of directors resolved to merge IBT Leasing with Jih Sun International

Leasing & Finance Co., Ltd. In this merger, Jih Sun Leasing is the surviving company and is renamed Jih
Sun IBT International Leasing Co., Ltd. As of December 1, 2022, the record date of the merger, the Bank

lost control of its subsidiary.

a. Analysis of assets and liabilities on the date control was lost

IBT Leasing
and Its
Subsidiaries
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,540,264
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 75,819
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income 192,036
Receivables, net 17,290,604
Property and equipment, net 55,406
Other financial assets 59,819
Deferred tax assets 152,372
Other assets 181,426
Liabilities
Other financial liabilities (15,459,505)
Payables (387,676)
Guarantee deposits (1,686,872)
Deferred tax liabilities (102,764)
Other liabilities (100,321)
Net assets disposed of $ 2,810,608
b. Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
IBT Leasing
and Its
Subsidiaries
Consideration for the merger $ 6,198,618
Net assets disposed of 2,810,608
Reclassification of accumulated exchange difference from equity
to profit or loss due to the loss of control 173,891
Gain on disposal $ 3214119
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c. Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
IBT Leasing

and Its
Subsidiaries

Change in cash and cash equivalents $ (2,540,264)

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The transactions, account balances, income and loss of the Bank and its subsidiaries (which are the related
parties of the Bank) are all eliminated upon consolidation, so they are not disclosed in this note. Except for
other transactions disclosed in other notes, the transactions between the Group and other related parties are
as follows:

a. The related parties and their relationships with the Group are summarized as follows:

Related Party Relationship with the Bank

IBT Il Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (IBT Il Venture)  Associates
(dissolved on March 31, 2017) (company in

liquidation)
Beijing Sunshine Consumer Finance Co., Ltd. Associates
Jih Sun IBT International Leasing Co. (Jih Sun Associates
IBT)
Yi Chang Investment Co., Ltd. The Bank’s legal director
Ming Shan Investment Co., Ltd. The Bank’s legal director
Taixuan Investment Co., Ltd. Other related party
TCC Chemical Corporation (TCC) Other related party
Others The Group’s management and their other related

party

b. The significant transactions and balances with the related parties are summarized as follows:

1) Deposits (part of deposits and remittances)

Interest
Ending Balance Expense Rate (%)
For the year ended December 31, 2022
Associates $ 32,061 $ 41 0.00-1.05
Others 9,274,633 91,361 0.00-6.93

$ 0306604 $ 01402

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Associates $ 261 $ - 0.03-0.04
Others 10,555,219 53,679 0.00-6.29

$ 10,555,480 $ 53,679
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2)

3)

Loan

For the year ended
December 31, 2022

Maximum Ending
Balance Balance

Interest
Income

Rate (%)

Associates $ 241,272 $ 241,272 $ 2,547 2.259-5.014
Others 672,000 672,000 6,578 1.954-2.293
$ 913,272 $ 913272 $ 9125
For the year ended
December 31, 2021
Others $ 430,000 $ 430,000 $ 5,068 1.179
December 31, 2022
Difference
of Terms of
the Trans-
Maximum Non- actions with
Balance Ending Normal performing Unrelated
Category Name (Note) Balance Loans Loans Collateral Parties
Other loans Jih Sun IBT $ 241,272 $ 241,272 $ 241,272 $ - Real estate None
and check
Other loans TCC $ 430,000 $ 430,000 $ 430,000 $ - Real estate None
Other loans Ming Shan $ 55,000 $ 55,000 $ 55,000 $ - Certificates None
Investment of deposit
Other loans Yi Chang $ 67,000 $ 67,000 $ 67,000 $ - Certificates None
Investment of deposit
Other loans Taixuan $ 120,000 $ 120,000 $ 120,000 $ - Certificates None
Investment of deposit
December 31, 2021
Difference
of Terms of
the Trans-
Maximum Non- actions with
Balance Ending Normal performing Unrelated
Category Name (Note) Balance Loans Loans Collateral Parties
Other loans TCC $ 430,000 $ 430,000 $ 430,000 $ - Real estate None

Note: The maximum balance of daily totals for each category of loan.

Service fee income (part of service fee income, net)

Others

For the Year Ended December 31

2022

$ 5 $

2021

14

Service fee income is earned by providing authentication, custody and fund purchase services.
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4) Other expenses (part of other general and administrative expense)

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021

Others $ 5,600 $ 5,650

Other expenses are donations.
5) Rental income and others (part of other net revenue other than interest)

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021

Others $ 479 $ 552

Rental income received by the department is revenue from leasing contract of providing part of the
office and equipment and management service contract.

6) Notes and bonds transaction - Cumulative transaction amount

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Sales Under Purchases

Repurchase Under Resell
Related Party Purchases Sales Agreements Agreements
Others $ 48754 $ - $ - $ -

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 391,262 $ 386,402
Post-employment benefits 6,021 14,454
Stock-based payments 6,360 -

$ 403,643 $ 400,856

The remuneration of directors and other key management personnel is reviewed by the remuneration
committee and determined by the Bank’s board of director or chairman.

The terms of the transactions with related parties are similar to those for third parties, except for the
preferential interest rates given to employees for savings and loans. These rates should be within certain
limits.

Under the Banking Law Article 32 and 33, except for consumer loans and government loans, credits

extended by the Bank to any related party should be 100% secured, and the terms of credits extended to
related parties should be similar to those for third parties.
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44,

45,

PLEDGED ASSETS

December 31

2022 2021
Financial assets at FVTPL $ 6,404,835 $ 3,900,978
Financial assets at FVTOCI 2,672,541 15,076,563
Investment in debt instruments at amortized cost 8,483,463 -
Receivables - 629,434
Discounts and loans 7,032,245 7,780,357
Pledged time deposits - 232,100
Compensation account for payment - 36,310

$ 24593,084 $ 27,655,742

Under the requirement for joining the Central Bank’s Real-time Gross Settlement (RTGS) clearing system,
the Bank provided time deposits (parts of other financial assets) and negotiable certificates of deposits (part
of financial assets at FVTPL and financial assets at FVTOCI) as collateral for day-term overdrafts. The
pledged amount is adjustable based on the respective overdraft amount, and at the end of the day, the
unused part can be used for liquidity reserve. The above financial assets were debt and equity investments
and were mainly provided as collateral for exchange clearing, interest rate swap contracts, trust
compensation, and for EverTrust Bank to issue certificates of deposit in the United States. Besides, the
above loans were provided as collateral for EverTrust Bank to apply for credit limits with Federal Home
Loan Bank of San Francisco. Pledged time deposits and compensation account for payment (both were
parts of other financial assets) have been provided as collaterals or short-term loans.

Under the requirement of credit given by other banks, subsidiaries provided checks issued by their
customers as collaterals.
SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS

In addition to those mentioned in other notes, as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group had
commitments as follows:

December 31

2022 2021
Office decorating and contracts of computer software
Amount of contracts $ 60,613 $ 41,599
Payments for construction in progress and prepayments for
equipment 29,930 20,190
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46. TRUST BUSINESS UNDER THE TRUST LAW

Balance Sheet of Trust Accounts

December 31

2022 2021
Trust assets
Petty cash $ 100 $ 100
Bank deposits 2,100,051 1,820,544
Financial assets 4,009,473 4,236,190
Receivables 64 27
Prepayments 9,409 1,222
Real estate 6,947,042 6,121,444
Structured products 62,781 45,854
Other assets 368 42
Total trust assets $ 13,129,288 $ 12225423
Trust liabilities and capital
Payables $ 2,754 $ 1,787
Unearned receipts 1,268 1,180
Taxes payable 4,150 4,203
Guarantee deposits received 27,608 39,020
Other liabilities 984 981
Trust capital 12,903,294 12,024,438
Provisions and accumulated profit and loss 189,230 153,814
Total trust liabilities and capital $ 13,129,288 $ 12,225423

Income Statements of Trust Accounts

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Trust revenue
Interest revenue $ 9,078 $ 1,106
Rent revenue 116,862 109,739
Other revenue 1,929 3,280
127,869 114,125
Trust expenses
Management fees (3,598) (3,880)
Service charge (10,245) (13,480)
Tax (14,131) (14,114)
Other expenses (12,808) (12,672)
Income tax expense (709) (25)

(41,491) (44,171)
$ 86378 $ 69,954

Note: The above income accounts of the trust business were not included in the Group’s income
statement.
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Trust Property List

December 31

2022 2021
Petty cash $ 100 $ 100
Bank deposits 2,100,051 1,820,544
Stocks 257,680 228,378
Funds 2,824,681 3,468,761
Bonds 927,112 539,051
Land 6,134,471 5,302,344
Buildings 812,571 819,100
Receivables 64 27
Prepayments 9,409 1,222
Structured products 62,781 45,854
Other 368 42

$ 13,129,288 $ 12225423

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Fair value of financial instruments not carried at fair value
1) Financial instruments significant difference between carrying amount and fair value
Except as detailed in the following table, the management considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the condensed consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair values cannot be reliably measured.

December 31

2022 2021
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Investments in debt
instruments at amortized
cost $ 25,665,306 $ 25,561,220 $ - 3 -
Financial liabilities
Bank debentures payable 13,600,000 13,770,715 15,000,000 15,150,259
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2) The fair value hierarchy

Financial Instrument December 31, 2022

Items at Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments in debt
instruments at amortized
cost $ 25561220 $ 5510591 $ 20,050,629 $ -
Financial liabilities
Bank debentures payable 13,770,715 - 13,770,715 -
Financial Instrument December 31, 2021
Items at Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities
Bank debentures payable $ 15,150,259 $ - $ 15150259 $ -

Refer to quoted market prices for fair value if there are public quotations on bank debentures
payable with active market. If quoted market prices are not available, the fair value is determined by
using a valuation technique or counterparty quotation.

Fair value information - financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis

1) The fair value hierarchy of the financial instruments as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

December 31, 2022

ltem Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL
Stocks and beneficial certificates $ 1,622,397 $ 438,582 $ 991,071 $ 192,744
Bills 98,472,477 - 98,472,477 -
Hybrid financial assets 8,493,617 227,462 757,778 7,508,377
Negotiable certificates of
deposit 35,244,589 - 35,244,589 -
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Equity instruments 1,968,197 977,353 147,570 843,274
Bills 6,249,812 - 6,249,812 -
Debt instruments 127,752,462 16,015,145 111,737,317 -
Negotiable certificates of
deposit 19,253,080 - 19,253,080 -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL 219,506 - 219,506 -
Derivative financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL 1,017,607 24,710 992,897 -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL 788,659 - 788,659 -
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2)

ltem

Non-derivative financial instruments

Assets
Financial assets at FVTPL
Stocks and beneficial certificates
Bills
Hybrid financial assets
Negotiable certificates of
deposit
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Equity instruments
Bills
Debt instruments
Negotiable certificates of
deposit
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Assets

Financial assets at FVTPL
Liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

December 31, 2021

Total

$ 1,601,385
95,940,011
11,660,427
42,434,758

7,600,894
6,384,497
147,748,394
29,422,895

51,258

262,866

390,079

Level 1

879,772

435,348

6,646,416

19,466,751

$

Level 2

527,946
95,940,011
1,245,732
42,434,758
118,575
6,384,497
128,281,643
29,422,895

51,258

262,866

390,079

Level 3

193,667

9,979,347

835,903

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purpose of measuring the fair values

In a fair deal, the transaction is fully understood and there is willingness to achieve by the two sides
in exchange of assets or settle of liabilities, fair value is the amount settled. Financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets refer to quoted market prices
for fair value. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair value is determined by using a

valuation technique.

a) Marking-to-market

This measurement should be used first. Following are the factors that should be considered
when using marking-to-market:

i. Ensure the consistency and completeness of market data.

ii. The source of market data should be transparent, easy to access, and should come from

independent resources.

iii. Listed securities with high liquidity and representative closing prices should be valued at

closing prices.

iv. Unlisted securities which lack tradable closing prices should use quoted middle prices from

independent brokers and follow the guidelines required by regulatory authorities.

b) Marking-to-model

The marking-to-model is used if marking-to-market is infeasible. This valuation methodology is
based upon the market parameters to derive the value of the positions and incorporate estimates,
as well as assumptions consistent with acquirable information generally used by other market
participants to price financial instruments.
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Fair values of forward contracts used by the Group are estimated based on the forward rates
provided by Reuters. Fair values of interest rate swap and cross-currency swap contracts are
based on counterparties’ quotation, using the Murex+ information system to capture market data
from Reuters for calculating the fair value assessment of individual contracts. Option trading
instruments use option pricing model commonly used in the market (ex: Black-Scholes model)
to calculate the fair value.

i. Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Active markets are
markets with all of the following conditions: (i) the products traded in the market are
homogeneous, (ii) willing parties are available anytime in the market, and (iii) price
information is available to the public.

ii. Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

iii. Level 3 - inputs not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs. i.e., option
pricing model of historical volatility, due to historical volatility could not represent the
overall market participants’ volatility expectations of the future).

3) Reconciliation of the financial instruments classified in Level 3

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Financial Assets at Fair Value Financial
Through Profit or Loss Assets at Fair

Value
Through
Financial Assets Hybrid Equit Other Total
Financial quity Compre-
Instruments .

Assets hensive

Income Equity

Instruments

Beginning balance $ 9,979,347 | $ 193,667 | $ 835,903 | $ 11,008,917

Recognition in profit or loss -
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (78,869) (52,260) - (131,129)

Recognition in other
comprehensive income -
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive

income - - 148,939 148,939
Purchases 2,450,800 226,341 6,000 2,683,141
Disposals (4,842,901) - (147,568) (4,990,469)
Transferred into Level 1 (Note) - (175,004) - (175,004)
Ending balance $ 7508377 9% 192,744 | $ 843,274 | $ 8,544,395




4)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Financial Assets at Fair Value| Financial
Through Profit or Loss Assets at Fair
Value
Through
Financial Assets Hybrid Equit Other Total
Financial Instgumgnts Compre-
Assets hensive
Income Equity
Instruments
Beginning balance $ 9,096,650 | $ 132,458 | $ 824,524 | $ 10,053,632
Recognition in profit or loss -
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (28,903) 18,095 - (10,808)
Recognition in other
comprehensive income -
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income - - 48,092 48,092
Purchases 16,714,300 43,949 12,000 16,770,249
Disposals (15,802,700) (203) (48,713)| (15,851,616)
Other - (632) - (632)
Ending balance $ 9979347 | $ 193,667 | $ 835,903 | $ 11,008,917

The assets held at the balance sheet date, which were included in the profit and loss and the
unrealized gains and losses for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, were consisted of
$69,305 thousand in loss and $2,871 thousand in profit, respectively.

The Group had no significant transfers in Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Note:

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

The stock transferred into Level 1 since the quoted price in active markets is available.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, certain debt instrument investments were transferred from
Level 2 to Level 1, which resulted from the change in the determination of fair value from the use of
valuation model with market parameters to the adoption of quoted prices in active markets. The
Group had no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the year ended December 31,

2022.

- 79 -




C.

5) Sensitivity to using reasonable alternative in assumption against Level 3 fair value

The fair value measurement of financial instruments is reasonable, although the use of different
valuation models or parameters may lead to different evaluation results. For the fair value
measurements of structured bonds which fall under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, they are
evaluated according to counterparty quotes; for bonds and convertible bonds for asset swaps which
have no quoted market prices, they are evaluated using the future cash flows discounted model.
Were there to be a 10% or 1 basis point change in either direction of the quotes from respective
counterparties or in discount rates and all other conditions remained the same, the effects on the
income and other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 would
be as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Movement: Effect on Profit and Loss Effect on-Other
Item Upward/ Comprehensive Income
Downward Favorable | Unfavorable | Favorable | Unfavorable
Convertible bond 1BP $ 972 $ @72 | $ - $ -
Equity instruments 10% 19,274 (19,274) 92,047 (92,047)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Movement: Effect on Profit and Loss Effect on Other
Item Upward/ Comprehensive Income
Downward Favorable | Unfavorable| Favorable | Unfavorable
Convertible bond 1BP $ 1,830 $ (1,830) $ - $ -
Equity instruments 10% 19,367 (19,367) 92,220 (92,220)

Transfer of financial assets

Transferred financial assets not derecognized

Most of the transferred financial assets of the Group that were not fully derecognized were securities
sold under repurchase agreements. Under the terms of these transfers, the right to the cash flows of the
transferred financial assets would be transferred to other entities, and the associated liabilities of the
Group’s obligation to repurchase the transferred financial assets at a fixed price in the future would be
recognized. Since the Group is restricted from using, selling, or pledging the transferred financial assets
within the transaction period, and is still exposed to interest rate risks and credit risks on these assets,
the transferred financial assets were not fully derecognized.
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December 31, 2022

Category of Financial Assets

Financial assets at fair value through gain or loss
Bills sold under repurchase agreements
Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Instruments in debt instruments measured at amortized cost
Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Securities purchase under resell agreements
Bonds sold under repurchase agreements

December 31, 2021

Category of Financial Assets

Financial assets at fair value through gain or loss
Bills sold under repurchase agreements
Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Financial assets at FVTOCI
Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Securities purchase under resell agreements
Bonds sold under repurchase agreements

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Carrying
Amount of
Transferred
Financial Assets

$ 85,700,809
869,873
84,650,560
1,699,045

3,146,398

Carrying
Amount of
Transferred
Financial Assets

$ 77,979,560
502,343
100,946,933

5,334,108

Carrying
Amount of
Associated

Financial
Liabilities

$ 85,784,753
929,161
88,825,894
1,520,674

3,096,275

Carrying
Amount of
Associated

Financial
Liabilities

$ 78,017,892
534,588
103,773,535

5,626,601

Certain transactions of the Bank and its subsidiaries are covered by enforceable master netting
agreements or similar agreements, or under similar repurchase agreements may not meet all offsetting
criteria under IFRSs. However, in these transactions, financial liabilities are allowed to be offset against
financial assets when any of the counterparties specifies to settle at net amounts. If no counterparty
specifies to settle at net amounts, the transactions will be settled at gross amounts instead. One of the
counterparties can decide to settle at net amounts if the other party of the transaction defaults.

The tables below present the quantitative information of financial assets and financial liabilities on the
balance sheets that had been offset or are covered by enforceable master netting arrangements or similar

agreements.

December 31, 2022

Gross Amounts
of Recognized Net Amounts of
Financial Financial
Gross Amounts Liabilities Assets
of Recognized Offset in the Presented in the

Financial Assets Financial Assets Balance Sheet Balance Sheet

Derivatives $ 991,597 $ - $ 991,597
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Balance Sheet

Related Amounts Not Offset in the

$  (435392)

Financial
Instruments
(Note)

Cash Collateral
Pledged Net Amount
$ (162.204) $ 394,001



Gross Amounts
of Recognized

Net Amounts of

Related Amounts Not Offset in the

Gross Amounts Financial Financial Balance Sheet
of Recognized Assets Liabilities Financial
Financial Financial Offset in the Presented in the Instruments Cash Collateral
Liabilities Liabilities Balance Sheet Balance Sheet (Note) Pledged Net Amount
Derivatives $ 788,659 $ - $ 788,659 $ (435,392) $ (17,175) % 336,092
Repurchase
agreements 180,156,757 - 180,156,757 (175,476.820) - 4,679,937
$ 180,945,416 $ - $ 180,945,416 $(175912.212) $ (17.175) $ 5,016,029
December 31, 2021
Gross Amounts
of Recognized Net Amounts of  Related Amounts Not Offset in the
Financial Financial Balance Sheet
Gross Amounts Liabilities Assets Financial
of Recognized Offset in the Presented in the Instruments Cash Collateral
Financial Assets Financial Assets  Balance Sheet Balance Sheet (Note) Pledged Net Amount
Derivatives $ 262.866 $ - $ 262.866 $ (56.086) $ (71922) §$ 134.858
Gross Amounts
of Recognized Net Amounts of  Related Amounts Not Offset in the
Gross Amounts Financial Financial Balance Sheet
of Recognized Assets Liabilities Financial
Financial Financial Offset in the Presented in the Instruments Cash Collateral
Liabilities Liabilities Balance Sheet Balance Sheet (Note) Pledged Net Amount
Derivatives $ 349,675 $ - $ 349,675 $ (56,086) $ (3.260) % 290,329
Repurchase
agreements 187,952,616 - 187,952,616 (184,711,607) - 3,241,009
$ 188,302,291 $ - $ 188,302,291 $(184.767.693) $ (3.260) $ 3.531.338
Note: Included non-cash financial collaterals.

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
a. Overview

For the potential expected and unexpected risk, the Group establishes a comprehensive risk
management system to distribute resource effectively and enhance competitiveness by ensuring that all
operating risks are controlled to an acceptable extent. The Group continues to engage actively in the
capital adequacy ratio with in the accordance to the regulator’s requirements and monitors to meet the
international requirement of the Basel Commission.

b. Risk management framework

Ultimate responsibility for setting the Bank’s risk appetite rests with the board of director. The Auditing
Department, Audit Committee and Compensation Committee report to the board of director. Risk
Management Committee, which is under the Chairman, deliberate the bank risk management
mechanism and the risk management proposals of the board of directors, supervising the risk
management of each risk and review the implementation effect. Assets and Liabilities Committee and
Loan Evaluation Subcommittee, which are under the President, hold the meetings for discussing and
considering risk management proposals regularly. The Risk Management Department is responsible for
establishing a total scheme of risk management and monitoring the execution of such management
scheme.
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China Bills Finance Corporation’s (CBF) board of directors has the ultimate responsibility for risk
framework decision making and oversees the implementation of risk management. Business risk
management which is headed by the President is comprised of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Management Committee, Business Committee and the Investment Commission for the joint
implementation of market risk, credit risk, operational risk control, and other set of business and
oversight of the audit office, and the business risk control management unit case. To effectively manage
the overall risk and risks associated with integration of information, CBF has defined risk assessment
methods and has summarized risk positions for the risk management group responsible for
implementing the risk management operations.

Credit risk

1)

2)

Sources and definition of credit risk

Credit risk is the potential loss due to the failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the
Group in accordance with agreed terms. The source of credit risks includes the subjects in the
balance sheet and off-balance sheet items.

Strategy/objectives/policies and procedures

a)

b)

c)

d)

Credit risk management strategy: The Bank implements the relevant provisions of the principles
of credit risk management requirement and establish the Bank’s credit risk management
mechanism to ensure that credit risk control is within effective but affordable range, and
maintain adequate capital, and execute sound management of the Bank credit risk, and achieve
operational and management objectives.

Credit risk management objectives: Through appropriate risk management strategies, policies
and procedures, the Bank’s credit risk management is carried out in accordance with the
principle of risk diversification to minimize potential financial losses and optimize risk and
rewards.

Sound risk management systems and control processes, strengthened information integration,
analysis and early warning validation, bring out credit management and monitoring functions to
ensure compliance with laws, regulations and group standards so as to maintain high credit
standards and asset quality.

Credit risk management policy: In order to establish the Bank’s risk management system and
ensure the development and sound operations of the Bank, and serve as the basis of business
risk management and compliance, the Bank stipulated its “Risk Management Policy” in
accordance with the “Implementation Rules of Internal Audit and Internal Control System of
Financial Holding Companies and Banking Industries” issued by the FSC. The Bank maintains
an adequate amount of capital within the Bank’s acceptable range of credit risk to achieve the
objectives of credit risk strategy and create maximum risk-adjusted returns.

Credit risk management process:
I.  Risk identification

Credit risk management process begins with the identification of existing and potential risks,
including all the transactions in banking book and trading book, balance sheet and
off-balance sheet transactions. With financial innovation, as new credit businesses become
increasingly complex; business executives in order do existing and new credit businesses,
should be fully aware of the complexity involved in the business of re-order business and
other cases or transactions to be able to identify any possibility of having an event of
default.
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iv.

Risk measurement
i) The Bank manages asset portfolios by the risk rating scale.

The risk rating scale qualifies the default possibilities of debtors and operation difficulty
possibilities of investees in the next year. Risk ratings must actually be scaled when the
individual credit and investment accounts are approved. The continual change of the
market gives rise to the change in credit or investment household. Therefore, risk ratings
must be reevaluated and updated often to adjust the risk rating scale when it is verified.

ii) Portfolio management:
e |t is used to ensure the risk of loan is within the tolerable scope.

® “Concentrative risks” are concentration-limited, avoiding the risks to be overly
centralized to sufficiently diversify the risk.

e |t achieves the optimal profits.
Risk communication

i) Internal reporting: Risk management position shall establish appropriate credit risk
reporting mechanism for regular statistical reporting and the preparation of a variety of
business risk management reports which contain correct, consistent, and real-time credit
risk reporting information to ensure any exceptions can be acted on immediately, and as
a reference for decision-making. The above communication may include asset quality,
portfolio rating classification status, and all kinds of exception reports.

ii) External disclosure: To comply with the requirements for capital adequacy supervisory
review and market discipline principles, the business director of credit risk level should
prepare reports in the format specified by the competent authority showing contents,
methods and frequency to provide information on the credit risk of the Bank’s
guantitative, qualitative indicators to illustrate the self-assessment and credit risk
management system and disclose information about capital and other capital adequacy
matters.

Risk monitoring

i) The Bank shall establish monitoring system to assess the changes in credit risk of
borrower or counterparty or issuer (e.g., bonds issuer and guarantor of issuers of equity
related products, derivatives counterparties’ credit rating information and credit
information), to serve timely detection of problems on assets or transactions, and take
immediate action to cope with the possible breach.

i) Besides monitoring the individual credit risk, the Bank also deal with credit portfolio
monitoring and management.

iii) Establish stringent credit processes, credit standards and loan management; the project
includes the credit factors that should be considered for new credit and credit transfer
period, commitment to the periodic review of credit, maintenance of credit records and
the proportion of various types of loans in the credit portfolio.

iv) Establish quota management system to avoid excessive concentration of credit risk to
nationality, industry types, same group, same relations, etc.
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v) Establish collateral management system to ensure that collaterals can be effectively
managed.

3) Credit risk management and framework

4)

a)

b)

d)

f)

9)

h)

Board of Directors: Responsible for authorizing and reviewing the credit risk management
strategies and approving the credit risk management framework. The strategy reflects the level
of risk that the Bank can tolerate and the level of profitability that the Bank expects to achieve
under various credit risks.

Audit Committee: Responsible for the stipulation and amendment on issues relating to the
internal control framework, effectiveness of the internal control framework, acquisition or
disposal of assets or derivatives, monitoring of directors’ self-interest issues, appointment or
dismissal of the CPA and internal auditors, and other important issues ruled by the FSC.

Risk Management Committee: Responsible for the risk management policies, various risk
management regulations, annual risk appetites, limits, risk management proposals for the board
of directors' approval and various risk management mechanisms, supervise and review credit,
market, operations, liquidity, information security, AML, personal data protection, climate
changes, emergencies and other risk management, improve the Bank’s risk management
mechanism to ensure the effective implementation of the Bank's risk management procedures.

Assets and Liabilities Committee: Holds asset/liability management meetings to inspect
asset/liability management, liquidity risk, interest rate sensitivity risk management, market risk,
BIS management, and is in charge of making decisions on policies.

Loan Evaluation Subcommittee: Reviews the loan cases rendered by the corporate credit
management department and retail credit management department. After passing the provisions,
the cases are still required to be submitted to the relevant management for review.

Loan Assets Quality Evaluation Meeting: In charge of formulating policies and strategies for
identifying the possibilities of loss on credit assets. The Bank evaluates the adequacy of the
allowance for credit assets.

Risk Management Department: Independent risk management unit which is in charge of risk
management and responsible for the related operations of credit risks. It ensures the Bank
follows the BASEL regulations, and is also responsible for the preparation of risk management
reports presented to the appropriate management, and plans to establish monitoring tools for
credit risk measurement.

Corporate Credit Management Department: Supervises the establishment of corporate finance
risk identification, measurement, monitoring and management, preparation of regulatory review
of credit grading, devising and enhancement of deed lists, deed for credit and guarantee amount
control, proper release and other release matters.

Retail Credit Management Department: Manages personal financial risk, identifies, measures,
monitors the allowance for bad debts, and prepares for bad debts presentation, loss assessment
and post-loan management.

The scope and characteristics of credit risk reports and measurement system

For the credit risks implicated in all products and business activities, new products and business, the
Bank regularly monitors the credit risk management and is authorized by the board of directors or
appropriate committee.
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5)

6)

7)

Credit risk measurement and control procedures include credit review, rating scoring, credit control,
post-loan management and collection operations. The risk management units regularly provide
analysis reports of various types of credit risk and asset quality in addition to the above operational
procedures for management indicators. In addition, the Bank also actively controls and periodically
reports the monitoring results to the board of directors to grasp the risk situations faced by the state,
the group, the industry, the same related parties and the related enterprise risks.

In order to understand the risk appetite and its changes in the financial environment and the impact
on capital adequacy, the Bank handles its credit according to the “Regulation on Stress Test
Operation for Banks™ and “Bank Credit Risk Stress Test Guidelines” issued by the FSC, as an
important basis for credit risk management, and continues to adjust the direction of business
development, credit policy and credit evaluation procedures.

Mitigation of risks or hedging of credit risk and monitoring the risk avoidance

The Bank primarily applies the following risk mitigation tools to reduce extent of credit risk
exposures: (1) by requiring the counterparty or third parties to provide collateral, (2) the balance
sheet netting: Credit is backed by the counterparty’s bank deposits (on-balance sheet netting), (3)
third party guarantees.

Credit risk mitigation tools can reduce or transfer credit risk, but may give rise to other residual
risks, including: Legal risk, operational risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Bank adopted
stringent procedures necessary to control these risks, such as policy formulation, development of
operating procedures to conduct credit checks and evaluation, system implementation, contract
control and so on.

The Bank has developed collateral management policies and operating procedures, and conducted
recognition of all collateral data. The Bank uses a computing platform for mitigation of complex
risk and completes the required collateral to offset data field collection and analysis, and links credit
systems and collateral management system information to build up capital provision.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum credit risk exposure amount of financial assets is the book value of the specific asset
on the balance sheet date. The analysis of the maximum credit exposure amount (excluding the fair
value of collateral) of each off-balance sheet financial instrument held by the Bank and its
subsidiaries is as follows:

Maximum Exposure Amount

Off-balance Sheet Item December 31, | December 31,
2022 2021
Financial guarantees and irrevocable documentary letter of
credit
Contract amounts $ 116,144,464 | $ 149,267,289
Maximum exposure amounts 116,144,464 149,267,289
Loan commitments 62,895,729 47,740,121

Concentrations of credit risk exposure

Concentration of credit risk exist when the counterparty includes only one specific person or
include many people who engage in similar business which are similar in economic characteristics.
The Group does not concentrate on single customer or counterparty in trading but have similar
counterparty, industry and geographic region on the loan business (including loan commitments and
guarantees and commercial bond issuing commitments).
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8)

On December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group’s significant concentrations of credit risk were
summarized as follows (only the top three are shown below):

a)

b)

By industry
Credit Risk Profile by Industry December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Sector Amount % Amount %
Financial intermediary $ 85,682,579 28 $ 78,675,612 27
Real estate 58,474,313 19 57,361,927 20
Manufacturing 54,424,241 18 58,775,129 20
By counterparty
Credit Risk Profile by Industry December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Sector Amount % Amount %
Private sector $ 168,018,883 81 $ 139,529,652 80
Natural person 39,478,385 19 35,766,883 20

By geographical area

Credit Risk Profile by Industry December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Sector Amount % Amount %
Domestic $ 129,677,253 62 $ 116,051,668 66
Other Asia area 36,705,337 18 27,972,835 16
America 35,659,183 17 27,471,135 16

Credit quality and impairment assessment of financial assets

Some financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, due from Central Bank and call loan to
other banks, financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, bills and bonds purchased under
resell agreements, refundable deposits, operating deposits and settlement fund are regarded as very
low credit risk owing to the good credit rating of counterparties.

The related financial asset impairment valuation is as follows:

a)

Credit business (including loan commitments and guarantees)

On each reporting date, the Group assesses the change in the default risk of financial assets and
considers reasonable and corroborative information that shows the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, including the overdue status of credit assets from clients,
actual repayment situations, credit investigation results, announcements of dishonored checks
and negotiations of the debts from other financial institutions, or information that the debtor has
reorganized or is likely to reorganize, to determine whether the credit risk has increased
significantly.

The Group adopts the 12-month ECLs for the evaluation of the loss allowance of financial
instruments whose credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition and adopts
the lifetime ECLs for the evaluation of the loss allowance of financial instruments whose credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition or which are credit-impaired.

The Group considers both the 12-month and lifetime probability of default (“PD”) of the
borrower together with the loss given default (“LGD”), multiplied by the exposure at default
(“EAD”), and considers the impact of the time value of money in order to calculate the
12-month ECLs and lifetime ECLSs, respectively.
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b)

The PD refers to the borrower’s probability to default, and the LGD refers to losses caused by
such default. The Group applies the PD and LGD for the impairment assessment of the credit
business according to each group entity’s historical information (such as credit loss experience)
from internal statistical data and adjusts such historical data based on the current observable and
forward-looking macroeconomic information. It then calculates the respective impairment by
applying the progressive one factor model.

Considering the impact of COVID-19 to the overall economy, the Bank has adjusted the
weights of the assessment factors to reflect the estimated influence of the economic indicator
changes on the default rate.

The Group estimates the balance of each account based on the method of amortization and
considers the possible survival rate in order to calculate the EAD. In addition, the Group
estimates the 12-month ECLs and lifetime ECLs of loan commitments based on the guidelines
issued by the Bank’s Association and Basel Accords. The Group calculates the EAD of
expected credit losses by considering the portion of the loan commitments expected to be used
within 12 months after the reporting date as compared with the expected lifetime of the loan
commitments.

The Group uses the same definitions for default and credit impairment of financial assets. If one
or more of the conditions are met, for instance, the financial assets are overdue for more than 90
days or the credit investigation appears to be abnormal, then the Group determines that the
financial assets have defaulted and are credit-impaired.

Credit assets are classified into five categories. In addition to the first category of credit assets,
which are normal credit assets classified as sound assets, the remaining credit assets are
classified as unsound assets and assessed according to the respective collateral and the length of
time in which the respective payments become overdue. Such unsound credit assets are then
categorized within the second category if they should only be noted; within the third category if
they have substandard expected recovery; within the fourth category if their collectability is
highly doubtful; and within the fifth category if they are considered uncollectable. The Group
also sets up policies for the management of provisions for doubtful credit assets and the
collection and settlement of overdue debts in order to deal with collection problems.

Credit risk management for investments in debt instruments

The Group only invests in debt instruments that are rated the equivalent of investment grade or
higher and have low credit risk for the purpose of impairment assessment. The credit rating
information is supplied by independent rating agencies. The Bank and its subsidiaries” exposure
and the external credit ratings are continuously monitored. The Bank and its subsidiaries review
changes in bond yields and other public information and make an assessment as to whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the last period to the current reporting
date.

The Group considers the historical default rates of each credit rating supplied by external rating

agencies, the current financial condition of debtors, and industry forecasts to estimate 12-month
or lifetime expected credit losses.
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The Group’s current credit risk grading mechanism is as follows:

Basis for Recognizing
Expected Credit Losses
Category Description (ECLs)

Performing  The counterparty has a low risk of default and a 12m ECLs
strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows

Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk  Lifetime ECLSs - not
since initial recognition credit-impaired

In default There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECLs -
credit-impaired credit-impaired

The Group’s gross carrying amounts of debt instrument investments by credit category were as
follows:

December 31

Category 2022 2021

Performing $ 184,108,502 $ 182,232,250
Doubtful 400,000 1,000,010
In default - -

The allowance for impairment loss of investments in debt instruments at FVTOCI and
amortized cost for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, grouped by credit rating, is
reconciled as follows:

Credit Rating

Doubtful
(Lifetime
Performing ECLs - Not
(12-month Credit-
ECLs) impaired) Total
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 42,456 $ 5,218 $ 47,674
New financial assets purchased or
originated 11,625 - 11,625
Derecognition of financial assets (11,094) (2,284) (13,378)
Change in model or risk parameters (5,946) (1,453) (7,399)
Exchange rates or others 1,865 - 1,865
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 38,906 $ 1481 $ 40,387
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Credit Rating

Doubtful
(Lifetime
Performing ECLs - Not
(12-month Credit-
ECLs) impaired) Total
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 42,548 $ 8,821 $ 51,369
New financial assets purchased or
originated 16,548 - 16,548
Derecognition of financial assets (13,925) - (13,925)
Change in model or risk parameters (2,161) (3,603) (5,764)
Exchange rates or others (554) - (554)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 42456 $ 57218 $ 47674

In addition to the above, the credit quality analysis of the remaining financial assets of the Bank and
its subsidiaries is as follows:

a) Credit analysis for receivables and discounts and loans

December 31, 2022

Difference of
Impairment Loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Under
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Lifetime ECLs Regulations Total
Receivables $ 3,023,921 $ 676,888 $ 37,299 $ - $ 3,738,108
Allowance for credit losses (3,222) (1,105) (25,059) - (29,386)
Difference of impairment loss under
regulations - - - (17.165) (17.165)
Net total $  3020.699 $ 675.783 $ 12,240 $ (17,165) $ 3691557
Difference of
Impairment Loss
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Under
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Lifetime ECLs Regulations Total
Discounts and loans $ 188,642,292 $ 17,438,208 $ 1,416,768 $ - $ 207,497,268
Allowance for credit losses (467,051) (90,549) (297,981) - (855,581)
Difference of impairment loss under
regulations - - - (2,328.715) (2,328.715)
Net total $ 188.175.241 $ 17.347.659 $ 1118787 $ (2.328715) $ 204,312,972

December 31, 2021

Difference of
Impairment Loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Under
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Lifetime ECLs Regulations Total
Receivables $ 20,194,073 $ 135,829 $ 251,818 $ - $ 20,581,720
Allowance for credit losses (270,996) (28,036) (190,494) - (489,526)
Difference of impairment loss under
regulations - - - (15,680) (15,680)
Net total $ 19.923.077 $ 107,793 $ 61,324 $ (15,680) $ 20076514
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Difference of
Impairment Loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Under
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs Lifetime ECLs Regulations Total
Discounts and loans $ 161,284,858 $ 12,775,541 $ 1,236,136 $ - $ 175,296,535
Allowance for credit losses (382,077) (108,320) (238,363) - (728,760)
Difference of impairment loss under
regulations - - - (1.840.186) (1,840.186)
Net total $ 160,902,781 $ 12.667.221 $ 997,773 $_ (1.840.186) $ 172727589

b) Credit analysis for marketable securities

December 31, 2022

At FVTOCI At Amortized

Debt Cost - Debt Total
Instruments Instruments
Gross carrying amount $ 158,840,178 $ 25,668,324 $ 184,508,502
Allowance for impairment loss (37,369) (3.018) (40,387)
Amortized cost 158,802,809 $ 25,665,306 184,468,115
Fair value adjustment (5,547,455) (5,547,455)
$ 153,255,354 $ 178,920,660
December 31, 2021
At FVTOCI -
Debt
Instruments
Gross carrying amount $ 183,232,260
Allowance for impairment loss (47,674)
Amortized cost 183,184,586
Fair value adjustment 371,200
$ 183,555,786

9) Aging analysis for overdue but not yet impaired financial assets

Delays in processing payments by borrowers and other administrative reasons could result in
financial assets which are overdue but not yet impaired.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Group had no financial assets which were overdue but not
impaired.

d. Liquidity risk
1) Source and definition of liquidity risk

Liquidity is the Group’s capacity to realize assets, obtain financing or funds to meet obligations at
maturity, including deposits and off-balance sheet guarantees.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group’s fund is unable to meet its payment obligation and to
operate normally.
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2) Management strategy and principles of liquidity risk

3)

a)

b)

d)

f)

9)

h)

Liquidity risk management process should be able to adequately identify, measure effectively,
monitor continuously, and properly control of the Group’s liquidity risk, to ensure that banks
both in normal operating environments or under pressure, have sufficient funds to cope assets or
settle liabilities when due.

Manage current assets to ensure that the Group have enough instantly-realized assets to deal
with currency risks.

Capital management should include regular review of the asset and liability structure, and
proper configuration of assets and liabilities, and should take into account the realization of
assets and the stability of financing sources to plan combinations of funding sources to ensure
that the Group’s liquidity.

To establish an appropriate information system to measure, monitor and report liquidity risk.

The setting of the measurement systems or models should include important factors which
affect the currency risks of the Bank fund (including the introduction of new products or
services) for managing current risks to help the Bank to evaluate and monitor the fund currency
risks in the regular condition and under pressure.

To use early warning tools and continuously monitor and report liquidity risk profile, and set
liquidity risk limits, with due consideration of business strategy, operational characteristics and
risk preference factors.

In addition to the monitoring of the capital requirements, under normal business conditions, the
Group should regularly conduct stress tests to evaluate the assumptions in the liquidity position
and ensure that banks have sufficient liquidity to withstand stress scenarios; assessment should
be made to view liquidity risk management indicators and reasonableness of limits.

Develop appropriate action plans to respond to possible occurrence of liquidity crisis, and
regularly review such plans to ensure that the action plans are in line with the Bank’s operating
environment and conditions, and can continue to play its role effectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the liquidity reserve ratio was 46.54% and 46.81%,
respectively.

The analysis of cash outflow of non-derivative financial liabilities held was prepared according to
the remaining periods from reporting date to contractual maturity date. The maturity analysis of
non-derivative financial liabilities was as follows:

Less Than 3 Months to 6 Months More Than
December 31, 2022 1 Month 1-3 Months 6 Months to1 Year 1 Year Total

Deposits from the Central

Bank and other banks $ 17,690,434 $ 737,213 $ - $ 3,000,000 $ 1,999,997 $ 23,427,644
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss - - 362 2,714 216,430 219,506
Bills and bonds sold under

repurchase agreements 132,445,936 44,832,681 2,076,989 1,134,241 - 180,489,847
Payables 1,224,709 369,422 369,031 1,116,792 46,432 3,126,386
Deposits and remittances 70,347,184 89,677,646 43,220,832 34,446,149 55,473,175 293,164,986
Bank debentures payable - - 2,250,000 700,000 10,650,000 13,600,000
Other financial liabilities 2,181,071 252,184 38,766 218,743 2,466,044 5,156,808
Lease liabilities 10,422 22,905 32,121 61,153 348,173 474,774

$ 223890756  $ 135.802.051  § 47988101  $§ 40679792  $ 71200251  $ 510.650.951
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Less Than 3 Months to 6 Months More Than

December 31, 2021 1 Month 1-3 Months 6 Months to1 Year 1 Year Total

Deposits from the Central

Bank and other banks $ 27,322,508 $ 553,793 $ - $ - $ - $ 27,876,301
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss - 49,567 - - 1,691 51,258
Bills and bonds sold under

repurchase agreements 145,883,179 39,298,675 2,721,818 115,226 - 188,018,898
Payables 1,093,095 55,976 309,460 906,858 65,974 2,431,363
Deposits and remittances 45,081,502 75,571,865 45,197,884 47,580,591 45,947,583 259,379,425
Bank debentures payable - - 1,500,000 1,000,000 12,500,000 15,000,000
Other financial liabilities 4,259,658 4,718,033 1,667,612 2,438,087 7,497,442 20,580,832
Lease liabilities 12,373 28,137 40,484 60,039 229,508 370,541

$ 223,652,315 $ 120.276.046 $ 51437258 $ 52.100.801 $ 66,242,198 $ 513.708.618

The Group assessed based contractual maturities at the balance sheet to understand all the basic
elements of derivative financial instruments. The maturity analysis of derivative financial liabilities
was as follows:

Less Than 3 Months to 6 Months More Than
December 31, 2022 1 Month 1-3 Months 6 Months to1 Year 1 Year Total
Deliverable
Forward contracts $ 126,037 $ 7231 $ - $ 151 $ - $ 133,419
Currency swap contracts 217,763 296,908 50,188 57,520 - 622,379
Others 7119 1,499 1,927 3,941 - 14,486
350,919 305,638 52,115 61,612 - 770,284
Non-deliverable
Interest rate swap contracts - 80 - 110 18,185 18,375
$ 350919 $ 305,718 $ 52115 $ 61722 $ 18185 $ 788,659
Less Than 3 Months to 6 Months More Than
December 31, 2021 1 Month 1-3 Months 6 Months to1 Year 1 Year Total
Deliverable
Forward contracts $ 29,786 $ 12,570 $ 9446 $ 11,083 $ - $ 62,885
Currency swap contracts 88,795 66,584 76,687 41,124 - 273,190
Others 2,951 61 1277 1,266 39,138 44,693
121,532 79,215 87,410 53,473 39,138 380,768
Non-deliverable
Interest rate swap contracts 365 - 882 1537 6,527 9,311
$ 121897 $ 79215 $ 88292 $ 55,010 $ 45,665 $ 390,079

The maturity analysis of off-balance sheet items shows the remaining balance from the balance
sheet date to the maturity date. For the sent financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amounts are
possibly asked for settlement in the earliest period. The amounts in the table below were on cash
flow basis; therefore, some disclosed amounts will not match with the consolidated balance sheet.

Less Than 3 Months to 6 Months More Than
December 31, 2022 1 Month 1-3 Months 6 Months to1 Year 1 Year Total
Unused letters of credit $ 355,703 $ 630,828 $ 137,152 $ - $ - $ 1,123,683
Other guarantees 28,965,598 82,761,800 1,892,706 532,989 867,688 115,020,781
Loan commitments 5,868,171 11,736,343 17,604,515 27,686,700 - 62,895,729

$§ 35180472  $ 95128971  $ 19634373  $ 28210680  § 867688  $ 179040193

Less Than 3 Months to 6 Months More Than
December 31, 2021 1 Month 1-3 Months 6 Months to1 Year 1 Year Total
Unused letters of credit $ 613,264 $ 1,341,312 $ 245,066 $ 40,189 $ - $ 2,239,831
Other guarantees 49,164,358 80,786,091 13,675,750 3,182,797 218,462 147,027,458
Loan commitments 4,034,995 8,069,990 12,104,985 23,530,151 - 47,740,121

$§ 53812617  $ 90197393  $ 26025801  $ 26753137  § 218462  $ 197.007.410
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e.

Market risk

1)

2)

3)

4)

Source and definition of market risk

Market risk is defined as an unfavorable change in market prices (such as interest rates, exchange
rates, stock prices, commodity prices etc.) which may cause financial instruments classified in
trading book a potential loss on or off the balance sheet.

Market risk management strategy and process
The Bank manages the market risk with active, careful attitude.

The Bank makes the profit mainly from doing trading business through knowing how market risk
factors fluctuate. (e.g., market price, exchange rate, and interest rate). More violent the market risk
factors fluctuate, the bigger the opportunity for profit or loss. When preparing the Annual Trading
Budget Report of the trading business, the Bank will refer to the overall economic and industrial
analysis of the Bank itself and also the other similar business. After discussions by the president, the
trading department and the market risk management department, it is submitted to the Assets and
Liabilities Committee and the board of directors with the plan of stop-loss quotas and product parts
guotas to avoid setting up the goal in an impracticable way that leads the dealer to take more risk on
operating.

The Bank sets up definite management rules and risk management indicators for different trading
business and its risk attribute, and stipulates exposure amount, submission of expiration, authorizing
management and ways of disposure. Implement certainly and ensure the trading department to abide
by the discipline to control the market risk exposure extent in a safe range.

Market risk management organization and framework

a) The Board of Directors: It is the top market risk supervising organization. The product part
quotas and total annual stop-loss quotas of the trading business market risk monitored and
managed by the Bank, approved by the board of directors, are the top stipulation in market risk
management.

b) Assets and Liabilities Committee: In charge of stipulating market risk management policy and
monitoring the operating of market risk management. The Bank assembles related departments
to hold an assets-and-liabilities assessment meeting to review the market risk management
policy and the next year proposal of product parts quotas and annual stop-loss of the trading
business expected to be submitted to Board.

c) Risk Management Department: In charge of market risk management. According to the Bank’s
regulation, the department is in charge of every operation related to market risk management,
including planning of market risk limit, statistics, reporting and monitoring.

Market risk report and evaluation system

The Bank setup the risk index, exposure amount and authority levels by products’ type (¢.g. equity,
interest rate, currency exchange rate).

The Bank setup the limit amount of trading and loss, and other index including VaR, MAT limit,
20-Day average liquidity and FS sensitivity limit to enhance the risk control system.

The Bank calculates the risk exposure amount of the trade department and traders based on

authorized amount, and submits risk report, monitors the limits and executes the following
measures.

- 94 -



5)

6)

The Bank sets up the index of stop loss to control the risk of transaction including bonds, Forex,
securities and derivative by building the risk evaluation module, and monitor the loss caused by the
fluctuation of stock market, exchange rate and interest rates.

Value at Risk

The Bank adopts Value at Risk to evaluate trading book products such as rate financial instruments,
TWD interest products and market risks of trading assets IPO stocks. When market factors happen
negative changes, Value at Risk reveals the potential losses of holding financial instruments during
a certain period and in a confidence interval. The bank adopts Monte Carlo method to estimate
Value at Risk, the confidence interval is 99%, the sample interval of rate and stock products is the
past year, the sample interval of interest products is the past three years, simulation times is 5,000
times, simulation path is GBM.

The following table illustrates the Value at Risk of the Bank, this risk value is based on confidence
interval, estimated in one day potential losses and assumed unfavorable interest and rate changes
can cover all possible fluctuation in one day. Based on this assumption, the Value at Risk of
financial assets and liabilities in the table have one in hundred days possibility more than the
amount in the table due to the fluctuation of interest, rate and stock prices. Annual average value,
maximum value and minimum value are calculated based on daily Value at Risk. The total market
risk value of the bank is less than the sum of the fair value risk value, rate risk value and price risk
value of interest changes.

O-Bank
December 31

2022 2021
Average High Low Average High Low

Currency exchange

rate risk $ 2,692 $ 12,790 $ 284 $ 1,684 $ 5,086 $ 365
Fair value risk

resulting from

interest rate 2,038 5,147 444 2,490 4,162 1,056
Fair value resulting
from stock price 8,060 22,962 - 14,991 31,270 4,874

Effect of interest rate benchmark reform

The Group is exposed to USD LIBOR and HKD HIBOR which are subject to interest rate
benchmark reform. The exposures arise on non-derivative financial assets. SOFR (Secured
Overnight Financing Rate) is expected to replace USD LIBOR. HONIA (Hong Kong Dollar
Overnight Index Average) is expected to replace HKD HIBOR. There are key differences among
these benchmarks. USD LIBOR is “forward looking”, which implies market expectation over future
interest rates, and includes a credit spread over the risk-free rate. SOFR is currently a
“backward-looking™ rate, based on interest rates from actual transactions, and excludes a credit
spread. To transition existing contracts and agreements that reference USD LIBOR to SOFR,
adjustments for these differences might need to be applied to SOFR to enable the two benchmark
rates to be economically equivalent.

The Group established USD LIBOR and HKD HIBOR transition project plans for each benchmark.
These transition projects are considering changes to risk management policies, internal processes,
IT systems and valuation models, as well as managing any related tax and accounting implications.
As at December 31, 2022, the Bank has identified all the information systems and internal processes
that need to be updated, and planned the update schedule. The Bank has completed the
identification of the affected contracts, and expects to gradually switch to alternative interest rate
indicators before the end of June, 2023, and pay close attention to the regulations of the competent
authority, market development, and processing methods among other banks.
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Risks arising from the transition relate principally to the potential impact of interest rate basis risk.
If the bilateral negotiations with the Group’s counterparties are not successfully concluded before
the cessation of HKD HIBOR and USD LIBOR, there are significant uncertainties with regard to
the interest rate that would apply. This gives rise to additional interest rate risk that was not
anticipated when the contracts were entered into.

The following table contains details of all of the financial instruments held by the Group at
December 31, 2022 which are subject to the reform and have not transitioned to an alternative
benchmark interest rate:

Book Value Not
Transitioned to
Alternative
Benchmark
Rates Transition Progress

USD LIBOR financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through other ~ $ 1,505,554  The Group will pay close attention
comprehensive income to the regulations of the

competent authority, market
development, and processing
methods among other banks, and
will cooperate with the issuer and
counterparty to negotiate the
contract revision. It is expected
that the contract revision will be
sold or completed in the first half
of 2023.

Discounts and loans 768,068 It is expected to gradually switch to
alternative interest rate indicators
and pay close attention to the
regulations of the competent
authority, market development,
and processing methods among
other banks.

$ 2,273,622
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7) Foreign currency rate risk information
The information of significant foreign financial assets and liabilities is as follows:
Unit: Foreign Currencies (Thousands)/NT$(Thousands)

December 31, 2022
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Foreign Exchange New Taiwan
Currencies Rate Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary item
UsD $ 2913414 30.7227 $ 89,507,925
JPY 3,591,733 0.2328 836,119
HKD 8,425,235 3.9397 33,192,899
EUR 25,304 32.7355 828,328
AUD 254,334 20.8626 5,306,071
RMB 671,878  4.4175/4.4086 2,962,069
Investments accounted for using the
equity method
RMB 228,871 4.4175 1,011,042
Financial liabilities
Monetary item
uUsD 4,212,842 30.7227 129,429,880
JPY 4,997,441 0.2328 1,163,354
HKD 4,203,751 3.9397 16,561,516
EUR 9,213 32.7355 301,595
AUD 154,383 20.8626 3,220,844
RMB 633,767  4.4175/4.4086 2,794,043
December 31, 2021
Foreign Exchange New Taiwan
Currencies Rate Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary item
UsD $ 3,112,041 27.6897 $ 86,171,399
JPY 3,981,910 0.2404 957,168
HKD 6,609,887 3.5506 23,468,933
EUR 23,834 31.3001 746,003
AUD 205,517 20.0948 4,129,826
RMB 3,515,948  4.3453/4.3460 15,280,308
Investments accounted for using the
equity method
RMB 202,722 4.3453 880,879

(Continued)



December 31, 2021

Foreign Exchange New Taiwan
Currencies Rate Dollars
Financial liabilities
Monetary item
UsD $ 3,972,367 27.6897 $ 109,993,525
JPY 3,765,547 0.2404 905,159
HKD 3,221,115 3.5506 11,436,826
EUR 13,438 31.3001 420,622
AUD 47,150 20.0948 947,472
RMB 3,053,131  4.3453/4.3460 13,268,907

(Concluded)

f. Banking book interest rate risk

1) Source and definition of interest rate risk of banking book

2)

3)

Banking book’s interest rate risk means the probably loss of non-trading book’s position within
balance sheet and off-balance sheet arise from interest change.

Management strategy and process of interest rate risk of banking book

The Bank controls this interest rate risk with a positive and strict attitude. The Bank hopes to pursue
the stability and growth of surplus without liquidity flaws.

The Bank set the clear management methods and risk management indicators with different trading,
investment and risk, and set the report of risk amount and over limit, approved level and reaction
plan. The Bank executes the procedures clearly, establishes a trading discipline that upholds the
discipline of investment, and controls the interest rate risk of banking book within the limit.

Management organization and framework of interest rate risk of banking book

a)

b)

The Board of Directors: It is the top organization to supervise interest rate risk of banking book.
The product part quotas and total annual stop-loss quotas of the trading business market risk
monitored and managed by the Bank and approved by the board of director are the top
stipulation in bank book interest risk.

Assets and Liabilities Committee: In charge of stipulating risk management policy of interest
rate risk of banking book and monitoring the risk management operating of interest rate risk of
banking book. The Bank assembles related departments to hold an assets-and-liabilities
assessment meeting to review the risk management conditions of interest rate risk of banking
book and the result of interest rate pressure test once a month.

Risk Management Department: In charge of risk management of interest rate risk of banking
book. According to the Bank’s regulation, the department is in charge of every operation related
to management of interest rate risk of banking book, including planning limits, statistics,
reporting and monitoring.
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4) The extent and characteristics of interest rate risk report and evaluation system of banking book

The Risk Management Department set the regulation with interest rate risk of banking book as
follow, limit of position, limit of annual loss, FS sensitivity limit, duration limit, Individual
Investment Target Warning Limits, Individual Investment Target stop buying limit, Tier | Capital
Interest Rate Sensitivity Warning Limit-Rising/falling interest rates by 1bp, net income interest rate
sensitivity warning limit: Interest rate rise/fall 25bps, 50bps, 75bps, 100bps.

In summary, it is intended to enhance the risk control framework of interest rate risk of banking
book.

Besides, the Risk Management Department executes the following tests to assess the impact to the
Bank’s net income in special situation pressure test, and reports the result to the Assets and
Liabilities Committee.
The Risk Management Department calculates the exposure amount of each trading departments and
traders, and it also reports the risk reports, monitors over-limits, and performs follow-up actions
under the regulations.

g. Average amount and average interest rate of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities

Interest rate fluctuations affect the earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and current average
interest rates are as follows:

0O-Bank

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate (%) Balance Rate (%)

Interest-earning assets

Due from banks (part of cash and cash
equivalents and other financial assets)  $
Call loans to other banks

888,612 1.15 $
8,001,642 1.96

852,282 1.12
10,051,381 0.17

Due from the Central Bank 5,491,954 0.72 5,321,116 0.39
Financial assets at FVTPL 37,249,454 0.70 43,042,384 0.31
Bills and bonds purchased under resell

agreements 192 0.24 10,235 0.09
Discounts and loans 178,470,922 2.64 156,824,702 1.90
Financial assets at FVTOCI 70,799,283 0.96 69,166,776 0.61
Financial assets at amortized cost 11,716,184 1.56 - -
Receivables 1,259,282 2.19 1,056,555 1.49
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits from the Central Bank and

other banks 19,258,679 1.09 17,992,124 0.35
Demand deposits 58,838,253 0.40 64,352,856 0.20
Time deposits 202,186,468 1.09 173,099,432 0.44
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase

agreements 6,159,864 1.68 1,909,925 0.20
Bank debentures payable 14,290,685 1.91 15,273,973 1.99
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China Bills Finance Corporation (CBF)

For the Year Ended December 31

2022 2021
Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate (%) Balance Rate (%)

Interest-earning assets
Cash and cash equivalents (including

certificate of deposit) $ 811,375 0.10 $ 836,663 0.02
Call loans to banks 264,192 0.73 127,288 0.11
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - bonds and bills 94,630,559 0.74 99,956,081 0.38
FVTOCI - debt instruments 96,349,592 1.24 100,745,035 1.19
Financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss - hybrid

financial assets 9,076,850 1.47 8,935,605 1.44
Investment in debt instruments at

amortized cost 191,012 1.40 - -
Securities purchased under resell

agreements 4,674,231 0.37 6,411,458 0.17
Interest-bearing liabilities
Call loans from other banks 13,841,460 0.88 9,077,356 0.24
Bank overdraft 1,680 0.77 955 1.50
Securities sold under repurchase

agreements 164,406,330 0.65 178,797,692 0.24
Commercial paper payable 2,556,493 0.85 4,500,000 0.33

49. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

a. Strategies to maintain capital adequacy
The Groups’ common equity ratio of Tier I capital ratio and capital adequacy ratio required by the
competent authority shall comply with the minimum capital ratio for each year; leverage ratio
measurement basis is subject to the competent authorities. The calculation of the ratio mentioned above
by competent authority regulations.

b. Capital assessment program
Measures are taken when capital ratio and leverage ratio deteriorates such as regular calculation,

analysis, monitoring and reporting, the annual allocation of cach business’s capital adequacy ratio
targets and regularly tracking the target achievement rate in the capital.
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c. Capital adequacy ratio

O-Bank
December 31, 2022
Year Standalone Consolidated
Items Capital Capital
Adequacy Ratio|Adequacy Ratio
Common equity $ 27,276,219 | $ 27,276,219
Eligible capital Other Tier 1 capital 1,437,626 1,437,626
Tier 2 capital 3,979,520 3,979,520
Eligible capital 32,693,365 32,693,365
Standardized approach 210,297,034 210,297,034
Credit risk Internal rating based approach - -
Securitization - -
Basic indicator approach 9,922,725 9,922,725
Risk-weighted |Operational |Standardized/alternative
assets risk standardized approach i i
Advanced measurement approach - -
Market risk Standardized approach 5,461,463 5,461,463
Internal model approach - -
Total risk-weighted assets 225,681,222 225,681,222
Capital adequacy ratio 14.49% 14.49%
Ratio of common equity to risk-weighted assets 12.09% 12.09%
Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 12.72% 12.72%
Leverage ratio 7.80% 7.80%
December 31, 2021
Year Standalone Consolidated
Items Capital Capital
Adequacy Ratio|Adequacy Ratio
Common equity $ 27,505,405 | $ 27,505,405
Eligible capital Other Tier 1 capital 235,115 235,115
Tier 2 capital 2,194,638 2,194,638
Eligible capital 29,935,158 29,935,158
Standardized approach 184,900,099 184,900,099
Credit risk Internal rating based approach - -
Securitization - -
Basic indicator approach 9,483,113 9,483,113
Risk-weighted |Operational |Standardized/alternative
assets risk standardized approach i i
Advanced measurement approach - -
Market risk Standardized approach 9,171,150 9,171,150
Internal model approach - -
Total risk-weighted assets 203,554,362 203,554,362
Capital adequacy ratio 14.71% 14.71%
Ratio of common equity to risk-weighted assets 13.51% 13.51%
Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 13.63% 13.63%
Leverage ratio 7.99% 7.99%

Note 1: Eligible capital, risk-weighted assets total exposures are calculated under the “Regulations
Governing the Capital Adequacy Ratio of Banks” and “Explanation of Methods for
Calculating the Eligible Capital and Risk-weighted Assets of Banks.”
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Note 2: Formulas used were as follows:
1) Eligible capital = Common equity + Other Tier 1 capital + Tier 2 capital.

2) Risk-weighted assets = Risk-weighted asset for credit risk + Capital requirements for
operational risk and market risk x 12.5.

3) Capital adequacy ratio = Eligible capital + Risk-weighted assets.

4) Ratio of common equity to risk-weighted assets = Common equity + Risk-weighted
assets.

5) Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets = (Common equity + Other Tier 1 capital) ~
Risk-weighted assets.

6) Leverage ratio = Tier 1 capital + Exposure measurement.

According to the Banking Law and other related regulations, in order to improve the financial
foundation of banks, the Bank’s standalone and consolidated capital adequacy ratio shall not be lower
than 10.5%. The ratio of Tier 1 capital shall not be lower than 8.5%. The ratio of common equity shall
not be lower than 7.0%. Should any actual ratios be lower than the requirements, the central competent
authority has the right to constrain the earnings distribution.

China Bills Finance Corporation

Year| December 31, | December 31,

Items 2022 2021
Tier 1 capital $ 21,523,754 | $ 24,748,352
Eligible capital T!er 2 cap?tal 333,339 151,242
Tier 3 capital 58,146 369,873
Eligible capital 21,915,239 25,269,467
Credit risk 105,657,859 129,434,396
Risk-weighted |Operational risk 4,605,970 4,062,412
assets Market risk 53,767,610 66,290,668
Total risk-weighted assets 164,031,439 199,787,476
Capital adequacy ratio (Note) 13.36% 12.65%
Ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (Note) 13.12% 12.39%
Ratio of Tier 2 capital to risk-weighted assets (Note) 0.20% 0.08%
Ratio of Tier 3 capital to risk-weighted assets (Note) 0.04% 0.18%
Ratio of common shareholders’ equity to total assets (Note) 6.47% 5.87%

Note:

Formulas used were as follows:

1) Capital adequacy ratio = Eligible capital + Risk-weighted assets.

2) The amount of total assets used in the calculation refers to all assets in the balance sheets.

3) The capital adequacy ratios (CARS) should be computed at the end of June and December.
In the reports of the first-quarter and the third-quarter the CARs disclosed are based on the
data of the last preceding period, i.e., the end of December and the end of June,
respectively.

4) Eligible capital and risk-weighted assets are calculated under the “Regulations Governing

the Capital Adequacy Ratio of Bills Finance Companies™ and “Explanation of Methods for
Calculating the Eligible Capital and Risk-weighted Assets of Bills Finance Companies.”
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50. ASSET QUALITY, CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXTENSIONS, INTEREST RATE

SENSITIVITY, PROFITABILITY AND DISCLOSURE OF RELATED INFORMATION OF
INDUSTRY REGULATIONS OF MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

O-Bank

a. Asset quality: Refer to Table 2.

b. Concentration of credit extensions

December 31, 2022

Credit % of Net

Rank Industry of Group Enterprise Extensions Asset

Balance Value
1 A Company (telecommunications) $ 7,472,591 19.81
2 B Company (real estate development) 4,106,536 10.89
3 C Company (unclassified other financial service) 3,258,090 8.64
4 D Company (unclassified other financial service) 2,946,000 7.81
5 E Company (other holding company) 2,509,837 6.65
6 F Company (glass and glass made products manufacturing) 2,495,115 6.61
7 G Company (other holding company) 2,397,388 6.36
8 H Company (other holding company) 2,193,282 5.81
9 I Company (non-hazardous waste treatment industry) 2,128,382 5.64
10 J Company (real estate development) 2,010,000 5.33

December 31, 2021

Credit % of Net

Rank Industry of Group Enterprise Extensions Asset

Balance Value
1 A Company (real estate development) $ 6,256,678 17.20
2 B Company (real estate development) 3,973,750 10.92
3 F Company (glass and glass made products manufacturing) 3,404,716 9.36
4 C Company (unclassified other financial service) 3,311,005 9.10
5 K Company (real estate lease industry) 3,180,000 8.74
6 D Company (unclassified other financial service) 2,940,000 8.08
7 L Company (real estate development) 2,432,955 6.69
8 I Company (non-hazardous waste treatment industry) 2,226,820 6.12
9 M Company (manufacture of ready-mix concrete) 2,195,533 6.03
10 N Company (unclassified other financial service) 2,070,000 5.69

Note 1: The list shows top 10 rankings by total amount of credit, endorsement or other transactions
but excludes government-owned or state-run enterprises. If the borrower is a member of a
group enterprise, the total amount of credit, endorsement or other transactions of the entire
group enterprise must be listed and disclosed by code and line of industry. The industry of the
group enterprise should be presented as the industry of the member firm with the highest risk
exposure. The lines of industry should be described in accordance with the Standard Industrial
Classification System of the Republic of China published by the Directorate - General of
Budget, Accounting and Statistics under the Executive Yuan.
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Note 2: Group enterprise refers to a group of corporate entities as defined by Article 6 of
“Supplementary Provisions to the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation Rules for Review of
Securities Listings™

Note 3: Total amount of credit, endorsement or other transactions is the sum of various loans

(including import and export negotiations, discounts, overdrafts, unsecured and secured
short-term loans, margin loans receivable, unsecured and secured medium-term loans,
unsecured and secured long-term loans and overdue loans), exchange bills negotiated,
accounts receivable factored without recourse, acceptances and guarantees.

Interest rate sensitivity

Interest Rate Sensitivity Balance Sheet (New Taiwan Dollars)
December 31, 2022

181 Days to
Items 01090 Days | 91 to 180 Days One Y{'ar Over One Year Total
(Included) (Included)

(Included)
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 161,086,901 |$ 19,727,518 | $ 17,766,308 | $ 36,239,475 | $ 234,820,202
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 92,312,215 57,417,125 32,550,981 41,773,598 224,053,919
Interest rate-sensitive gap 68,774,686 (37,689,607) (14,784,673) (5,534,123) 10,766,283
Net worth 34,148,984
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities 104.81%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 31.53%

December 31, 2021
181 Days to
Items 01090 Days | 91 to 180 Days One Y{'ar Over One Year Total
(Included) (Included)

(Included)
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 152,300,462 | $ 20,291,583 | $ 18,349,678 | $ 24,096,996 | $ 215,038,719
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 65,201,377 63,211,840 45,089,611 35,110,497 208,613,325
Interest rate-sensitive gap 87,099,085 (42,920,257) (26,739,933) (11,013,501) 6,425,394
Net worth 32,391,717
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities 103.08%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 19.84%

Note 1: The above amounts included only New Taiwan dollar amounts held by the Bank and excluded
contingent assets and contingent liabilities items.

Note 2: Interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilities mean the revenues or costs of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities affected by interest rate changes.

Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interest rate-sensitive assets - Interest rate-sensitive liabilities.

Note 4: Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities = Interest rate-sensitive assets + Interest

rate-sensitive liabilities (in New Taiwan dollars).
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d.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Balance Sheet (U.S. Dollars)

December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

181 Days to
ltems Oto 90 Days | 91 to 180 Days One Year Over One Year Total

(Included) (Included) (Included)
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 1172542 | $ 26,403 | $ 21,613 | $ 1,900,035 [ $ 3,120,593
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 2,235,135 674,590 75,064 1,108 2,985,897
Interest rate-sensitive gap (1,062,593) (648,187) (53,451) 1,898,927 134,696
Net worth 104,988
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities 104.51%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 128.30%

December 31, 2021
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)
181 Days to
Items 01090 Days | 91 to 180 Days One Year Over One Year Total

(Included) (Included) (Included)
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 1133803 | $ 21691 | $ - |'$ 1414647 | $ 2,570,141
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 1,080,612 1,217,122 120,832 508 2,419,074
Interest rate-sensitive gap 53,191 (1,195,431) (120,832) 1,414,139 151,067
Net worth 126,544
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities 106.24%
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth 119.38%

Note 1: The above amounts included only U.S. dollar amounts held by the Bank and excluded
contingent assets and contingent liabilities.
Note 2: Interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilities mean the revenues or costs of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities affected by interest rate changes.
Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interest rate-sensitive assets - Interest rate-sensitive liabilities.
Note 4: Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities = Interest rate-sensitive assets + Interest
rate-sensitive liabilities (in U.S. dollars).
Profitability
(In %)
For the Year | For the Year
ltems Ended Ended
December 31, | December 31,
2022 2021
Return on total assets Before income tax 1.56 0.63
After income tax 1.50 0.57
Return on equit Before income tax 14.15 5.60
quity After income tax 13.59 5.12
Net income ratio 55.54 33.40

Note 1: Return on total assets = Income before (after) income tax — Average total assets.

Note 2: Return on equity = Income before (after) income tax + Average equity.

Note 3: Net income ratio = Income after income tax + Total net revenue.
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Note 4:
and 2021.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

December 31, 2022

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities (New Taiwan Dollars)

Income before (after) income tax represents income for the years ended December 31, 2022

Remaining Period to Maturity

Total 0-10 Days 11-30 Days 31-90 Days | 91-180 Days 1811YDeaa>f' Over 1 Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 273295197 | $ 50,934,431 | $ 23,848,323 | $ 31,301,922 | $ 29,335816 | $ 17,512,260 | $ 120,362,445
Main capital outflow on
maturity 320,137,975 21,909,078 35,212,611 69,786,020 50,936,725 63,573,718 78,719,823
Gap (46,842,778) 29,025,353 (11,364,288) (38,484,098) (21,600,909) (46,061,458) 41,642,622
December 31, 2021
Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0-10 Days 11-30 Days 31-90 Days 91-180 Days 1811YD:;;5' Over 1 Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 252,962,571 | $ 49,606,865 | $ 13,769,195 | $ 24,172,783 | $ 31,312,899 | $ 25351,214 | $ 108,749,615
Main capital outflow on
maturity 290,582,062 22,516,947 28,684,600 58,640,450 41,329,378 69,994,808 69,415,879
Gap (37,619,491) 27,089,918 (14,915,405) (34,467,667) (10,016,479) (44,643,594) 39,333,736
Note: The above amounts included only New Taiwan dollar amounts held by the Bank.

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities (U.S. Dollars)
December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0-30 Days 31:90Days | 91-180Days | oLV | Over1vear
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 5,070,231 $ 2,672,783 $ 752,403 $ 355,202 $ 376,849 $ 912,994
Main capital outflow on
maturity 5,290,561 2,461,429 1,477,700 379,100 262,792 709,540
Gap (220,330) 211,354 (725,297) (23,898) 114,057 203,454
December 31, 2021
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)
Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 030Days | 3190Days | 91180Days | oD% | Over1Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 4,367,803 $ 1,828,104 $ 961,934 $ 405,965 $ 348,921 $ 822,879
Main capital outflow on
maturity 4,496,465 1,915,031 1,073,733 646,113 332,035 529,553
Gap (128,662) (86,927) (111,799) (240,148) 16,886 293,326

Note 1: The above amounts included only U.S. dollar amounts held by the Bank.

Note 2:
disclosures.
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Maturity Analysis of Overseas Branch’s Assets and Liabilities (U.S. Dollars)
December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)

Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0-30 Days 31-90 Days | 91-180 Days 1811\2%8- Over 1 Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 1,711,882 | $ 1,262655 | $ 204457 | $ 59,657 | $ 35173 | $ 149,940
Main capital outflow on
maturity 1,716,968 854,907 400,021 73,929 52,483 335,628
Gap (5,086) 407,748 (195,564) (14,272) (17,310) (185,688)
(In Thousands of U.S. Dollars)
Remaining Period to Maturity
Total 0-30 Days 31-90 Days | 91-180 Days 1811\2%5- Over 1 Year
Main capital inflow on
maturity $ 1,727,352 | $ 1,110,761 | $ 299055 | $ 42184 | $ 65770 | $ 209582
Main capital outflow on
maturity 1,718,524 792,860 400,188 197,111 94,077 234,288
Gap 8,828 317,901 (101,133) (154,927) (28,307) (24,706)
China Bills Finance Corporation
a. Asset quality
Period| December 31, | December 31,
Item 2022 2021
Balance of guarantees and endorsement credits overdue within 3
months $ - $ -
Nonperforming debts (include overdue receivables) - -
Credits under observation - -
Overdue receivables - -
Ratio of non-performing debts 0.00% 0.00%
Ratio of non-performing debts and credits under observation 0.00% 0.00%
Required provision for credit losses and reserve for losses on
guarantees 1,176,048 1,375,981
Actual provision for credit losses and reserve for losses on
guarantees 1,382,077 1,382,077
b. The principal operation
Period| December 31, | December 31,
Item 2022 2021
Balance of guarantees and endorsement securities $ 94,873,300 | $ 112,558,100
Multiple of guarantees and endorsement securities to net worth 3.96 4.71
Short-term bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreement $ 172,142,580 | $ 187,122,588
Multiple of short-term bills and bonds sold under repurchase
agreement to net worth 7.18 7.83
c. The provision policy and allowance for doubtful accounts, refer to Note 14.
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d.

e.

Concentrations of credit extensions

(In %)
tem Period December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Credit of the common $ - $ -
interested party
Ratio of credit extensions to - -
common interest parties
Ratio of credit extensions 18.72 19.28
secured hy pledged share
Loan concentration by industry [ Type of Industry % Type of Industry %
(ratio of top three industries |Finance and insurance 29.22 |Finance and insurance 30.86
to which credit line issued to | industry industry
credit extension balance) Real estate industry 27.69 |Real estate industry 26.65
Manufacturing industry| 18.02 |Manufacturing industry| 20.48

Note 1: Ratio of credit extensions to common interest related parties: Credit to common interest
related party + Total credit.

Note 2: Ratio of credit extensions secured by pledged stocks: Credit with stocks pledged + Total
credit.

Note 3: Total credit included guarantees, endorsement notes and overdue credit (including overdue
receivables, accounts receivable, and notes receivable).

Interest rate sensitivity information of the balance sheet
December 31, 2022
(In Millions of New Taiwan Dollars)
1to 90 91 to 180 (181 Days to Over One
Items Days Days One Year Year Total
(Included) | (Included) | (Included)
Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 98,177 |$ 9099 |$ 9672|$% 87,351 (% 204,299
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 180,224 2,071 1,082 - 183,377
Interest rate-sensitive gap (82,047) 7,028 8,590 87,351 20,922
Net worth 21,978
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities (%) 111.41
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth (%) 95.20
December 31, 2021
(In Millions of New Taiwan Dollars)
1to 90 91 to 180 (181 Days to Over One
Items Days Days One Year Year Total
(Included) | (Included) | (Included)

Interest rate-sensitive assets $ 106,430 | $ 12,173 |$ 11,795 |$ 94,735 $ 225,133
Interest rate-sensitive liabilities 197,818 2,719 115 - 200,652
Interest rate-sensitive gap (91,388) 9,454 11,680 94,735 24,481
Net worth 25,557
Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities (%) 112.20
Ratio of interest rate sensitivity gap to net worth (%) 95.79
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f.

Note 1: Interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilities mean the revenues or costs of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities affected by interest rate changes.

Note 2: Ratio of interest rate-sensitive assets to liabilities = Interest rate-sensitive assets + Interest
rate-sensitive liabilities (in New Taiwan dollars).

Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap = Interest rate-sensitive assets - Interest rate-sensitive liabilities.

The use of funding sources table

December 31, 2022

(In Millions of New Taiwan Dollars)

I Period 1to 30 Days | 31 to 90 Days |91 to 180 Days 181 Days to Over 1 Year
tems 1 Year

Bills $ 34,119 $ 58,322 $ 6,370 $ 3,753 $ -

Bonds 424 802 2,729 5,919 87,351

Due from banks 558 - - - -
Cash used in |Call loans - - - - -

Securities purchased under 2,852 1,100 i i i

resell agreements

Total 37,953 60,224 9,099 9,672 87,351

Borrowing 11,230 276 - - -
Cash provided | Securities sold under 129,407 39,311 2,071 1,082 -

by _re_purchas_e agreements

Eligible capital - - - - 21,978

Total 140,637 39,587 2,071 1,082 21,978
Net cash flows (102,684) 20,637 7,028 8,590 65,373
Accumulated cash flows (102,684) (82,047) (75,019) (66,429) (1,056)

December 31, 2021

(In Millions of New Taiwan Dollars)

Period 1to 30 Days | 31 to 90 Days |91 to 180 Days 181 Days to Over 1 Year
Items 1 Year
Bills $ 49,705 $ 46,434 $ 6,962 $ 117 $ -
Bonds 2,050 2,322 5211 11,678 94,735
Due from banks 255 - - - -
Cash used in |Call loans 300 - - - -
Securities purchased under 4,864 500 ) ) )
resell agreements
Total 57,174 49,256 12,173 11,795 94,735
Borrowing 11,096 2,499 - - -
Cash provided | Securities sold under 145,214 39,009 2,719 115 -
by _re_purchas_e agreements
Eligible capital - - - - 25,557
Total 156,310 41,508 2,719 115 25,557
Net cash flows (99,136) 7,748 9,454 11,680 69,178
Accumulated cash flows (99,136) (91,388) (81,934) (70,254) (1,076)
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g. Matters requiring special notation

Causes December 31, | December 31,
2022 2021
Within the past year, a responsible person or professional employee None None
violated the law in the course of business, resulting in an indictment
by a prosecutor
Within the past year, a fine was levied on for violations of the Act None None
Governing Bills Finance Business and the other laws
Within the past year, misconduct occurred, resulting in the Ministry of None None
Finance’s imposing strict corrective measures
Within the past year, the individual loss or total loss from employee None None
fraud, accidental and material events, or failure to abide by the
“Guidelines for Maintenance of Soundness of Financial Institutions™
which exceeded NT$50 million dollars
Other None None

Note: The term “within the past year” means one year before the balance sheet date.

51. CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Changes in Liabilities from Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2022

January 1, Cash Inflow None-cash Change December 31,

2022 (Outflow) Add Leasing Other 2022
Bank debentures payable $ 15,000,000 $ (1,400,000) $ - $ - $ 13,600,000
Lease liabilities 350,370 (138,845) 179,402 41,899 432,826
Other financial liabilities 20,580,832 (70,231) - (15,353,793) 5,156,808
Other liabilities 2,719,579 (432,016) - (1,787,203) 500,360

$ 38,650,781 $ (2041092) $ 179402 $(17,099.097) $ 19.689.994

For the year ended December 31, 2021

January 1, Cash Inflow None-cash Change December 31,

2021 (Outflow) Add Leasing Other 2021
Bank debentures payable $ 16,400,000 $ (1,400,000) $ - $ - $ 15,000,000
Lease liabilities 444,659 (178,417) 66,793 17,335 350,370
Other financial liabilities 18,102,763 2,521,474 - (43,405) 20,580,832
Other liabilities 2,249,555 470,024 - - 2,719,579

$ 37,196,977 $ 1413081 $ 66.793 $  (26.070) $ 38.650.781

52. OTHERS
The Group has evaluated the economic impact of the COVID-19. Until the issue date of the consolidated

financial statements, the Group found no significant impact on its financial condition and operations
through its relevant risk management and control procedures.
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53. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
a. Related information of significant transactions and investees and

b. Names, locations, and other information of investees over which the Bank exercises significant
influence

1) Financing provided: None
2) Endorsement/guarantee provided: None
3) Marketable securities held: The Group - not applicable; investees - Table 1 (attached)

4) Marketable securities acquired and disposed of at costs or prices of at least NT $300 million or 10%
of the paid-in capital: None

5) Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least NT $300 million or 10% of the paid-in
capital: None

6) Disposal of individual real estate at costs of at least NT $300 million or 10% of the paid-in capital:
None

7) Allowance of service fees to related parties amounting to at least NT $5 million: None

8) Receivables from related parties amounting to at least NT $300 million or 10% of the paid-in
capital: None

9) Sale of non-performing loans: None

10) Information of applying for authorization of securitized product type according to the “Regulations
of Financial Assets Securitization or Regulations of Real Estate Securitization”: None

11) Other significant transactions which may affect the decisions of users of individual financial
reports: None

12) Related information and total stockholding circumstances of “Name, locations and other
information of investees on which the Bank exercises significant influence.” - Table 3 (attached)

13) Derivative instrument transactions: Note 8
c. Investment in mainland China: Table 4 (attached)
d. Business relationships and significant transactions among the Group: Table 5 (attached)
e. Information of major shareholders: List all shareholders with ownership of 5% or greater showing the

name of the shareholder, the number of shares owned, and percentage of ownership of each
shareholder: Table 6 (attached)
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54. OPERATING SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The Group provides CODM to assess segment performance, focusing on the nature of business operations,
assets and profit and loss. The accounting policies of each operating segment are described in Note 4. The
same significant accounting policies. The Group shall be reported to the operating divisions are as follows:
a. Bank: Business ruled by Banking Law Article 71.
b. Overseas: Overseas banking business.
c. Leasing: Leasing business.
d. Bills: Bills-related business approved by the competent authority.

e. Others: Other non-core businesses.

The following was an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment.

Bank Overseas Leasing Bills Others Eliminations Consolidated
For the year ended
December 31, 2022
Net interest
From unaffiliated
segment $ 2,768,822 $ 955,614 $ 849,482 $ 9,157 $ (2,243) $ 663 $ 4,581,495
From other segment (934) - 192 - 742 - -
$ 2.767.888 $ 955,614 $ 840,674 $ 9,157 $ (1.501) $ 663 $ 4581495
Net revenue other than
interest
From unaffiliated
segment $ 6,257,260 $ 30,507 $ 457,951 $ 1,666,374 $ 160,421 $ - $ 8,572,513
From other segment 38,828 - (6.619) (30.507) 6.711 (1.041.602) (1,033,189)
$ 6,296,088 $ 30,507 $ 451,332 $ 1635867 $ 167,132 $  (1.041.602) $ 7539324
Income from continuing
operation $ 5034471 $ 348,818 $ 251,487 $ 1.040.298 $ 119,681 $ (986.400) $  5,808.355
Identifiable assets $ 342,586,253 $ 25810384 $ - $ 207,659,776 $ 1,376,403 $ (98,684) $ 577,343,132
Depreciation and
amortization $ 520,908 $ 34,725 $ 60,339 $ 24,862 $ 2,936 $ (20.561) $ 623.209
Capital expenditures $ 87,525 $ 9.931 $ 29,657 $ 1,709 $ 68 $ - $ 128.890
For the year ended
December 31, 2021
Net interest
From unaffiliated
segment $ 2,210,773 $ 839,370 $ 852,804 $ 756,831 $ (165) $ 314 $ 4,659,927
From other segment (478) - 59 - 3 416 -
$ 221029 $ 839,370 $ 852,863 $ 756,831 $ (162) $ 730 $ 4,659,927
Net revenue other than
interest
From unaffiliated
segment $ 3,262,554 $ 71,150 $ 638,350 $ 2,120,519 $ 36,918 $ - $ 6,129,491
From other segment 38,451 - (12,977) (30.049) 5278 (1.475.309) (1,474,606)
$ 3301005 $ 71,150 $ 625,373 $ 2090470 $ 42,196 $  (1.475.309) $ 4654885
Income from continuing
operation $ 1,840,842 $ 345,332 $ 564,818 $ 1.857.666 $ 26,206 $  (1.430.244) $ 3,204,620
Identifiable assets $ 298,609,018 $ 27,666,690 $ 10,804,517 $ 228,733,880 $ 261,932 $ 4,632 $ 575,080,669
Depreciation and
amortization $ 525,492 $ 47,718 $ 59,395 $ 12,759 $ 814 $ (8.221) $ 637,957
Capital expenditures $ 56,273 $ 448 $ 33,992 $ 6.270 $ 79 $ - $ 97,062

- 112 -



(panupuoD)

- €17 -

10 abejuadlad

220¢ 'T€ Jaquuadad

au1 yum diysuonejsy

ovv'y €00 ovv'y 4 1d1Ad Te 18sse [eloueulq - "0u] ‘solweuAQ xady
¥€0'T .00 ¥€0'T 14 “1d1Ad Te 1ssse [eldueul] - "0u] $31U0.4338|3 81010
SyL'CT 900 SvL'eT Y74 1dLA4 18 18Sse [eloueul - *d10D |991S usaIbiang
"paniasay sybry
196'TS 8e'T 196'TS Gp8's Td LA T8 18Sse [eroueulS - IV uoneiodiod nsues L pidey Bunisyoey
Z 9O0N| 966'7 9T'T 966'Y T9v “1d1Ad Te 1ssse [eldueul] - "PIT 0D $0118URD) Jagey
¢ 910N| G8€ 860 G8¢ 800'T 1d1Ad Te 1esse [eldueul] - "P¥1 0D 8UIIJBA BUSD 0Juodolg
ZAON| ze9'e ST 2€9'e 80€ “1d1Ad Te ]ssse [eldueul] - uonesodiod yoa L [lpmdiyd
C9ON| 9vE‘L6 8°L 9ve'.6 SOT'T “1d1Ad Te ]ssse [eldueul] - "OU| ‘[euolfeulslu] 83In0sayolg
CAON| 0Sez'eet 6.0 052'2eT €9 1dLAd Te 18SSe [eldueuly - ‘P11 0D s[elslelN palddy maN
C ‘T S9ION| 89G'TS¢ 960 89G'TSC GE9'TY 1d1Ad Te ]ssse [eldueul] - panwi 09 BulpjoH eulyd usyIys
8TT'9v 60°€ 8TT' 9 86C'T 1d1Ad Te ]ssse [eldueul] - P11 0D Yda L [993S00WdH
7980T S50 7980T 00S 1d1Ad Te ]ssse [eldueul] - "di0D uabipLisiy
CAON| §5/°/2T 18°€ GGL'ITT GEV'e “1d1Ad Te 1ssse [eldueul] - P17 0D XYrel
$3001S
8UQ [NJS$899NS,,
087'9TT L9V 087'9TT 000'VT 12014 Je1ssse [eloueuly - 1SNJ L JUSWISaAU] 3leis3 [esy Mueg-O
37e01J11190 AJeIdrjauaq 90AT paso[D| "PIT "0 [euded ainjuaA 1A 19|
g saJeys paliayaid
09€'vT 8T°0 09€'vT 00y 1D0LA4 e Jesse [eoueuly - "pi1 00 BuipjoH feroueuly Buoy| ulys
GIE'TE 140} GTE'TE 008 1dLAd Te 18SSe [eldueuly - "oul wieydorg esowreyd
¥£9'9T z€0 ¥£9'9T FAYA Td 1A e 18sse [efoueuld - "pr1 00 (uewAeD) ABojouyosl Qi4y UozZuY
ZAON| €TT'8 LT¢C eIT'8 008 “1dLA\d Te 18SSe [eldueuly - P11 02 (UewAeD) ueysuld NopnoH
Z90N| 89/'Gz e 89/'Sz ¥16'SZ T1dLAA e 18sse [eloueul] - (eowres) "p17 [euoieUIRIU| S[eNUaSST Alneag
Z'T S910N| 22z6'8TT 9’0 226'8TT 789'6T Td LA T8 18Sse [eroueulS - paywIT "0 Bulp|oH BuIyD UaIYIYS
C 90N| 860°9T 870 860°9T 2574 1dLAd Te 18SSe [eldueuly - p11 00 xyrel
C9ON| S96‘L1 LEL G96'LY €eL'T 1d LAd Te 18SSe [eldueuly - P11 00 ABojouydsiorg Jebi JspunyL
$3001S
8UQ [NJS$899NS,,
TG6¥'Se 20T TG6v'Se 650'E 10014 Je1ssse [eloueuly - 1SNJ L JUSWISaAU] 3leis3 [esy Mueg-O
37e01J11190 AJe1o1jauaq 9dA} paso|) "di0D uswaleuey 14|
192'/6T $SN 8L'16 T92'/6T $SN | ¥TI.'0T pouaw A1nba au) Buisn Joj PaIUNOIJeE SJUBUISAAU] SalleIpIsqns Mueg isnJ1sA3
SY201S| sbuipjoH LdI
d %) Junowy (spuesnoyl) Aued 6
910N NIEA e 1YsI8UMO Buifiied SHUN/SX201S 1UN0J2Y JUBLWIAIEIS [elouRUIH HEAWIOD bUIPIOH S3111INJ3S 3|qeIddJelA JO aweN pue adA | awreN Auedwo) buipjoH

T31avL

(sejjop 'S'N pue stejjog Uemie] MaN Jo spuesnoy | uf)
220z ‘T€ ¥39IN3D3A
Ad13H S3ILIFND3S 319V LINAIVIN

SHTAVIAISAAS ANV INVI-0




- VIT -

(papnjouoD)
"PaUIqUIOD BJe Ady} UM DO LAS Je 18SSe [eloueuly 8y} Ul paisi| ase pue dnoib ay) UlylIm paliaysuel) aJe sailndas ayl g 810N
'$3201s Buoy| BuoH pue stejjop Huoy| BUoH ul aJe $1903S JO Jaquuinu pue 003s [eyded pasalsiBal ayl ‘Buoy] BuoH ur pasaisiBal s Auedwod Buipjoy ayl :T 910N
g saJeys pausagaid
88y'y 900 88y'y T4 ID0LAd 1e 18sse [eloueul - P17 0D BuIp|oH [edueul4 Buoy ulys
2L0'6T e 2L0'6T 000°8T 10014 e ]asse [eloueulS - d1 pun4 saInjusA sA1RI8dooD YssiN
GTE'TE Sv°0 SIe'TE 005 7d.LA4 ¥e 19sse [e1oueulS - "ou| wieydorg esoweyd
209'9T €0 209'9T Y4 Td.LAd ¥e Josse [e1oueuld - P11 09 (uewAeD) ABojouyds) Al4Y uozuy
758 700 It 0T 1d L4 Te 18SSe [eldueuly - Ul 1Ld
o't 100 Zro'T 9 “1d L4 Te 18SSe [eldueuly - "ou] ‘83uBIdsoIg Ul
719 €00 719 T 1d L4 Te 18SSe [eldueuly - uonesodiod uoIsIoaId UU0D-1
000'TE 90T 000'TE 000'T 1d LAd Te 18SSe [eldueuly - uoneiodiod souondo Bususyd
887'0T 92T 887'0T T6¢ 1dLAd Te 18SSe [eldueulS - P11 0D UeMIB L UIM J8MOd
¥5L'2S 8T0 5125 059 Td 1A e 19sse [efoueuld - 'dioD saifojouyos ] uoneIny ussibiong
P
996‘c  $SN Se0 996‘'c  $SN | ocT 1d L4 Te 18SSe [eldueuly - 09 ABojouyos L [eluswUoIAUT UsBaAINGY
anfeA Jre4 QE%&EO unowy (spuesnoy 1) AuedwoD bulpjo|
910N : : Buifiied SHUN/SY001S JUNOJJY JUsWSIeIS [eloueulS O BUIP|OH S31111N23S 3|qe1syJe|A JO aweN pue adA L awreN Auedwo) BuipjoH

10 abejuadlad

2202 'T€ 13qWiadeQ

au1 yum diysuonesy




(panunuoD)

- §TT -

*SJUN0JJE 3say} uo Sal

gel] Aue 1o} syueq Ajluwapul 03 asnjal saiuedwod

3ouBINSUI Jo BuLI0loR) B} Je1je SYIUOW 834y} UIYNM S3|CeA1adal Bulwioyiaduou se pauiodal ale 85In02aJ INOYNM 9]qeAlsdas SIUN0JJe Paiolde) ‘(F67000560 "ON 'Jod) S00Z ‘6T AINC palep Jamns| si ul neaing Bupjueg ayy Aq palinbal sy :/ 810N
“SpIeo JIpato Jwpnjoxs ° sueo] Apaio aind junoure [fews,,  spIeo yseo,, ©, a3eSuow Arodord fenuspisal,, 10U 91 ey] SURO[ JOWNSUOD PIINOISUN JO POINOSS IS0 O] SI9Jal aoueUly JSWNSUOD UI  SI8YI0,, :9 810N
'SPJeD USed J0 SpJed 1Pald 10U aJe pue GO0z ‘6T Joquwiadad paiep 0S60T00 60 "ON "9 BulyD J0 Yueg ayi Aq paulanob ag 1snw Jey sueoj 11pald aind Junowe-[ews G a10N
"$19M0.10q 3} JO UBJP|IY2 Joulw sy} Jo asnods ayp ‘Jamollog ayp Aq (paumo) paseyound si Teyy Buisnoy Ag paindss Ajjny si pue uoireAoual Jo aseyaind asnoy Joj si ueo| abelliow ayl i 810N
*SO[qBAT00I PILD JIPAId SUILIONAUON] + SI[RAISIAI PIBD JIPAIO 10 SASSO[ 9[qIssod I0J 90UBMO[[Y :SI[BAIDIAI PRI 1IPald Jo onel abelano)d
'sueo] JuruI0J19duoN + Sueo[ Joj sasso] 9]q1ssod 10 20UBMO][Y :SULO[ JO O1el 3eIdA0) € 810N
*00UB[R( S[QRAISIAI PILD JIPAIO SUIPURISINQ + SI[GBAISIAI PILD JIPAIO FUIULIOJIOAUON] :SI[qBAIOAI PIed IPAId Suriofroduon Jo oney
"30UB[eq Ueo] BulpuelsIng - sueo] Bulwiopiaduon :sueo| BuiwioyiaduoN Jo oney g 810N
*(8/£000%71760 ON "J9¥) G002 ‘9 AInf parep 1on9] s, neaing Surue oy Aq pasnbai se ‘orjqnd o) 0 pasO[oSIp pue sSRLIOYINE dY) 0] Popodar are SO[qeAIS0aI pIed 1pald BulwiopaduoN
.’ SUROT PanJade-uoN/BuiiopaduoN YIM [eaQ pue S1assy a1eneAd 03 suonninsul Bunjueg o) sainpadold oyl SwumoAon) suonem3ay,, oY Aq panmbai se ‘orjqnd ot 03 paso[osIp pue sonLIoyINe oy 0] paptodal axe sueo] SwuoreduoN (T 910N
- 920'86 - ZTLYTT [el0l
- 920'86 - TLYTT (6 @10N) weiboid aAen|iqeyas pue uejd Juswafies 1gad

$

$

$

$

(8 @10N) aouewJoylad pue uoienobau 1gap 03 anp - Junowre 1Jdwax3

9]eAI89y UN0JIY SNPISAQ JO ddueleq
[e10.1 auyp Buioday wouy 1dwaxgy

Sue0T aNpPJIsAQ JO sdueleg

[e10.1 ay3 buioday wouy 1dwaxgy

9]eAI89y JUN0JIY SNPISAQ JO ddueleq
[e10.1 ay3 buioday wouy 1dwaxgy

SUe0T aNPIAAQ J0 ddueleq
[e10.1 ay3 buioday wouy 1dwaxgy

- 66v'9T - 2G6'89G'T - - 6£2'ST - 692'LIV'T - (2 @10N) 851n0J3J INOYIIM 3]geAI8d8. SJUNOJJE PaIo}IeH
- - - - - - - - - - SpJed JIpal)
$35507 9]]1SSO SOIEAIIsY doue|eq S9|eAIRd $95507 9]]1SSO SOIGEAII3Y doue|eq S9|eAIRd
oney abeasano) "191915s0d BuiwaopiaduoN | ajgenlsosy 1qEAI1905Y oney abesanod "19191ss0d BuiwaopiaduoN | ajqeAladay 1qEAI1905Y
10} 80UBMO| |V BuiwaoyiaduoN 10} 80UBMO| |V BuiwaoyraduoN
Jooney Buipueisino Jooney Buipueisino
%95°€SE €19'262'°C %Tv'0 ¥66'Gv0'6ST 098'6%9 %15 TEY 80£'€88'C %SE0 608'658'88T /87'899 ssauisng Bulpusy [eio |
%971°206 106'CET %¢c0 6£0'829'9 EV8'vT %9 v0T'T Zv8'6ST %¥T1°0 ¥6v'LTL'0T 0L¥'vT paindssun (9 310N) JoUi0
- ¥0.'2S - €T.'S€2'S - %.¥'095'T 250'v %900 9vS'eSE'y £28'C Paindss
- GTS'9C - 8v6'TE6'T - - 202'1E - 188'T1S'C - (G 810N) sueo] H1paJd B[edS-|leWS Bupjueqg Jawnsuod
- - - - - - - - - - pIed ysed
- 09.'002 - 1T2'09€'ET - %ELY.8 £89'G9T %.1°0 8€5'626'0T Tv6'8T (v @10N) abebiow BuisnoH
%6ZV.E 0/2'998 %8€°0 ¥26'€€€'09 Tvr'TEC %68'681 265°29T'T %¢E0 2L0'EVE' YL GTE'LE2 paindssun Bur d
- —— - TorTy : - ey - — : pjueq sjeiodio)
%ET'CSC LTSLT0T  $ %950 €5T90S'TL $ | 9/5°€0r $ %Ly vEE LE66IET $ %910 8/210098 $ | 8€9'V6E $ Paindss
(Z ®10N) sueo] (Z 810N) sueo]
(g 210N) $9SS07] 9]qISS0d aouefeg ueo] | (T al0N) sueo] (g 210N) $9SS07] 9]qISS0d aouefeg ueo] | (T a10N) sueo]
BuiwaoyraduoN BuiwaoyraduoN swiay|
oney abesano) | Joy souemo||y 10 0neY BuipuelsinO | Bulwaoyiaduop |oney abeaano) | J10) sduemo| |y 10 0neY Buipueisino | BuiwaoyiaduoN
1202 ‘7€ 48qWiadag 220z ‘7€ 48quadag poliad

¢3J1avil

(9% U1 10 sJejjog Uemie] MaN Jo spuesnoy | uf)
T20Z ANV 2202 ‘'T€ ¥39n303a

FT1GVAIFOTH SINNODJV ANV SNVOT ONINHO4d3dNON

SHTAVIAISAAS ANV INVI-0O




- 91T -

(papnjouo))

"SJalyew pare[al JO saInso|asIp feuswisjddns apnjoul pinoys siuswiaiinbas aInsoosIp UoleIoul 8yl pue Buriiodal 11palo ‘sases uolepinbi| pue uoireljigeyal ‘uoirenoBau-aid

10§ suone[ngoy soueIes]) 1qo(] JOWNSUO),, ) SuIpesal 910z ‘0z Jeqwisidas a1ep 06.7ETO0S0T "ON “Jod BUIYD JO ueg 8u) 0 Jalia] 8y} pue 800z ‘ST Jequwisidas parep Ov68TE00.60 ON “Jod BUIUD JO yuegd 8y} Jo Jahs] ay) 0) BUIPI0IdY 6 810N

"sIo1ET poje[el Jo samsoosip [ejusws[ddns apnjour pinoys , UoTeroossy Suryueg euly) Jo oljgnday syl Jo saseD [eloueuld
JWNSU0D 40} WSIUBYOBIA UOIRIOBAN 199 Pamossuy),, ay1 Aq pasmbar se sjuewambo SMsoosp UOHEWLIOJUL SY) Pue 1IPaId Jo sIOPS] oy} ‘9007 “¢T [MdY parep 0L2T000TSE0 'ON ‘43 BUIYD JO Sueg dy} Jo JoNa| 8y} 0} Buipioddy g 3loN



- LTT -

4 T - T - €6EY 81°C SUIINIORINULU [RLISIEW [BOTWATD PUe[S] UBTIAR)) payrur T sSurprol SuenyzSusyg
8’8 L66°9 - L66°9 - 609°€E 88 [Te3al 9oy pue[s] uewAe)) "Y1 IURUSIAUT OI(]
IDOLAA 18 SIOSSE [RIOURUL]]
TOTITISUT [eTOUBUT}-UON|
050 00¢€ - 00¢ - €6S°1 00 Ansnpu se0TAISG SIBMJOS UORWIONU]|  UeMIeT, “ArD 1odre, PYT "0 Juewiked S[IGOJN UeMIR],
IDOLAA 18 SIOSSE [RIOURUL]]
00°001 000°59 - 000°69 LLETL 968°86L 00°001 juswnseAu]|  uemie], “Ap redre], PIT 0D [ende) amueA TTA 1l
00°001 00v°€l - 00v°€1 €LE€T 6£6°08C 00001 Sunnsuoo juswIsaAU]|  UeMTe] “Arp redre], diop usweSeuriN 141
00°001 698°01 - 698°01 £68°09¢ T8E611°9 00001 Auedwoo SUIP[OH|  BOLIBWY “TUIOIED “drop suIp[oH L4l
8%'8C TESTSE - TEST8E Y6T°66T 968°891°9 LE8T $a1I1M09s Jo aFe1axoIq pue Surfesp ‘Sunrimiepun spuog|  uemre], “Ar) radre], ‘drop soueur S[[rd BUNYD
00°0T 000°00T - 000°00T 918°GT1 0 100°1 0007 ssautsnq Suroueur| eury) ‘Ao Sullieg Py “0D 9oueUL] IPWNSUOD autysung Surlieg
87 vt €61°9S1 - €61°961 14394 $ 6TL0ETO § 8 v Suisear]|  uemre[, ‘1D adie], P 0D SoURUL SNULU]
poyewr £11nbe oy} SUrsn I0J pJUNOOd. SJUSTWISSAUT
TOTITISUT [eTouetl 1
%)
diyssoumQ | (spuesnoyy) diysaoumQ (spuesnoy) %)
a0 10 SRS Joareus SI0: (ssop uten Junoury dgssaumo ssouisng ure uonedo Auedwo)) 393s9Au
10N adeuadaag RULIOJ-0.1] OIS JUIUI)SIAUT Suidue) Jo snd Wew neset 23y I
€10, agrpuadg

JUAUISIAUT PIEpPI[OSU0))

CHTIVL

(sae[jo(] ueMIE], MAN JO spuesnoy I, uy)
T20T ‘1€ YAGINADAA

HINANTAINT INVITAINDIS SASTOAAXA SINVE THL HOTHM YTAO STALSTAANT 4O NOLLVINIOANT JAHLO ANV ‘SNOLLVDOT ‘SHINVN

SATAVIAISANS ANV ‘dLT “0D JMNVI-0O




- 81T -

(panunuop)
(6LE $sn) (6LE $Sn) (000TE  $SN)
- - 91T - 91T 27 90N 9T1€86 S[ELISTEW $$E[S JO UONoNpoIy ‘00 UBIENH SULIG USIYIYS
(Lsky $sn) (LSt $Sn) (000008 $SN)
- - 1€6°9€1 - 1€6°9€ 1 27 90N 091°8LS¥T S[ELISTEW $$E[S JO UONoNpoIy 00 NSTUBI( [ELOSNPU] [BOTUIA) URI[YIYS
(€sg'sL @) (L pue € se10N) (L ®100N) (L @10N) (er18s  $sn) | (eve's $sn) | (008°cs $Sn) (0008 $SN)
180°s€€ $ - $ 9P '8EE $ 00001 - $ | OIE98LT $ ISTH91 $ 651°TT9°1 $ P T eION 9T61sT  $ Sursea]] o) Sursesr] [euoneIU] 4]
(1 210N) (I 910N)
. TTOT “TE 1dquadaq 7707 ‘1 Arenuer
TTOT € 19quads(q a 210\) (1 910N) JuaunSIAU] jose smopuy Moo Jose (1 910N)
Jo se sBurIey Jo | 7707 ‘I€ JIquIddd(q 193.1puy ad£y,
(sso uemie], uemie ], [ende) ur-preg $]ONpo.aJ pue sassauisng uley aureN Sueduio)) 3agsaauy
pUENIWNY presu] Jose J0 3aI( Jo JUdUNSIAUT
A — Junowry Suikire) ures) JuIuNSIAUY disousO WIOAJ JUSWI)SIAUT WIOIJ JUSUISIAUT Jojunowry [ejo],
s ' ' ’ Jo mono (1 210N) Jo mono
pajenuINdDy SMO[] JUSUI)SIAUT parenunddy
YT 0D SWses T Tl
(000°00TAIN) TOS€88% (000°00TAIN) TOS€88%
1 10N (00SF$SN) TSTRETS (00S7$SN) TSTRETS
(I 210N) (I 210N)
JusuI)SIAUT Uo 'y ha&&b VIO .=0_ww_=—=—cmv 7T .ﬁﬂ JaquIada(g Jo se
jusurlsaAuy %Q PIZLIOYINY SJUNOWY JUSWIISIAUT Buly) pueuie]y ul JU3W)SsAU] paje[nun)y
(000007 A (000°00T @D (000°000°T AN
- THOTIO 1 91I8°STI 00'0T 205°€88 - - 205°€88 PTAON 01" LIV Y SsoUISNq SUIOUBUL] PYT "0 SOUBLIL] Joumsuo)) eurysung Sutlreg|
(000T $sn) (000 $Sn) (00€rs @)
- €6EY 81T SHF 19 - - Sh°19 27 90N 1L8'6ET INHO dnewso)) PIT “0p SuenyzSueyg Sutliog
(00s $sn) (00$ $Sn) (00001 @)
- TTL9 60T T9E°ST - - T9€%61 27 90N SLIYY Surfrejer 90Jjo)) PYT 0D Poog onfruong noy
(000°T $sn) (000T $Sn) (16V%1 $sn)
- $ L8897 $ $ 09T SHF 19 $ - $ - $ SHP 19 $ 0T 90N £0TSHY $ Sur[rejer e03jo)) PIT "0 JUeWR LR (7] LT nOyzZng
(1 210N) (1 910N)
. TTOT “TE 1dquadaq 7707 ‘1 Arenuer
TTOT T € 1qudaq (1 210N) 1 9100 JuBULSIAUT Jose sogug sopno jo st 1 2100
Jo se sguriey Jo | 7707 ‘1€ JPquddaq 193.1puy ad£y,
Awwcd uemie], uemle], —ﬁ«_n—ﬁo ur-preq $PNpo.J pue sassauisng ure g IWeN %:&&EOU 39)SIAUT
pUENIWNY presu] Jose J0 3aI( Jo JUdUNSIAUT
e NNy Junowry w:—%z:ﬁmv urer) Jusu)saAuy &:—w‘—a-;?o Iy WO} Juau)SaAUu] WO.IJ JUSWISIAUT Jojunowy JejoJ,
s : : ° Jo mono (1 210N) Jo mono
parenunNDy SMO[ JUSW)SIAUT pajenun»dy

ued-O

PAIdVL

(saefo( "S') pUe IqUIUSY ‘SIL[[O(] UBMIE], MIN JO SpUesnoiJ, uy)
7207 ‘T YAGWADAA AAANT AVAX HHL O
VNIHD ANV INIVIA NI SINALLSHANI NO NOLLVINHOANT

SHIAVIAISAAS ANV INVH-0




- 67T -

(panunuo))
(S 210N) 955°89 1% (189°7$SN) TISEV TS (189°7$SN) TISER 1§
(1 210N) (I 210N)
Judunysasuy uo jruny saddp VHAOIA ‘uoissiuuwo;) T0T ‘T 19quIada( Jo se
JUAUNSIAUT £¢ PIZLIOYINY SJUNOWY JUIWISIAUT eull) pueuiey ul JUSUISIAUT PIe[NUIND Yy
SuumorynuEW pue USIsep Bpesl
(€€s $sn) €39 $sn) (062761 ) | A1 BurSesoed [oqe] oruonos[e (LA
- 7€9°91 - €0 SLEIT SLEIL - 07 AN 8LT8SY “BULIMOBNUBL PUE USISEp BUUSIUE (TR YT 0D ASofoumos ], (LAY UOZITY|
(62T $sn) (62T $sn) (000CE $sn)
- 10£°6 - 90 SE0°L - SE0°L 07 AN 9T1€86 S[ELISTEW $$E[S JO UONoNpoIy ‘00 BTN SULI UST[YIYS
(669C $sn) (669°C $sn) (000008 $SN)
- 129601 - 07’0 126°C8 - 1268 07 AN 091°8LS¥T S[ELISTEW $$E[S JO UONoNpoIy ‘00 NSSUBL{ [PLOSNPU] [BOTWOT) URTYIS
(6T $sn) (6T $sn) (0oLT $sn)
- o1 - A 168 - 168 RIACIN 15678 A8070UToe) UOTBULIOJUT SUT[TEJaT SNRWISO) AZo[our[oe) UOTEULIOJUT SXIAJA]
(889 $sn) (889 $sn) (000°€ $sn)
- 9TLYT - e LET'IT - LETIT 07 AN 891°T6 Su[rEjel SNPWSO)) PIT TeuOnEIIRIUT [eHURSSH Aneag
L $sn) L $sn) (00T $sn)
- €11 - Lre SiT - SiT 97 31oN SP1°9 Super]| Py 0D JUSWILTRURI POO OB NO(T TEySuelS
(rey $sn) (rey $sn) (rssL $sn)
- 6€8°9 - £9°1 9TOET - 9TO'ET RIACIN 880TET SuI[rejoI PO ]| PYT “SurpoH [euoneuejuy sutsmgy Swiddog,
(TL $sn) (TL $sn) 9Ly $sn)
- $ 911 $ - $ Lre TITT $ $ - $ [Arad $ 0 90N orTort $ Sur[rejor Juemesay| P <0 JSWLTLURIN 3 TSNINO(T TeyBueys
(1 910N) (6 pue T s3)0N)
7207 ‘T 12quiddsq (1 330N) JusunsaAu] | 7707 ‘I€ Joquadaq 7207 ‘T Lenuep
Jo se wm-_:‘—ﬁ,\wm Jo 7T nﬁﬂ JaquuIada( AWM”WWU Paa1puy Jo se uemiey, aopug A“omnO Jo se uemie | QE%H Mﬁ a«O?.U SCued
[ende) ur-preg $1oNpo.J pue sassauisng urey sweN Aueduwio)) 33)ssAuy
ULPIWIY presuy Jo se ures JueIsaAU] 10 A Jo WO.IJ JUSWISIAUT WO.IJ JUSWISIAUT jusun)ssAuy Jo yunour €10
pojemundIy Junoury surfiie)) N diysasumQ o, Jo monQ (T 910N) Jo mopnQ ViuoL
pajenuIndIy SMO[ ] JUSUI)SIAUT pajemunIIYy
qI0,) JUS WL SEUEIN Lell
(I 210N) (I 210N)
Judunysasuy uo jruny saddp VHAOIA ‘uoissiuuwo;) T0T ‘T 19quIada( Jo se
JUAUNSIAUT £¢ PIZLIOIINY SJUNOWY JUIWISIAUT euly) pue[uie]y ul JUSUSIAUT PIe[NUINID Yy




(papnjouoy)

oD [ende) emyueA TIA 1T 4q prey “diop SurseeT [euoneumeiuy wrfuer], 161 jo Ambe 046 pammboe py “op SursesT 1T 20T [HdY Ul PrT “op [ende) amuoA TTA Tl ySnomy Aosriput os¢ pue Apjoarnp dioy) Surses ] [EUOTEUIUT UIEL], T JO YoOIs %S6 SPIoY PYT “0) SusedT 141

- 0T -

“dioy) SusesT [euoneuIeuy wiltrer], 17 Jo Anbe aImue ot pley AQoSIp PY “00) SOUR,] SJIUTU] ‘IeSIour
o} IOy PRSI P 00 OUBLIL] U] Pue Py "0 Sutsed T L] ‘T20T RqUeoR( Ul PYT “0D SursesT I Aq PIOY %001 S8 pessaidxe st 31 Uonoesten 1jsuen, oy jo uonadwoo o ey Py oD [ende) amuep A LET YSnorg ARosmpur 9,6 pue ‘py 0D Sursea] 1T Aq P[oy Apoarip
466 Jo posoduwioo st “sso pue Jijoid JueunseAut o) papnjour yomm “diol Sursee] [euoneuIoju] Wifter], TET JO JUNOUTE JUSUIISIAUT PAJR[NUMOOE oY) ‘PeIe[dWioo ST UOTIORSURT) IOJSUR) SU) 2I0Joq (PUBSNOY) €F€ 6$S ) 01 JUS[eAINDa) PUBRSNOY) $9Z 9GS [$LN SEM JUNOUIR TOJSULRI) o) pue *p)]

:f 910N
“IOJ}[ UOTJEOTJLIOA S} U0 Paseq ATUTRII ST JUNOWE SOUEHTUISI S} PUR SITEJJY OTUIOUOOT JO ATISIUIA] O} JO 9a)jTUINIO)) MATASY] JUSUIISSAUT S WOI} JUSUNSS AT JO 11ed JO JoJa] UOTJBOTjLIoA o1} paune)qo seyf dio)) juewedeuejy 14T 19 910N
U] SU) UTHIM ST JUSUNSOAUT [eurSLIo o, G 910N
- ury ur uorjerndoos-£3o[ounjos) Jo SUTISSAUT JO UOTINSI ST, ISPUN JOU §T JUeg o1 08 ‘0g0g [Udy U sITejjy orwouooq jo Ansnpuy ‘neeing jusurdoleas ] [eLIsnpU] o) wolj uonmdooal o jo8 ueg o, i 90N
VD oo £q pejIphe sJUsIeje)s [RIOURUT] WOL]  f 910N
L TO W)
“BUT)) PURIUTEUT UT JUSUNSOAUT 001K P
((IH) QELDATT 00 AL A4X PUe “PIT “0) (wewie)) AZojouos I, (LY
TOZLIY “PY] TeUORWU] [BNUsssH Aneag < p1r “Surploy reuonewsiuy sutsingy Suiddo] ‘papwr <o) SUIP[Of] BUIY) UST “p1T ‘Surplo Suenyz8usyg “pi TUSUWNSSAUT OI(T SUMSSAUT BIA ) "ANUNod pay e ur Auedwiod JUSLING B UT SUTISOAUT BIA BU UR[UIRWE UT JUSUISOAUT 1090pU] D
Y PYT T ] [ cl d Py SUWPOH [ 1 o 1 P T 00 SUWIP[OH Uty UL “PYyT “SWPOH zsuelg “prT 101q A) pam D pue| pur
“Arumoo pamyp e ur Aweduwioo & SUTes BIA BUI)) PURIUTEUI TT JUSTIISOAUT J00IpU]  q
"ATUNOS PIMJ) & BIA SOUBHTUIST Aq BUT,) PUR[UTEWI UT JUSUNSOAU] B
"SMOT[OF $B poje)s seyorodde JUOWIISOAUT OAT] 0I0M 0IT], 7 SJON
"720T ‘1€ 10quIsos(T papus Ieak atf) J0f jusunsnlpe jer oSuetpXe o1} I0Je ST junoure o], ] 9ON
(S 210N 8EE6LYS (605°5$SN) 95T691$ (605°5$SN) 957691
(T 310N) (T 310N)
Jusunsaauy uo jwry saddp VO ‘uoissiuuio)) 20T ‘€ 1oquIada( Jo se
JusuSIAU] Aq PIZLIOPNY SPUNOUTY JUIWISIAUT RU|)) PUeUIR]Y UI JUSUI}SIAU] PI[AUINIIY

(L pue ¢ seloN) (ooz'Tt $sn) (00zTl $sn) (0008 $sn)
- - 68F°S - - LISLE - LIS LE PTAON 19T615°T Surseo'] drop) Sursee T [euOTRLIIUT T
SurmornTeW pUE USISIp JOpLaX
€39 $sn) (€€s $sn) (062761  dIN) | A1 BurSesord [oqe] oruonos[e (LA
- 20991 - €0 SLE9T - SLEDT - 07 01N 8LT8SY “BULIMOBJNUEB PUE USISEp BUUSIUE (TR Py 00 ASofoumps], (1A UCZITY
(€Te $sn) (€43 $sn) (000CE $sn)
- Z8L°TI - SLO L£6%6 - L£6°6 - 07 01N 9T1€86 S[ELISTEW $$E[S JO UONoNpoIy YT "0 N[Ie) UenATg Ueren gy
(€59 $sn) (€59 $sn) (000008 $SN)
- $ 88581 $ - $ 990 [axe $ - $ | veTrI $ - $ 07 910N 091°8LS¥T  $ S[ELISTEW $$E[S JO UONoNpoIy 00 NSTUBI( [ELOSNPU] [BOTUIA) URI[YIYS
(1 210N) (1 210N)
. TTOT “TE 1dquadaq 7207 T Lenuer
e oz s G200 [ Moot [T ous soumo o aig | om0
aou -Ea. e o se Awwcd 10 ua‘.: o uemie], uemle], [—— —ﬁamn—ﬁmv ur-preq $PNpo.J pue sassauisng ure g IWeN %:&A—EOU JI)SIAUT
E«.ﬁ -:W:vuu 1 o ¥ Smik e e JUIULSIAU] | o M_aE_wQ ¥ o WIOAJ JUSWI)SIAUT WIOIJ JUIUSIAUT ¥ ¥ 1 Jojunowry [ejo],
pare V | Junowry Suilrie)) Iy 0 % 10 MOINO T 1o MOLINGO
pajenuINdDy SMO[] JUSUI)SIAUT pajemunIIYy

YT 0D [ERde)) SIBA TIA Tdl




(panupuoD)

- TeT -

- € 910N /8 aNUBA3J 1S3IaMU| q Mueg ay 'PIT 0D $8N1INJas 19| 8
- € 910N 0ev's sa|qefed Y INLGI

€T0 € 910N 0v6'ST sasuadxa aAlreAsIuIWpe pue Burresado Y10 2 k]
- € 910N T 9]qeAladal SJUNOJIY q Mueg ayl
- € 910N 6 aNUBAaJ 1SaIaU| q Mueg ayl
- € 910N T€2'C sjusfeAinba yseo pue yseo q qued syl LON1d] L
- € 910N €82 1S8J31UI UeYj] JLI0 dnUaAaJ 18U J8Y10 2 Ainmusd maN Bua] uny)
- € 910N 38 1S831U1 Ueyj} J3Y10 anuaAal 1au Jayl0 q Mueg ayl

900 € 910N 118'9 sasuadxa aAlreAsiuiWpe pue Buresado Y10 q Mueg ayl
- € 910N 26T asuadxa 1saaiul asea] q Mueg ayl
- € 310N 06T 3NUBA3I 1SaJdlU| q ued ay L idl 9
- € 910N 18T anuaAal 1salau| q queg syl paywi (MH) eisy s14dl S
- € 310N 18 8NU3AaI 158J3)U q Mueg ayL| penwi] (MH) eroveuid sigl| v
- € 910N (oY% asuadxa 1saaiul asea] q Mueg ayl

G20 € 910N 189'0E sasuadxa aAlessiuIWpPe pue Buielado Jayi0 q Mueg ayl 490| ¢
- € 910N 0EY'S 9]qeAladal SJUNOJIY 2 1OA191

€70 € 910N 0v6'ST awodul1 321AI8S AouByNsuoD 2 LOAL9I
- € 910N 2z 9]qeAladal SJUNOJIY q Mueg ay
- € 910N Gz asuadxa 1sa.a)ul asea] q Mueg ay L

T00 € 910N 8G/ sasuadxa aAlessiuIWpe pue Buielado Jayi0 q Mueg ayl
- € 910N ¥T aNUBA3J 1S3IaMU| q Mueg ay
- € 910N 681t sjuafeAInba ysea pue ysed q Mueg syl NLEI 4
- € 910N €82 sasuadxa aAnjesisiuIWpe pue Bunelado Jayio 2 Buisea 19|
- € 910N 99 aNUBA3J 1S3IaIU| q Mueg ayl Amua) maN Bua] unyd| T

€0 € 910N 878'8¢ 1S8J31U1 UeYj) Jay10 anuaAal 18U Jayl0 e Buisea 191 pue 490 ‘14l
- € 910N € sa|qefed B LON1dl pue NLgl

"pi 0D s8nIN2eS 191 pue LOALE] ‘Buises 1G] ‘panwi

100 € 910N €6 asuadxa 1saJa1u| e (MH) ei1sv 141 ‘panwi (MH) feroueuld S1di ‘INLGL ‘Amus) maN Bus ] unyd

- € 910N 0zL9 ¢ susoda@ 1 LON1dl pue NLgl queg syl 0
S19SSY [e10L
10 anuanay NIETR (z 210N)
[elol Buipea ) siunowy N0V JUBLLSIEIS [eloUEUlS diysuonejey Aedisuno)d uoneaod.ao) uonoesued | @ .m.Ouozv
10 abejuadiag 10 ainyeN N
suonoesuel] jo uondiidsag

S31avl

(sejjog uemre ] MaN 40 spuesnoy] uj)
2202 ‘T€ ¥39W3D3A d3IANT dv3IA IHL HO4
SAFVIAISANS ANV YNVE FHL ONOWY SNOILOVSNVHL INVOIJINOIS ANV SdIHSNOILVY13d SSANISNg

SHTAVIAISAAS ANV INVI-0O




- ¢ctl -

(papnjouod)
"selued paje|aiun Y3m asoy} 0} Jejiwis aJe safued pajejas pue yueg aul Usamiag SUOIIdeSsUBI) aU} Joj SWUs) 8YL € 810N
"SalfeIpISNS 0} SaleIPISgNS "D
*Auedwod Juased 0] saLreIpISONS  °q
"salfeIpIsqns 0} Auedwod Jusred e
'SMO]|0} Se PaljIsse[d a1am sallied pare[al YiMm suonoesues) Jo sadAy syl iz 810N

"T Jaquunu ayp woly Buiuels Ajfenusnbas pasaquinu afe saLBIPISgNS g
ueg ay) Joj0 e

'SMO]|0} Se PalJISSe[O a1aM SSLIRIPISONS SH pue yuegd sy} UsamIaq SUOIJesUeI] SSauisng sy} INoge Uolewoju] T 810N



TABLEG6

O-BANK AND SUBSIDIARIES

INFORMATION OF MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Shares

Name of Major Shareholders Number of Percentage of
Shares Ownership (%)

Ming Shan Investment Co., Ltd. 386,271,554 12.74
Yi Chang Investment Co., Ltd. 292,340,997 9.64
Taixuan Investment Co., Ltd. 287,135,501 9.47
Note 1: The major shareholder’s information on this table is on the last business day at the end of the quarter

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

from the Taiwan Central Depository and Clearing Co., Ltd. The shareholding included shares that the
company has completed the delivery of the common stock and preferred stock without physical
registration (including treasury shares) of more than 5%. The share capital recorded in the Bank’s
consolidated financial report and the actual number of shares has been actually delivered without
physical registration. Differences, if any, may be due to the basis of preparation and calculation.

If shareholders transfer the shareholding to a trust, the trustee will open the trust account to separate
the account. Shareholders' handling of insider shareholdings with more than 10% of their shares shall
be in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act. However, their shareholdings include their own
shares plus their delivery to the trust and the use of decision-making shares in the trust property.
Information on insider equity declaration refers to the Public Information Observatory.

The number of shares are the total number of common stocks and preferred stocks.
Shareholding ratio (%) = The total number of shares held by the shareholder + The total number of

shares that have been delivered without physical registration. It is calculated to the second decimal
place and rounded off after the third decimal place.
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